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HIGHLIGHTS OF 2006 DEVELOPMENT OF NET ASSET VALUE

D Investor's net asset value increased from SEK 134 bn. to 260
SEK 159 bn. {SEK 208 per share). Read more on page 8.

O The total return on Investor shares was 24 percent. %0 7\\\ ‘_//f
Read more on page 6. 100 —— V——/

a Leverage was 0 percent on December 31, 2006.

O The board proposes a dividend to shareholders of SEK 4.50 *
per share, N — . —
SIS PLFSFFFFE S
= Nat asset value including reinvested dividends, SEK bn.
== Net asset value, SEK bn.
HIGHLIGHTS OF 2006 GEOGRAPHIC MARKETS

O The Core Investments business area had an impact of SEK 30 bn. on
Investor’s income for the year. Read more on page 8.

O Husgvarna was spun out of Electrofux and is now a Core Investment.
Read more on page 19,

O LogicaCMG {U.K.) made a public offer for the total shares outstanding
in Wh-data, which Investor accepted. Read more on page 14.

O In the third quarter, MAN (Germany} made a public offer for the total
shares qutstanding in Scania, which Investor rejected. The bid was
withdrawn in January 2007. Read more on page 2.

O Shares were acquired in Electrolux, Husqvarna and Scania.

Read more on page 8.

0 The Operating Investments business area had an impact of SEK —1.9 bn. on
Investor’s income far the year, Read more on page 8.

O During the year, Gambro was added to the business area. As of June 2006, Garnbro
is owned by Investor (49%) and EQT {51%). Gambro was streamlined and divided
into three separate companies soon after it was acquired. Read more on page 21.

O 3 Scandinavia continued to grow its subscriber base and average revenue per user.
Read more on page 22.

O Grand Hotel and Novare Human Capital continued to develop their businesses
during 2006. Read more on page 22 and 23.

O After year-end, Investor, together with Morgan Stanley Principal Investments, signed
an agreement to acquire Mdlnlycke Health Care. Read more on page 2 and 20.

O The Private Equity business area had an effect of SEK 664 m. on
frvestor's income for the year. Read more on page 8.

O The business area is now in a rebuilding phase after focusing on divest-
ments in the last few years. During the year, SEK 4,490 m. was invested,
of which SEK 3,626 m. comprised new investments and SEK 864 m.
consisted of follow-on investments. The majarity of the investments for
the year were within EQT. Read more on page 8 and 24.

O Investor Growth Capital opened a representative office in Beijing.

Read more on page 25.
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Welcome to Investor OPERATIONS

Investor is listed on the Stockholm Stock Exchange and is the o j -
largest industrial holding company in the Nordic region. Qur goal is to nm;ﬁ‘?%m Gmmm
increase the value of our investments and generate returns that are in -

Ao, 7 ey . .

excess of market cost of capital over a business cycle. We achieve this

by investing in companies with solid potential for value creation and P _ :

developing our ho'dings so they remain or become best-in-class. We / ) 7.“‘\ / N N

leverage our global network to recruit the right board members and , Organization  ; Network Brand )
! , . N

management for our holdings. We develop value-creating agendas -

for each company. Investment activities are conducted at offices in

Stockholm, Amsterdam, Beijing, Hong Kong, Menlo Park {California),

New York and Tokyo.

Sy
-

BUSINESS AREAS " INVESTMENT FOCUS STRATEGIES

0 Develop and implernent value
creation plans in companies

INVESTMENTS

O Ensure that we are a substantiab
owner with strategic influence

|
astrazenecs? ERICSSON Z ) saaB

AR me= SEB @K

iJHusqvarna E Electrolux ) scanua

Well-established, international corporations
Listed companies

Investrment cycle: long-term

Ownership through significant minority
position

Returns through value creation and dividends

gagaan

a

" Develop current holdings
1> Grow the business area’s

OPERATING INVESTMENTS

share of total assets

SGAMBRO.Renal Products — GAMBRO,BCT.
S 5AMBRO. Healthcare

Medium-sized companies
Mainty unlisted companies
Investment cycle: medium to long-term

~J - q&? - Ownership through majority or significant
@ GRAND HOTEL M OW/ minority position

ST el wELD : Returns through value creation and dividends

noooa

o

0O Grow within the existing units
Investor Growth Capital and

PRIVATE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

EQT
U Rebuild the portfolio after two
years of net divestments

Investor

Growth Capital E@T

Small and medium-sized companies
Mainly unlisted companies
lnvestment cycle: 3 to 7 years
Minority to majority ownership

0O Returns in connection with exits

O
a
a
c

1) In addition 10 these three main business areas, financial Investments constitules a separate business area with assets corresponding to 1 percent of Investor's total assets
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Investor 2006 - Shareholder information

Shareholder information

Annual General Meeting
investor invites shareholders to partici-
pate in the Annual General Meeting
on Tuesday, March 27, 2007 at 3.00
p.m. at the City Conference Centre,
Barnhusgatan 12-14, in Stockholm.
Registration for the Meeting begins at
1.30 p.m. Light refreshments wilt be
served before the Meeting. Represen-
tatives from Investor will be available
at Meeting {o answer guestions.

PARTICIPATION

Shareholders who would like to attend
the Annual General Meeting must be
recarded in the register of shareholders
maintained by VPC AB an Wednesday,
March 21, 2007, and must notify the
Company of their intention to attend
the Meeting no later than 1.00 p.m,,
Wednesday, March 21, 2007.

NOTICE OF PARTICIPATYION IN THE
ANNUAL GENERAIL MEETING
Sharehoiders can give their notice of
participation by:

B registering on Investor AB's
website, www investorab.com,

m phoning +46 8 611 2910,
weekdays, between 9.00 a.m. and
5.00 p.m. CET or

W completing and mailing the invita-
tion, To obtain an invitation, phone
+46 86112910

NOMINEE-REGISTERED SHARES

In order to be entitled to participate
in the Meeting, shareholders whase
shares are registered in the name of
a nominee through the trust depart-
ment of a bark or similar institution
must request that their shares are
temporarily re-registered in their own
names in the register of shareholders
maintained by VPC AB. Such registra-
tion must be effected no later than
Wednesday, March 21, 2007. Share-
holders are requested to inform their
nominees in good time prior to this
date.

PROXIES, ETC.

Shareholders who are represented by
a praxy must authorize the proxy by
issuing a power of attorney. If such
power of attorney is issued by a legal
entity, an attested copy of the certifi-
cate of registration must be attached.
The power of attorney and certificate
of registration may not be issued ear-
lier than one year before the date of
the Meeting. The power of attorney
in the criginal and the certificate of
registration, where applicable, should
be sent to Investor AB, Annual
General Meeting, SE-103 32
Stackholm, Sweden, in good time
prior to the Meeting.

REPRESENTATIVES

Shareholders or proxies for share-
holders at the Annual General
Meeting may take a maximum of
two representatives with them to
the Meeting. Representatives may

be brought to the Meeting only

if the shareholder of Investor AB
gives natice of their attendance as
described above for notification of
participation of sharehalders. If you
have any guestions about the Annual
General Meeting, phone

+46 8 611 2910, weekdays, between
9.00 a.m. and 5.00 p.m. CET.

Dividend

The Board of Directors and President
propose a dividend to the share-
holders of SEK 4.50 per share for
fiscal 2006. March 30, 2007 has been
proposed as the record date. if the
proposal is approved by the Annual
General Meeting, the dividend is
expected to be distributed by VPC AB
on April 4, 2007.

Calendar of events in 2007

B Annual General Meeting: March 27

B Interim Report, January-March:
April 17

B interim Report, January-june:
July 11

B Interim Report, January-September:
October 11

Information channels
Financial information about Investor
can be accessed and ordered on
Investor's corporate website

www . investorab.com.

Printed information materials
Printed annual reports, interim
reports and invitations to the Annual
Generai Meeting are distributed to
sharehclders in Sweden. All new
shareholders in Sweden, when they
receive their first financial report, are
asked if they would like to receive a
printed copy of future interim reports,
annual reports and AGM invitations.
All shareholders outside Sweden
receive copies of all financial reports
published by Investor AB.

Investor relations

Oscar Stege Unger: +46 8 614 2059
oscar.stege.unger@investorab.com
Frida Adrian; +46 8 614 2044
frida.adrian@investorab.com

IR Group: +46 8 614 2800

Corporate website
www.investorab.com

Analyses of Investor

Firms that publish analyses of
Investor include ABG Sundal Collier,
Alfred Berg ABN Amro, Carnegie,
Cazenove, Cheuvreux Nordic, Danske
Equities, Enskilda Securities, Evii Bank,
HQ, Handelsbanken, Kaupthing Bank,
S&P (Nordea), Swedbank Markets,
UBS and Ohman Equities.
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Clear plans for value creation

2006 was an eventful year for Investor. More or less
all of our investments showed excellent operating
perfarmance and strengthened market positions. We
ended the year with a net asset value of SEK 159
bn., up 21 percent adjusted for the dividend paid in
2006. Among our larger holdings, the share price in
ABB, SEB and Atlas Copco performed strongly, while
AstraZeneca and Ericsson experienced a weaker
share price development.

Driving value creation within

Core Investments

Investor’s strategy is to own and develop companies fong-
term, from both an industrial and financial perspective,

in order to generate above-market returns. During 2006,
we put much focus on devising and implementing value
creation plans for our Core Investments in which we identi-
fied operational improvements, growth opportunities and
capital structure optimization, developed through extensive
industry analysis and benchmarking for each company.
These plans are a good way to focus our actions as active
owners and allow us to drive value creation in our
investments.

Well managed Scania with prospects in 2007
During the latter part of 2006, MAN's bid for Scania
attracted significant attention. We rejected the bid for two
reasons: first, it did not reflect the full value or potential of
Scania, and second, we did not believe that a hostile bid
provides the foundation for successful collaboration.

In January 2007, MAN announced that it had with-
drawn its offer, which we welcomed.

In our view, a combination with another company should
be considered an opportunity, not a necessity. As we
stated before, Scania is very well managed and the most
profitable company in the European truck industry, with
excellent growth and earnings prospects.

As a significant owner with an industrial perspeciive,
we will continue to support Scania’s successful
development as a standalone company, but we will
naturally evaluate possible industrial partnerships and
combinations to strengthen Scania and also generate
incremental value for all of Scania's shareholders.

High activity within Operating Investments
After the buyout and delisting of Gambro, the company
is now being managed within our Operating Investments
business area, and we are implementing a number of
ambitious measures aimed at increasing the value of the
business. As planned, near-term performance has been
negatively affected by one-time costs associated with

the acquisition, the breakup of the company into three
independent entities, efforts associated with resolving the
import ban in the U.S, and further investments in product
development and new product launches.

After year-end, we increased the number of holdings
in the Operating Investments business area by signing an
agreement with Morgan Stanley Principal Investments
to acguire Molnlycke Health Care. Mdlnlycke is a global
company in advanced wound care and single-use surgical
products — two areas that we believe have very attractive
growth prospects. We also see very strong growth poten-
tial by adding new product areas and expanding in new
geographic markets.
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We intend to invest aggressively to further develop
Malnlycke Health Care from its strong platfarm by both
growing the company organically and by means of
acquisitions. Investments for the future may have a
negative effect on Malnlycke’s performance from a
short-term perspective.

Given strong, positive and underlying trends, the
positions of these companies and Investor’s extensive
knowledge and strong network in these sectors — though,
for example, our long-term work with AstraZeneca,
Gambro and some 30 small growth companies — we are
convinced that the investrments in Maélnlycke and Gambro
will generate attractive returns for our shareholders.

3 Scandinavia strengthened its position in 2006. We
were pleased to note that the company achieved 46
percent subscriber growth during the year and continuing
high revenue per user. It is important that 3 continues this
positive development trend in coming years.

Solid year for Private Equity

The focus of this business in 2006 was to rebuild the
portfolio, particularly within Investar Growth Capital, atter
all the realizations in 2004 and 2005. Activity was high
within EQT with the launch of two new funds in which
we both have substantial capital commitments.

Strategic focus 2007

Investor's high level of financial flexibility allows us to take
advantage of attractive investment opportunities. Our over-
all strategic priorities for 2007 remain the same as before:
to ensure that we have a mix of investments with attractive

Our Core Investments remain the
. | .

key value driver for Investor going

forward, but we'also have a clear

.. | T
ambition to grow our unlisted
investments. || - |

‘ R
|

return potential, and to manage holdings in the best possible
way, enabling them to become or remain best-in-class.
Our Core Investments remain the key value driver for
Investor going forward, but we also have a clear ambition
to grow our unlisted investments, since we believe that
value creation measures can be implemented more easily
in unlisted companies and provide Investor's sharehclders
with the full economic benefit of our activities, The
objective is to increase our share of unlisted investments to
approximately 25 percent of total assets within five years.

Risk-taking continues to be a hallmark for
Investor

After an eventful year, | want to express my appreciation
for all the hard work and accomplishments in all our
holdings which resulted in their strang operating
performance in 2006.

As an engaged and active owner, we encourage
companies to take risks in order to strengthen their long-
term competitive position. This includes investments in
R&D, penetrating new markets, making acquisitions and
taking other strategic actions. Focusing on the business
and making forward-looking investments has been a
hallmark for us thraughout our 90-year history and it will
continue to hold true for the future.

Borje Ekholm
President and Chief Executive Officer
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Owning and developing best-in-class companies

Vion

Business eanayek

pioJgenecatelatiactivell ongitermlietGraslovlinvestinglinfcompaniestwitbisolid
poteatialiiogvatielcreaticuandlapplynglolgexperencelknovledgeland]
Detworkitolmakelthenyoestzingclassy

ithemibestinzelass]

Goal - | To grow our net asset value, including reinvested dividends, in excess of market
’ ! cost of capital (risk-free interest rate plus a risk premium) over a business cycle.
The current average annual return objective is between 8 and 10 percent.
| .
\ I
L,, — — - - . 4 b — — [ —
Strateqy O Mefirtetn en ctveEie wilBefalcieagandllongitermlawnadwith

fcompositionfotlinvestients) siategidipiliegcy
BEDeveloplcompaniestolimake e WG iowIotgun istedfassets)

during that period.

GOAL FULFILLMENT IN 2006

»Investor achieved its financial goal over the past ten-year period. The average
growth in net asset value, including reinvested dividends, has been 10.23
percent. This can be compared with the risk-free interest rate plus risk premium,
which together amounted to an average of between 8 and 10 percent annually

Strategy

ATTRACTIVE COMPOSITION OF INVESTMENTS

Qur strategy is to create and maintain a composition of
investments with attractive return potential. We invest in
new companies with growth prospects and divest companies
that we believe can be developed better by new owners. We
aim to own companies in which we can apply and leverage
our experience, knowledge and global network.

DEVELOPING COMPANIES TO BECOME BEST-IN-CLASS
We develop and influence our investments to remain or
become best-in-class by focusing on the special needs of
each company, We develop z plan for long-term value
creation with abjectives for the company. We help create
boards and management teams with the appropriate expe-
rience and competence by taking an active role in board
nominations and providing access te our global network.

CLEAR AND LONG-TERM OWNER WITH

STRATEGIC INFLUENCE

Strateqic infiuence is required for implementing our value
creation pfans. This is accomplished by having a substantial
stake and active board role in each company. By creating

& clear agenda with our companies, our ownership role
becomes distinct and we can have a constructive, ongoing
dialogue with each company.

GROWING OUR UNLISTED ASSETS

We will continue to grow our unlisted investments because
our value creation measures in unlisted companies provide
opportunities for generating ungiue proprietary returns for
Investor’'s shareholders.
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Investor’s operations

investor's operations are conducted in three main business
areas: Core Investments, Operating Investments and
Private Equity Investments. Core Investments are global
listed companies representing 85 percent of Investor's total
assets today. Having a majority of listed investments is cen-
tral to our business meodel since it gives us financial flexibility
and allows us to have staying power during a company’s
long-term development. It alsc gives us the financial capac-
ity to act on emerging business opportunities. However,
we intend to grow our unlisted assets since they provide
us with the opportunity to create attractive, proprietary
returns for aur shareholders. Our goal is to increase the
percentage of unlisted investments to represent one fourth
of our assets within five years.

In agdition to our business areas, our organization,
global network and brand are strategically important
assets. Qur organization provides a structure in which the
business areas can operate, while our network provides
access to expertise and investment and divestment oppor-
tunities. Investor’s brand - what we stand for and who
we are — is affected by everything we do and is one of our
most vital assets, Our brand says who we are as an investor
and owner, as an employer, and as a responsible company
in society. Continuing investment in our brand, organiza-
tion and network are needed to develop our investments
and help us reach our goals and realize our vision.

DEVEEGPINGIBES ZIN-GIASSICOMBANIES

I
T . Right‘board and R
management

|
| Investments Divestments |
i 1

[ .
Value creation

[

Developing best-in-class companies requires boards and manage-
ments with the appropriate experience and competence. We take an
active role in board nominations and give our holdings access to our
glabal network, which can be used to source and recruit candidates.
By establishing a value creation plan, based on the company’s unique
circumstances, Investor’s cbjectives for the company are established,
as well as our view of how value can be created.

Investor’s core values

A strong and clear corporate culture is vital for achieving
our vision and goals. In 2006, a project was launched to
update and clarify the core values behind Investar's
corparate culture. This project is being continued in 2007.
Below is a brief summary of Investor's four core values:

B Create value: We create value in everything we do with
a long-term view and short-term impatience.

B Continuous improvement: We think forward — there is
always a better way.

B Contribute your view: We state, listen to and respect
different views. We encourage integrity, openness
and dialogue. When a decision is made, we take our
responsibility.

® Care for people: We are fair and open 1o one another.
We contribute to growth and success as individuals and
in teams, We are accountable for results.




Investor shares — Investor 2006

Investor shares

2006 was another strong year for the world’s stock
exchanges. For example, the Stockholm Stack Exchange
increased in value for the fourth consecutive year. The
positive performance of stock exchanges in 2006 was
driven by the strong growth of many of the world's
economies, among other factors. The economic upturn,
in combination with increased productivity in compa-
nies, also led to generally higher corporate profits. As

a whofe, Investor’s hoidings performed well, which

had an indirect positive impact on the price of investor
shares. The total return on Investor shares (share price
performance inciuding dividends) was 24 percent in
2006. During the same pericd, the SIX Return Index
increased by 28 percent. Since January 1, 2003,
Investor shares have risen by more than 200 percent.
As a consequence of Investor's strong performance in
2008, the poard proposes to increase the dividend by
almost 30 percent, from SEK 3.50 to SEK 4,50

per share.

Investor shares

The price of Investor’s B-share increased during 2006 from
SEK 139 to SEK 168, or 21 percent. During the same period
the price of Investor's A-share rose from SEK 138 to SEK
165, or 20 percent. The average annual total return on
Investor shares in the past cne, five, ten and 20 years has
been 24, 12, 12 and 16 percent, respectively.

Covariance between share price and

net asset value

Long-term growth of the net asset value provides the basis
for generating an attractive total return for Investor's share-
holders in the long run. The degree of covariance between
the share price and net asset value is affected by the market's
access to information and how it interprets it — both infor-
mation about the company and factors in the business envi-
ronment that might impact the valuation of the company.
During 2006, the correlation varied between 0.52 and 0.97
{(based on 50 days of data) for an average value of 0.81. This
is a relatively high correlation, indicating that Investor, as a
company, has high transparency, enabling the market to see
and react to changes in Investor's net asset value.

Risk and risk-adjusted return

When analyzing investment returns, the risk that a given
investment has involved should also be taken into account.
One measure of risk is volatility, the variation in a share's price,
for example, both in absolute terms and relative to the mar-
ket. High volatility indicates that a share’s price movements
have varied sharply. The table on the facing page shows the
volatility of investor shares over different periods. The
Stackholm Stock Exchange as a whale has lower volatility than
Investor's shares, which can be explained by the fact that the
exchange consists of a large number of companies. Over time,

the volatility of Investor shares has been relatively constant.
The Sharpe ratio is a measure of a share’s return in relation
ta its risk. A high Sharpe ratio indicates & high return in rela-
tion to the level of risk. The Sharpe ratio allows the compa-
rison of a risk-adjusted return with different types of assets
over 3 certain period of time. The table “Return and risk”
on the facing page shows the volatility and Sharpe ratio for
Investor shares over different time periods.

Turnover

The turnover of a company’s shares indicates how liquid the
shares are ~ that is, how much the share is traded. Investor's
most actively traded shares are B-shares, One method of
measuring turnover is to analyze the turnover rate, here
defined as the total number of traded shares as a percentage
of the total number of shares outstanding in the company.
During 2006, turnover in Investor shares totaled 706.9
million shares (593.8), of which 41.4 millian were A-shares
(37.2) and 665.5 million were B-shares (502.6). This
corresponded to a turnover rate of 92 percent (70}, com-
pared with 148 perceni (117) for the total turnover on the
Stockholm Stock Exchange. On average, 1.9 million {2.1)
Investor shares were traded daily.

Distribution policy and proposed dividend
Investor AB's distribution policy is to declare dividends attrib-
utable to a high percentage of dividends received from Care
Investments, as well as to make a distribution from other net
assets corresponding to a yield in line with the equity market.
Investor AB's goal is also to generate a steadily rising annual
dividend. The Board of Directars and the President propose a
dividend to shareholders of SEK 4.50 per share (3.50),
corresponding to SEK 3,452 m. {2,685) or 109 percent (111)
of dividends received in fiscal 2006.

Ownership structure
At year-end 2006, Investor's share capital 1otaled SEX 4,795
m., represented by 767 million shares, each with a par value
of SEK 6.25. The ownership structure has remained concen-
trated in general. In terms of numbers, the largest category
of shareholders is private investors, a total of 120,813 or 90
percent of the total number of owners. In terms of the per-
centage of shares held, institutional owners dominate with
87 percent of the shares being owned by 13,417 institutional
owners. The largest single sharehalder category is founda-
tions. The Wallenberg foundations jointly own 21.7 percent
of the share capital and 46.6 percent of the voting rights.
During the year the percentage of share capital held by
foreign shareholders rose significantly and is now 28 percent,
an increase of 8 percentage points, and their share of the
voting rights is now 14 percent. Foreign owners primarily
own B-shares. Owners in the U.S. and U.K. hold the largest
number of shares outside Sweden, or 11 percent and
8 percent, respectively.
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Investor's total return
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Return and risk

1yr 3 yrs 5 yrs 1¢yrs 20 yrs
Total return, % 24 181 bi 221 1,756
Annual total return, % 248 38 12 12 16
volatlity, % 27 22 29 29 32
Sharpe ratio 08 i62 035 036 _ 043

Structure of share capital on December 31, 2006

% of % of
Class of share  Number of shares  Mumber of votes capitat votes
At vole 311,690,844 311,690,844 406 87.2
8 110 vote 455,484,186 45548418 594 _ 128
Total 767,175,030 357,239,262 100.0 100.0

Shareholders statistics according to VPC

on December 31, 2006"

Number Shares as % of
Number of shares o1 shareholders share capital
1= 2,000 121,653 6
2,001- 20,600 11,209 8
20,001~ 44,000 585 2
40,001- 86,000 297 F
80,001~ 200,000 216 4
200,001 400,000 99 4
400,001- 2,000,000 116 14
2,000,001 - 4,000,000 29 i1
4,000,001 - 8,000,000 15 11
8,000,001 - 10 _ 38
134,230 100
1) Directly registered or registered in the name of nominees.
Investor’s 15 largest shareholders listed by
voting rights on December 31, 2006"
12/31 2006 12/31 2005
% of % of % of % of
votes  capital votes  capital
Knut and Alice Wallenberg Foundation 400 186 400 j8.6
SEB Foundation 4.5 23 49 2.3
Marianne and Marcus Wallenberg
Foundation a1 19 35 1.6
Skandia Liv 33 25 39 30
Swedbank Robur’s mutual funds 36 37 35 3.8
Nordea’s mutual funds 27 15 37 2.0
Marcus and Amalia Wallenberg
Memorial Fund 26 12 26 1.2
Custodial Trust Company 19 o9 19 0.9
Alecta 15 28 09 2.4
IP Morgan Chase Bank 1.4 26 1.1 1.9
13 [+ X 1.6 1.1
Third Avenue Value and Funds Series 1.3 0.6 0.1 0.1
AMF Pension 1.2 24 1.5 4.1
Third AP Fund 1.0 0.8 1.0 08
558 CL Omnibus AC OMOC7 (15 pct) 09 ER 09 27

1) Directly reqgistered, or regstered in the name of nominees, with VPC.

Distribution of shareholders {% of votes

Banks/insurance

companies 10%  Corporations 2%

Munual funds &

stock funds 4%%
Frivate . K\

investors 10%

Foreign share-
holders 14%

Funds and
foundations 60%
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Development of the Group

Business activity was on a high level in Investor during
2006. Major events within the Core Investments
bustness area included Investor's and EQT's buyout
and delisting of Gambro on the Stockholm Stock
Exchange. The Gambro transaction - the first invest-
ment made by the new Business Development unit

- was then transferred to Investor's Operating invest-
ments business area, WM-data was sold to the British
company LogicaCMG, a merger that was industrially
right for WM-data since it provides access to an
international platform, an offshore delivery capability
and global outsourcing operaticns. During the year,
Electrolux spun out its business in Musgvarna, which is
now a new Core Investment for Investor. Husqvarna
made a number of acquisitions in 2006, including
Gardena. Investor increased its ownership in
Electrotux, Husgvarna and Scania.

Financial
Investments
Husgvarna

Saab \ ,—OMX
Electrolux (Y L
Operating N . Stl
investments '
%\\
Scania - \\

Unhsted Listed

13V

* Ericsson
Private Equity 2006
fnvestments  WEfedEs - LT
.-'.’ 7
AstraZeneca Atlas Copco

ARB

2006 - an eventful year for Investor

During the latter part of 2006, MAN's hostile bid for Scania
attracted considerable attention and was withdrawn in the
beginning of 2007, There are long-term industrial merits

in combining Scania’s and MAN's operations, provided it is
executed in the right way.

The focus of the Private Equity business area in 2006
has been to rebuild the portfolio, particularly within
Investor Growth Capital afier the large number of realiza-
tions in 2004-2005.

Investor’s net asset value increased by SEK 25 bn,
during the year and amounted to SEK 159 bn. (SEK 208 per
share) on December 31, 2006. During the year SEK 2.7 bn.
in dividends was paid to shareholders and net income for
the year totaled SEK 28 bn. At year-end, Investor had a net
cash position of SEK 0.4 bn., compared with net debt of
SEK 0.2 bn. on December 31, 2005.

Core Investments

2006 will go down in history as the most profit-rich year
to date for Investor's Core Investments. The business area
had an impact of SEK 30 bn. on income in 2006 and all
Core Investments, except AstraZeneca, had a positive
effect on the net asset value. The total return for the Core
Investments business area was 26 percent in 2006. The
positive performance of Core Investments was attributable
mainly to strong global demand combined with stream-
lined operations, advanced positions in product develop-
ment and new product launches.

In the second quarter, Indap (in which (nvestor owns
49% and EQT 51%} acquired Gambro. At the time of the
acquisition, Investor had an ownership stake of 20 percent
in Gambro and received SEK 7.8 bn. for its shares in the
company. The largest investments in 2006 were in
Electrolux (before and after the spin-off of Husgvarna) and
in Husgvarna. Investor’s apinion is that the change pro-
gram being conducted within Electrolux will create value
going forward and that Husqvarna's growth strategy as an
independent company will have attractive return potential.

Investor’s stake in WM-data was sold to LogicaCMG,
which paid for the shares in cash and LogicaCMG shares.

Operating Investments

Operating Investments had an effect of SEK -1.9 bn. on
income for the year, of which SEK -0.7 bn. was attribut-
able to Indap/Gambro and SEK -1.2 bn. to 3 Scandinavia.
These holdings are the two largest companies in the busi-
ness area, and despite their negative effect on income,
they are following plan. Regarding Gambro’s three areas
of operation, the absolute majority of their negative
impact on income consisted of a one-time cost related

to inventory resulting from the distribution of the surplus
value made in conjunction with the acquisition of Gambro.
On December 31, 2006, 3 Scandinavia had 671,000 sub-
scribers and average revenue per user {ARPU) continued

to increase during the year from an already high level, The
forecast remains that 3 Scandinavia will reach breakeven
(EBITDA after deducting all customer acquisition and reten-
tion costs) on a monthly basis by 2008 at the latest.

Private Equity Investments

Investor Growth Capital’s portfolio is in a rebuilding phase,
which explains the limited change in value during 2006.
Underlying value creation was positive during the year,
although the value of holdings, calculated in Swedish kro-
nor, was negatively affected by the weakening of the U.S.
dollar. The business area had a total impact of SEK 664 m.
on Investor’s income that was attributable mainly to EQT's
strong performance, which was due to the divestment of

>>
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Overview of net asset value

Core Investments, purchases and sales

Purchases, SEK m. Amount
Electrolux B 1911
Husqvarna 207
SEB 515
Scania o 492
3,125

Sales, SEK m.
Electrolux A %1
Gambro A 7,779
Husgvarna 2
Scania 241
SEB 521
WM-data 193
10,530

Trend of earnings, Operating Investments |

SEK m. 2006 2005
Net sales 699 659
Costs of services sold -693 -714
Operating costs -51 -8
Share of results of associated companies -1.872 = -1,508
Net result -1,917 -1,571

Ownership % 12/31 2006 12/31 2005

Jgg_pital) SEKSshare SEK m. SEKishare SEK m.
Core investments
SEB 17.9 35 26,735 26 20,053
Ericsson 5.0 29 22,356 29 22,094
Atlas Copco 15.0 28 21,689 22 16,672
ABB 7.6 26 20,375 17 12,766
AstraZeneca 3.4 25 18,959 26 20,016
Scania 1.0 14 10,783 8 6,116
Electrofux P11 6 4,699 4] 4,892
Saab AB 19.8 6 4,539 5 3,674
Husqvarna " 11.1 5 3,512 - -
OMX 10.7 2 1,625 2 1,418
Gambro - - - 7 5,940
Wh-data - - - Z 1.778
Total 176 135,274 150 115,419
Operating Investments
Indap/Gambro 49 5 3,476 - -
The Grand Group 100 2 1,477 z 1,505
3 Scandinavia 40 1 668 » 1 608
Land and real estate 100 0 302 1 310
Other Q 58 0 9%
Total 8 5,981 4 2,522
Private Equity Investments
EQT 12 8.872 12 9,106
investor Growth Capjtal 8 6,309 8 6,372
Total 20 15181 20 15,478
Financial Investments
Active portfolio management 2 1,257 1 644
Fund investments 1 786 1 681
Other 1 965 0 55
Total 4 3,008 2 1,380
Other assets and liabilities =1 ~540 -1 -631
Total assets 207 158,904 175 134,168
Net cash/debt 1 416 ¢} -223
Total net asset value 208 159,320 175 133,945

1} Husgvarna was spun out of Electrolux durning the year

Trend of earnings, Private Equity Investments |

2} Refers to Investor's share of Indap/Gambra’s equity on November 30, 2006. The amount includes the
accumnulated acquisition value, as well as income and equity items for the period

3} Reters to Investor's share of 3's equity on November 30, 2006 after adjustments in the tnvestar Group
and Investor's shareholder loans 10 3 totaling SEK 437 m. (145). Due 10 a change in reperting period,
the net asset vatue for 2005 was adjusted down by SEK 235 m.

4} Includes the holding in LogicaCMG.

Trend of earnings, Investor Group

SEK m. 2006 2005
Change in value 28,106 43,663
Dividends 317 2,415
Operating costs -576 -548
Qther income items -2,215 -1,672
Net income 28,486 43,858
Dividends paid —2,685 -1,726
Other 426 -38
Change in net asset value 25,375 42,094
. i
Trend of earnings, Core Investments |
SEX m. 2006 2005
Change in value 27,260 37,424
Dividends 2,852 2,163
Operating costs =170 160 _
Efféct on'income 29,942 39,427

SEK m. 2006 2005
Change in value ¢ncl. dividends)
EGT 1,276 5,296
Investor Growth Capital -408 945
Operating costs —204 _ =219
Effect on income 664 6,022
Private Equity investments .
SEK m. Purchases Sales
£QT 2,843 4,320
Investor Growth Capital 1,647 1,310
Total 4,490 5,630
EQT's funds j
nvestor’s  Total capital  Investor's share of
Start year share of fund commitments capitat commitments
EGT I» 1995 18% 3,260 587
EGT 1in 1998 18% 6,193 1,103
EQT iln 2001 32% 18,097 5 801
EQT ivn 2004 19% 22,621 4,219
EQTV 2006 12% 38,456 4,592
EQT Gpportunity 2005 26% 3,363 860
EQT Denmark® 1998 18% 1,234 217
EQT Finland® 1859 32% 595 188
EQT Mezzanine 2003 17% 1,673 276
EQT Asian 2000 62% 2,241 1,379
EQT Greater China Il 2006 37% _ 3747 4,378
Total - - 101,480 20,600
1} Fully invested

Purchases and sales, Investor Growth Capital

SEK m.

4,000

3,000

2,000

\—_/

02 03 04 05 06

1,000

¢

= Purchases and new share subscrptions
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Plantasjen and the listing of Symrise, among other transac-
tions. The majority of the year’s investments and divest-
ments were made within EQT, Investor Growth Capital
made approximately 20 investments and a limited number
of exits in 2008,

Financial Investments

The very strong performance of Investor’s active portfolio
management unit was the driver behind value creation in
the Financial Investments business area during 2006.
Financial Investments mainly comprise Investor's active
portfolio management activities, shares in LogicaCMG
(received as partial payment in connection with the sale
of WM-data), and the Rational Asset Management hedge
fund (RAM). The business area had an effect of SEK

258 m. onincame in 2006,

Leverage

Investor further strengthened its financial flexibility dur-

ing 2006. At year-end 2006, Investor had a marginal net
cash position of SEK 0.4 bn., compared with marginal net
debt of SEK 0.2 bn. at the beginning of the year. investor's
strategy is to maintain high financial flexibility to allow the
company to act on business opportunities when they arise.
The ceiling for Investor's leverage (net debt as a percentage

of total assets) has been set at a maximum of 20-25 per-
cent, which may only be exceeded on a short-term basis.
Furthermore, in view of the present tax situation and port-
folio, there are no tax advantages for the parent company,
Investor AB, in using high leverage.

Investor has a short-term and long-term rating from
Standard & Poor’s and Moody's. A credit rating is a relative
assessment of a company’s ability to fulfill its payment
obligations and financial commitments. Rating reviews take
place each year between Investor's management and the
rating institutions.

Well-balanced mix of investments

The total value of Investor’s holdings amounted to SEK

159 bn. on December 31, 2006. Eighty-seven percent
comprised listed investments and 13 percent were unlisted.
Core Investments represented 85 percent of total assets,
while Operating Investments and Private Equity
Investments accounted for 4 percent and 10 percent,
respectively, The largest investments in terms of value were
SEB, Ericsson and Atlas Copco, which together accounted
for 45 percent of Investor's total assets. Investor's sector
exposure was as follows on December 31, 2006: Engineer-
ing 39 percent, Technology 20 percent; Financial Services
18 percent, Healthcare 17 percent and Other 6 percent.

Consolidated net debt

SEK bn. %
30 20
20 —
10
10
0 0

~10

2003 2004 2005 2006

B Net debt Leverage

Investor’s credit rating

Long-term Short-term
Rating institution rating Qutlook rating
Standard & Poor's Ad- Stable K-1/A-14+
Moody's AZ Positive P-1

Total assets per sector

Other 6%

Healthcare

17%
Financial
Services 18%

Technology 20%

Engineenng 39%
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Business areas
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Investments)

investor’s operations are conducted in three main busi-
ness areas: Core Investments, Operating Investments
and Private Equity Investments, Core Investments are
listed companies, while Operating Investments and
Private Equity Investments are mainly unlisted holdings.

Each business area has a different focus, which creates a
flexible platform for taking advantage of new investment
opportunities in several geographic markets, growth stages
and sectors. Having the majority of our holdings in listed
companies gives us financial fiexibility and the staying power
to participate in a company’s industrial development. It also
allows us to take advantage of attractive business opportuni-

ties. This is a central feature of our business model. However,

we are purposely seeking to increase our share of unlisted
holdings because unlisted companies allow us to generate
proprietary returns to our shareholders, An unlisted environ-
ment can also be more appropriate for some companies, or
for a certain stage of a company's development.

All business areas have the basic goal to generate attrac-
tive returns and develop their holdings to remain or become
best-in-class. Another common feature is we invest in com-
panies in which we have the opportunity to utilize our experi-
ence, knowledge and network, and take advantage of the
synergies between our different business areas.

In addition to these three main business areas, Financial
Investments, consisting of Investor’s active portfolio manage-
ment and other business activities, constitutes a separate
business area.

Listed investments

CORE INVESTMENTS

Core Investments are global listed companies with strong
market positions that are based in Northern Europe. Since
they are quoted on stock exchanges, the assets are liguid

and the business area has a relatively low risk profile and

high financial flexibility. With listed holdings, the business
area is also directly impacted by the general stock market

environment in Sweden as well as global markets. Our invest-
ment horizon is long and the business area generates returns
in the form of value creation and dividends. A high percent-
age of the dividends received from the Core Investments

are distributed to Investor’s shareholders. The business area’s
return objective is to exceed the risk-free interest rate plus a
risk premium over a business ¢ycle. The return is currently 8 to
10 percent. Read more about the business area on page 12.

Unlisted investments

Uniisted investments have limited liquidity and therefore
involve a higher risk than listed companies, The return objec-
tive is therefore higher. The goal is {0 grow unlisted invest-
ments over time, primarily within the Operating Investments
business area.

OPERATING INVESTMENTS

Operating Investments consist of investments in which we
have a controlling interest or minority position with
significant influence. The focus is on medium-size companies
headquartered in Northern Europe that operate in diifer-
ent industries and have the potential for long-term orgartic
growth. Investments are often purposefully made with high
leverage which, in combination with limited liquidity in the
holding, makes the risk relatively higher than investments in
the Core Investments business area. Returns from Operating
Investments are in the form of value creation and dividends.
The business area's return objective is to exceed the risk-free
interest rate plus a risk premium over a business cycle,
currently 12 to 15 percent per year. Read more about
Operating Investments on page 20.

PRIVATE EQUITY INVESTMENTS

Different types of investments are made in the Private Equity
business area. Through EQT, an independent organization,
investments are made in mature companies for the purpose
of implementing some type of restructuring or change process
that creates positive value for the company.

The business area also makes minority investments in
young growth companies through the wholly owned sub-
sidiary Investor Growth Capital. Investments are made in the
£).5., Northern Europe and Asia where we are clearly focused
on the technolegy and healthcare sectors. General trends in
these markets, as well as currency fluctuations - especially in
USD and EUR — affect this part of the Private Equity
Investments business area.

Holdings in Private Equity Investmentis are valued primar-
ily through multiple and/or third-party valuations. Returns are
realized either through initial public offerings or by selling the
halding to an industrial company or financial player. The
business area’s return objective is to achieve an average
annualized return of at least 20 percent on realized invest-
ments {IRR), before administrative expenses. Read more about
Private Equity Investments on page 24.
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SINIWLSIANE JHOD

Core Investments

Core investments are global, listed companies with
strong positions in their markets. Investor has ten
Core Investments today: ABB, AstraZeneca, Atlas
Copco, Electrotux, Ericsson, Husgvarna, OMX, Saab,
Scania and SEB. We have worked closely with our
Core Investments for many years and have therefore
had the time to build up extensive knowledge about
the companies and their industries. Qur objective for
the Core Investments is that they generate a return
in excess of market cost of capital over a business
cycle.

Substantial owner with strategic influence
One of the cornerstones of our business model is to have
sufficient influence in arder to contribute effectively to the
development of the Core investments, Therefore, we are
normally the largest or second biggest owner. Qur com-
mitment in companies is channeled mainly thorough board

waork. Ensuring that boards have the appropriate compo-
sition is therefore one of our mast important tasks, We
nominate board members on the basis of the company’s
present and future strategy and an evaluation of the board
and the campany's performance. We strive to have at least
two board representatives who are closely associated with
Investor in each Care Investment.

Being able to recruit and retain high-performance
managements and boards over time is a critical aspect.

In a small market with competition from private equity
companies and international players, it is essential to offer
competitive remuneration programs. To ensure this, we
continuously evaluate the remuneration programs in the
Core Investments. We feel it is valuable that a substantial
part of the total remuneration is variable, in which part is
connected to long-term share-price parformance and part
is based on operational goals. A substantial percentage of
variable remuneration also enables financial flexibility since
the company reduces its fixed costs. A connection between
long-term share-price performance and remuneration is an
effective incentive for management to focus on long-range
value creation in companies.

In our view, companies and their shareholders benefit
when board members use part of their fees to acquire
shares in the company. We also believe that a company
should consider establishing remuneration programs that
link board compensation to share-price performance in the
long term.

|dentifying plans for value creation

Investor’s board representatives in the Core Investments
are supported by analysts who monitcr the companies,
tneir competitors and markets. This cooperation between

Goal
The return is to exceed the risk-free interest

Core Investments,
percentage of total assets ABB

Impact of Core Investments on income, 1/1-12/31 2006

rate plus a risk premium over a business cycle,
Currently, 8 to 10 percent.

Strategy

0 Develop and implement value creation plans
In companies

O Ensure that we are a substantial owner with
strategic influence

Investment strategy
To invest in global, listed companies with strong market
positions in the financial services, healthcare, technology
and engineering sectors.

Goal fulfillment
The business area has met the requirement for an
annualized return of 10 percent over the past ten years.

IR .30
25% Sl ] ;7!
Atlas Copeo _ 5,420
Scania | Wt
Gambro ™ | WK
SAAR 95!
Husquarna s
1) Refers to the period 1/1-6/9 2006
Electrolux | 656 2) Refers 1o the period 6/13-12/31 2006
Ericssan N 3) Refers to the perind 1/1-11/24 2006
OMX | IEEN]
WM-data 3 ] 179
=510 [ AstraZeneca
=170 [ Costs

-1,000 1,000 3000 5000 7000 9,000 SEK m.

in 2006, Core Investments had an impact of SEK 29,9 bn. on
Investor’s net income for the year, The above diagram shows that
all Core Investments had a positive effect on income during the
year, except AstraZeneca. ABB, followed by SEB, Atlas Copco and
Scania, had the greatest impact.
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board representatives and Investor's analysts takes place in
what we call business teams. To contribute to the devel-
opment of the Core Investments in a structured manner,
we develop a value creation plan for each company that
includes growth and profitability goals. Goals for growth
are set by analyzing a company’s potential for expansion
organically and by means of acquisitions. Profitability goals
are analyzed through operaticnal benchmarking of the
companies against competitors in which measures for long-
term profitability improvements are identified. Identifying

important issue. The Core Investments should have a
capital structure that allows value-creating investments

and also gives them some freedom of action in acquisition

situations. In cases when the company has surplus capital

that cannot be invested for an attractive return, this capital

is to be distributed to the shareholders.

A company’s industrial structure is also analyzed in the

value creation plan. In some situations, value creation can
be achieved by expanding or streamlining the company's
structure.

an optimal capital structure for each company is another

Implementing value creation plans

Goals and their follow-up on the basis of our value-
creating plan is a centrat aspect of our dialogue with

the board and management ¢f each Core Investment,
Through continuous and relentless foliow-up of the plan,

Value creation plan

| ¢ It _ we can evaluate each company's performance and the

gm St — - work of the board and management, allowing us, as an
o Pratitabitty - owner, to create value in the Core Investments.
_ : With value creation plans as our platform, our ambi-
— - tien is to make all our Core Investments best-in-class
— - within their industries and markets, However, continu-
Tresert Ve st e ?ﬁ#ﬁﬁl‘n'{; ously analyzing the companies and their sectors is just as
value exclaing srucu dnier important as driving value creation agendas. Since our

Original market value : . . \
@ Increase in value as a result of value-creating measures goal !S always o OWH companies Wl?h potenfual fpr value
creation, we may divest a campany if we believe it can be

A plan for value-creating measures is established on the basis of each company’s better developed by a New owner,

unique situaticn.

QVERVIEW OF CORE INVESTMENTS

CORE INVESTMENTS

Number of Ownership Ownership  Share of total ~ Market value Market value Net purchases Total Market
shares® Capital? Votes? assets SEK/share SEK m. {+}salesi-) return®  value, SEK m.
12/31 2006  12/31 2006, % 12131 2006, %  12/33 2006, % 12/31 2006 12/31 2006 SEK m. 2006 2006, % 12/31 2005
Engineering
Atlas Copco 94,364,913 15.0 211 13 28 21,69 +32 16,672
ABB 166,330,142 7.6% 7.6% 13 26 20,375 +61 12,766
Stania 22,006,757 1.0 20.0 7 14 10,783 +251 +75 6,116
Electrolux 34,365,071 1.1 27.6 3 6 4,699 +1,860% +45 4,892¢
Husqvarna 32,827,071 131 29.2 2 5 3,512 +205 +35
38 79 61,060 40,446
Technology
Ericsson 810,393,516 5.0 19.4 14 29 22,356 +3 22,094
Saab AB 21,611,925 198 38.0 3 8 4,539 +26 3,674
Whi-data - - - - - - —1,936 +10 1,778
17 35 16,695 27,546
Financial Services
123,027,895 17.9 182 i7 35 26,735 -6 +36 20,053
OMX 12,850,507 10.7 10.7 1 2 1,625 +22 1,418
18 37 28,360 21,471
Healthcare
AstraZenaca 51,587,810 347 347 12 25 18,959 =3 20,016
Gambro - - - - - - -7,779 +33 5,940
12 25 18,959 25 956
Total 85 176 135,274 -7,405 115,419

1) Holdings, including any shares on loan.

2) Calculated in accordance with the disclosure regulations of the Swedish Industry
and Stock Exchange Committee (NBK), unless specified otherwise.

ost actively traded class of share, with the exception of Atlas Copco. Figures
for Husqvarna as of June 13, 2006. Figures for Gambro up to June 5, 2006
Figures for Whd-data up to Cctober 41, 2008

4) Calculated in accordance with Swiss disclosure regulations.

5) Of which SEK 1,483 m. refers to investments made in the company before the
spin-off of Husgvarna,

6) Refers to Electrolux, inctuding Qutdoor Products, which was listed on June 13,
2006 and renamed Husgvarna.

7) Calculated in atcordance with Britisn disciosure regulauons.

3
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Core Investments in practice

WM-datam

WM.DATA TODAY

In the fall of 2006, Investor sotd its holding in WM-data

to LogicaCMG, WM-data is now part of the British
LogicaCMG Group, and together, they form one of the

20 largest providers of IT services in the world. In recent
years, WM-data has developed to become the leader in the
Nordic market with a broad range of design and [T-related
products and services,

HISTORICAL BACKGROUND
WM-data was established in 1969 with the business
concept to offer products and systems to effectively inte-
grate information technology and business processes. In
the beginning, WM-data was a specialized IT consulting
company. However, through acquisitions, the company
gradually expanded its offering to also include services in
the facility management, administration and data services
areas. In 1985, WM-data was listed on the Stockholm
Stock Exchange and the company has acquired approxi-
mately 200 companies since its IPO. During the recession
in the beginning of the 2000s, WM-data focused on its
core business and divested its persenal computer business,
among other operations. Emerging out of the recession in
a stronger position, the company acquired complementary
companies to increase its business volume and improve
capacity utilization. In 2004, WM-data made a substantial
acquisition, buying Nove Group (Finland). In 2005, the
company further strengthened its position by acquiring
Atos Origin's Nordic operations. At the time WM-data was
combined with LogicaCMG@, the company had about 9,000
employees and sales in the range of SEK 10,000 m.

WHAT DID INVESTOR CONTRIBUTE?
Together with WM-data’s management and the compa-
ny's other owners, Investor helped build WM-data into
the leading IT services company in the Nordic market,
Investor first invested in WM-data in 1994 and the com-

Value creation plan for WM-data

_- Combination _, _
- with
— Afquistions, — logxaCMG — _
. Organ with debt
—_ —— —Lnancng
. growth
— Strearr’ rng —
and cost-
J— —— reduction —
program
Ong:nal Value after value- Value after
market Creat.g measures, completed
vatue enchuding structusat plan lor value

. changes creabon
Original market value

®m Increase in value as a result of valueCreating measures

pany became a Core Investment, During 2002, Investor
increased its stake in WM-data to 18 percent of the capital
and 31 percent of the votes. A major restructuring
program was launched in 2002 to deal with the recession
prevailing at the time. To create the right platform for
building WM-data into a best-in-class company, a number
of the company’s business activities needed to be stream-
lined and restructured. This work involved both operational
and structural changes that doubled WM-data‘s margins in
the final process. Streamlining measures were implement-
ed to increase the number of reusable solutions, and
initiatives were carried out to increase growth within the
most attractive business segments. WM-data’s industrial
structure was also reviewed, and as a result, WM-data
grew by more than 50 percent between 2002 and 2005
by making two major acquisitions at the same time as it
divested unprofitable and non-strategic operations.
WM-data was also one of the first IT services companies to
implement acquisitions with debt financing,

The next step in the value creation plan for WM-data
required not only internationalization, but also offshoring
to a large extent. To realize this quickly, WM-data needed
to be part of a larger organization that could complement
the company’s operations with these competitive
advantages.

RESULT

The natural step was an industrial combination since the
board could not see WM-data establishing itseif interna-
tionally solely through organic growth. LogicaCMG made
a public offer for WM-data in the summer of 2006. As a
member of the LogicaCMG Graup, WM-data has gained
access to LogicaCMG’s global delivery capability, offshore
centers and global outsourcing operations, which
strengthen WM-data’s competitiveness and will ultimately
benefit shareholders in the long term. The new group
employs around 40,000 in 41 countries. Investor’s
remaining stake in the combined company is currently
managed as a financial investment. Investor invested a
total of SEK 1 bn. in WM-data and sald its shareholding
to LogicaCMG for about SEK 1.9 bn. The divestment
generated a return that met the return objective for
Investor’s Core investments. In Investor’s view, the
LogicaCMG transaction was industrially right as well

as attractive for all of WM-data's shareholders.
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SEB is a North Furopean financial group for 400,000 corparate cus-
tomers and institutions, and 5 million private customers. SEB has local
presence in the Nordic and Battic couniries, Germany, the Ukraine and
Russia. Approximately half of SEB's customers use the Internet for their
banking transactians, The Group is represented in some 20 countries
around the worlg and has a staff of about 20,000.

SEB operates within retail and private banking, merchant banking,
investment banking, asset management and life insurance. SEB
celebrated 150 years of operations in 2006.

Key figures 2004 2005 2006
Total operating income, SEK bn. 29.9 342 387
Operating profit 10.0 11.2 15.6
Net profit after 1ax 7.4 84 126
Earnings per share, SEK 10.83 12.58 1872
Dividend per share, SEK 4.35 3.7% 6.00
Total assets, SEK bn. 1.607 1,880 1,934
Total capital ratio, % 10.29 10.83 11.47
Assets under management, SEK bn. 886 1,118 1,262
Book equity, SEK bn. 51.7 56.7 67.3
Market capitalization, SEK bn. 904 115.0 1493
Number of employees 17,772 18,848 19,672

SEB IN 2006: Due to continuing high demand and strong financial
markets, SEB's business volumes and revenues rose substantially,
despite stiff competition. Retail banking in the Baltic countries, and
SEB's life insurance business, were the units delivering the best results
relative 1o previous years.

During the year, SEB launched the SEB Way program 1o achieve
operational excellence in all units of the bank by integrating businesses
and streamlining processes.

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF SEB: To continue its positive development, it
is impartant for SEB to focus on implementing the SEB Way program to
achieve higher cost efficiency. Another centrat issue will be to improve
the profitability of cperations in Germany. SEB’s present position in
Eastern Europe, along with the market’s future potential, provide
opportunities for profitable growth in this region. These prospects,
1ogether with continuing favorable market conditions, provide a solid
platform for SEB to achieve additional strong growth.
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investor's holding in SEB

Share capital: 17.9%

Voting rights: 18.2%

Market value of holding: SEK 26,735 m.
Serving on the board are the following pecple
from Investor's management or board!

Jacob Wallenberg (Vice Chairman)

Chairrnan: Marcus Wallenberg

President and CEQ: Annika Falkengren

www.seb.se
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Ericsson is a world-leading provider of telecommunications equipment
2nd related services. More than B0C customers in 175 countries utilize
Ericsson’s network eguipment. The company’s customers are mobile
and fixed network operators, Ericsson is ane of the few companies
worldwide that can offer end-10-end sclutions for all major mebile
communication standards. As of 2007, Ericsson is organized in three
business units; Networks, Global Services and Multimedia.

Key tigures 2004 2005 2006
Net sales, SEK bn. 1320 151.8 177.8
Operating income 267 331 358
Qperating margin, % 202 218 20.2
Net income after tax 17.5 243 264
Earnings per share, SEK L1 1.53 1.65
Dividend per share, 5EK 0.2% 045 .50
Book equity, SEK bn. 80.4 104.7 120.1
Equityfassets ratio, % 43 S0 56
Market capitalization, SEK bn. 3426 440.7 446.1
MNumber of employees 50,534 56,055 63,781

ERICSSON IN 2006: During the year, Ericsson continued to strengthen
its market-Teading pesition in mobile infrastructure at the same time

as the company’s profitability was the highest in the industry. Rebust
growth in Global Services was combined with strong performance in
the Networks business area. The key assets acquired from Marconi's
telecom business in 2006 were successfully integrated, which has aiso
given Ericsson a significant position in fixed netwaorks. The proposed
acquisition of the IP-router company Redback Networks in the U.5.
strengthens this position further.

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF ERICSSON: The telecom equipment industry
was consolidated during the year as several of Ericsson's competitors
merged. Despite this, Ericsson consolidated its leading position, in terms
of both profitability and growth, and remains the largest company in the
industry. In addition to the satisfactery development of its mobile systems
business, strong growth in the services sector and the successful integra-
tion of Marconi have strengthened and broadened Ericsson’s position for
the future. The acquisition of Redback, whose primary product is IP Edge
routers, complements Ericssan’s product portfolio in converged fixed and
mobile networks in an exceflent way, During 2007, it is important for
Ericsson to have a cost-effective organization and to leverage the growth
opportunities afforded by the company’s increasingly widening product
and service offerings.
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investor's holding in Ericsson

Share capital: 5.0%

Voling rights: 19.4%

Market value of holding: SEK 22,356 m.
Serving on the board are the following people
from investor's management or board:

Brje Ekholm

Chairman: Michael Treschow

President and CEQ: Carl-Henric Svanberg
WWW.Ericsson.com
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Atlas Copco is a global industrial group headquartered in Stockholm.
The Group operates through a number of divisions within three busi-
ness areas: Compressor Technigue, Construction and Mining Technigque
and Industrial Technique.

Key figures® 2005 2006
Sales, SEK m. 42,205 50,512
Operating income 6,938 9,203
Operating margin, % 16.4 18.2
Net profit after tax® 6,581 15,373
Earnings per share, SEK? 10.43 24.48
Dividend per share, SEK 425 44750
Book equity, SEK m. 25,808 32,708
Equity/assets ratio, % 47 39
Market capitalization, SEK bn. 107.4 138.9
Number of employees 22,578 25,900

1) Due to structural changes in the Group, financial infarmation for 2004 is nat
comparable with figures for 2005 and 2006.

2) Including operaticns that were being divested

3) Of which the dividend for 2008, SEK 4.75 per share, and an extra distribution of
SEK 40 per share through mandatary redernption.

ATLAS COPCO IN 2006: Atlas Copco noted a record year in terms
of sales and earnings as a result of strengthened market positions in
cormbination with structural demand from China, India, Russia and
other developing countries, and a strong global economy in general.
Due to the Group’s strong cash flow and successful divestrent of its
Rental Service business, Atlas Copco enjoyed high financial flexibility
for making investments and acquisitions and distributing capital to
shareholders.

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF ATLAS COPCO: Atlas Copco is a very well
managed company with world-leading market positions and a strong
corporate culture. Compared with its international competitors, all of
Atlas Copco's business areas are best-in-class. Maintaining this status
is vital for Atlas Copco's future value creation and its ability to achieve
continuing strong growth, both organicaily and by means of acquisi-
tions. Given the company's high and stable cash flow generation, it
also important for Atlas Copca to have an efficient capital structure.
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Investor's holding in Atlas Copco
Share capital: 15.0%

Vating rights: 21.1%

Market value of holding: SEK 21,691 m.
Serving on the board are the following people
from Investor's management or board:
Sune Carlsson (Chairman),

Jacob Wallenberg (Vice Chairman) and
Grace Reksten Skaugen

Chairman: Sune Carlsson

President and CEQ: Gunnar Brock

www.atlascopco.com

ABB is a global leader in power and automation technolegies that
enable utility and industry customers to impraove their perfarmance
while lowering environmental impact. The ABB Group of campanies
operates in around 100 countries with Europe, the United States and
Asia being the most important markets.

Key figures 2004 2005 2006
Sales, USD m. 20,610 22,442 24,412
Operating income 1,046 1,742 2,586
Operating margin, % 5.1 7.8 10.6
Net income after tax -35 735 1,350
Earnings per share, USD -0.02 0.36 0.63
Dividend per share, CHF a g.12 0.24
Book equity 2,530 3,142 6,038
Equity/assets ratio, % 10 14 24
Market capitalization, SEK bn. 772 159.4 267.5
Number of employees 102,500 104,000 108,000

ABB IN 2006: During the year, orders increased by 22 percent in
local currencies and ABB's operating margin was the highest in the
company's history. Contributing te these results were internal improve-
ments to operationai perfermance and strong global industrial demand
for investments in infrastructure, power grid refiabitity, industrial
productivity and energy efficiency. The capital base was improved
considerably during 2006, due to ABB's strong earnings performance
and the conversion of a canvertible bond.

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF ABB: ABB is more profitable than ever,
thanks 1o its focus cn improvements 1o operational performance and
cost and risk management, With leading positions in all major markets
around the world, ABB has been able to take advantage of the strong
business climate. Selective acquisitions, continuing investments in R&D
and operational improvements, together with increased industrial
efficiency and growing environmental awareness, position ABB well for
profitable growth in the future.
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Investoar's holding in ABB

Share capital: 7.6%

Vaoting rights: 7.6%

Market value of holding: SEK 20,375 m.
Serving on the board are the following people
from lnvestor's management or board:

Jacob Wallenberg

Chairman: Jlrgen Dormann

President and CEQ: Fred Kindle

www.abb.com
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AstraZeneca is one of the world’s leading pharmaceutical companies
focused on research in medicines and pharmaceuticals in six important
areas of medical need: cancer, cardiovascular, gastrointestinal, infec-
tion, neuroscience, and respiratory and inflammation. The company’s
products are available in more than 100 countries with the United
States, Europe and fapan being the most important markets. Customers
are in bath primary and specialist healthcare,

Key figures 2004 2005 2006
Sates, USD m, 21,426 23,950 26,475
Operating profit 4,547 6,502 8,216
Operating margin, % 21.2 27.2 ng
Net profit after tax 3,683 4,724 6,063
Earnings per share, USD? 2.1 2.91 3.86
Dividend per share, USD 0.940 1.3 3.72
Book equity 14,404 13,597 15,304
Equity/assets ratio, % 56 55 52
Market capitalization, SEX bn. 3973 616.1 5648

Number of employees 54,000 65,000 65,000

1) Before exceptional items

ASTRAZENECA IN 2006: Robust growth from its key products and
further improvements in efficiency contributed to AstraZeneca's strong
financial performance with the company’s operating profit increasing
by 24 percent for the full year at constant exchange rates. Combined
sales of the five key growth products Nexium™, Seroquel™, Crestor™,
Arimidex™ and Symbicort™ increased by 23 percent. To enhance
productivity, AstraZeneca launched a program to improve asset utiliza-
tion During the year, two products in ihe late development stage were
withdrawn. However, AstraZeneca is continuing to work on strength-
ening the product development pipefine by means of internal initiatives,
acquisitions and collaboration agreements.

INVESTOR’'S VIEW OF ASTRAZENECA: AstraZeneca has delivered
strong financial results and stands firmly as one of the world's leading
pharmaceutical companies. It is important for AstraZeneca to adapt its
cost structure to the environment the company operates in. It is also
positive that AstraZeneca is reducing costs to drive further productivity
improvements. Expectations for a few products in the late development
stage could not be realized. AstraZeneca’s initiatives to expand its prod-
uct and discovery portfolio, organically and by means of acquisitions,
are therefore important far the company's future value creation.
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Investor's holding in AstraZeneca
Share capital 3.4%
Voting rights: 3.4%
Market value of holding: SEK 18,959 m.
Serving on the board are the following people
from Investor's management or board:
Hakan Mogren (Non-Executive Deputy Chairman)
Chairman: Louts Schweitzer
President and CEQ: David Brennan

www. astrazeneca.com

Scania is a world-leading manufacturer of heawy trucks and buses, as
well as industrial and marine engines. The company also markets and
sells a broad range of service-related products and financing services.
Scania operates in more than 100 markets, mainly in Europe, Latin
America, Asia, Africa and Australia. Europe and Latin America are the
most important markets, where Scania also has its production. Mast
of the company's customers operate in the transportation industry and
range from small trucking firms to major transporiation companies in
the private and public sector.

Key figures 2004 2005 2006
Net sales, SEK m. 56,788 63,328 70,738
Operating income 6,599 6,859 8,753
Operating margin, % 1.6 10.8 124
Net income after tax 4316 4,665 5939
Earnings per share, SEK 2157 2333 29.70
Dividend per share, SEK 15.00 15.0¢ 50.00"
Book equity, SEK m. 21,433 23,736 26,134
Equity/assets ratio, % 30 30 30
Market capitalization, SEK bn. 52.6 64.8 97.2
Number of employees 29,993 30,765 32,820

1} Of which the dividend for 2006, SEK 15 per share, and an extra distribution of
SEK 35 per share by mandatory redemption.

SCANIA IN 2006: Scania‘s operations developed very strongly in
2006 with continuing profitable growth and a sharp increase in order
bookings. During 2007, the company will launch its new exhaust gas
recirculation (EGR) engines which already meet the envircnmental stan-
dard that will be introduced in Europe in 2009. During the fall, MAN
made a hostile bid for Scania. In January 2007, the bid was withdrawn,
which was welcomed by Scania and its largest shareholders, Investor
and Volkswagen.

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF SCANIA: Scaniz is a very well managed com-
pany with best-in-class profitability. The company has excellent growth
and earnings prospects based on its technological leadarship, advanced
product platform, integrated after-sales service concept, strong bal-
ance sheet and strong expected market growth in Central and Eastern
Europe. Investor will continue to support Scania‘s successful develop-
ment as a standalone company while continuously evaluating possible
attractive industrial partnerships and combinations.
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Investor's holding in Scania
Share capital: 11.0%
Voting rights: 20.0%
Market value of holding: SEK 10,783 m.
Serving on the board are the following people
from Investor's management or board:
Sune Carlsson (Vice Chairman)
Peter Wallenberg Jr
Chairrnan: Bernd Pischetsrieder
President and CEQ: Leif Ostling
www.scania.com

CORE INVESTMENTS

>>




Core Investments - Investor 2006

SINIWLSIANI JHOD

‘8% ) Flectrolux

Electrolux is a global leader in home appliances and appliances for
professional use, selling more than 40 million products to customers in
150 countries every year. The company focuses on innovatians that are
thoughtfully designed, based on extensive consumer insight, to meet
the real needs of consumers and professionals. Etectrolux preducts
include refrigerators, dishwashers, washing machines, vaceum cleaners
and cookers sold under esteemed brands such as Electrolux,
AEG-Electrolux, Zanussi, Eureka and Frigidaire.

Excluding
Husgvarna
Key figures 2004 2005 2005 2006
Net sales, SEK m. 120,651 129,469 100,701 103,848
Operating income 6,767 6,962 4,024 4,575
Operating margin, % 56 5.4 4.0 4.4
Net income after tax" 3,259 1,763 142 2,648
Earnings per share, SEX" 10.92 6.05 -0.49 917
Dividend per share, SEK 7.00 7.50 4.00
Book equity, SEK m, 23,626 25,888 13,1947
Equity/assets ratio, % n 31 20
Market capitalization, SEK bn_ 46.9 639 37.5%
Number of employees 72,382 69,523 57.842 55,471

1} Including items affecting comparability in the amount of SEK 497 m. for
restruciuring,

2) After distribution of SEK 5.6 bn,

3) Before distribution of SEX 5.6 bn.

ELECTROLUX IN 2006: (n Jure, Electrolux spun cut Husgvarna
{Outdoor Products operations} and distributed it to shareholders.
Despite continuing high global market prices for steel and oil, opera-
tions improved slightly as a result of a better product mix and savings
realized through the company's restructuring programs, which contin-
ued during the year on schedule. An extraordinary general meeting of
shareholders in December approved the decision to distribute SEK 5.6
bn. to shareholders to establish a more efficient capital structure.

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF ELECTROLUX: Electrolux's spin-out of
Husgvarna and changed capital structure have been important compo-
nents in the process to <larify Electrolux’s value. Ongoing restructuring
programs, design initiatives and brand building are necessary and deci-
sive for improving the company’s margins. Electrolux’s biggest
challenge will be tc improve profitability further in Europe and

Morth America.
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Investor's holding in Etectrolux

Share capital: 11.1%

Voting rights: 27 6%

Market value of holding: SEK 4,699 m.

No person from Investor’s management or
board serves on Electrolux’s board
Chairman: Michael Treschow

President and CEO: Hans Stréberg

www.electrolux.com

Saab is one of the world's leading high-technology comparies with
activities focused mainly on preducts and systems for defense, avia-
tion, space and civil security. Sweden is Saab's most significant market,
although exports — primarily to Europe, the United States and South
Africa — now account for more than 65 percent of sales. Defense forces,
commercial airlines and authorities are examples of important customers,

¥ey figures 2004 2005 2006
Sales, SEK m. 17,848 19,314 21,063
Qperating income 1,853 1,652 1,745
Operating margin, % 10.4 8.6 83
Net income after tax 1,310 1,199 1.347
Earnings per share, SEK 11.78 10.89 1.9
Dividend per share, SEK 3.75 4.00 425
Book equity, SEK m. 8,118 9,17% 9,802
Equity/assets ratio, % 30 30 30
Market capitalization, SEK bn. 1.9 17.7 23.2
Number of employees 11,936 12,830 13,577

SAAB IN 2006: Saab’s order bookings were significant in 2006 and
the company's order backlog at year-end corresponded to 2.4 times
sales. The acquired Microwave Systems operations were integrated
during the year. Saab’s operating margin was impacted by structural
costs related to the acquisition, among other facters. The underlying
margin, adjusted for these costs, is close to 30 percent, which is the
company's objective.

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF SAAB: Saab has unique cutting-edge
expertise in several of its technology areas. Growth will be importarm
for future value creation. As sales volumes decline in the Swedish mar-
ket, Saab will have to achieve its exposure to international markets to
achieve its organic growth goals. Increasing the efficiency of operations
will also be important to improve the company's gross margm.,

Total return, Index = 100 = 6/30 1998

600
400

200 N et
0 i
96 97 98 99 00 01 OZ G3 04 05 06
— $AAB - 51X Return Index (SIXRX)
Source: € FINDATA DIREKT

Investor's holding in Saab AB

Share capital: 19.8%

Voting rights: 38.0%

Market value of holding: SEK 4,539 m.
Serving on the board are the following pecple
from investor’s management or board’:
Lennart Johansson

Chairman: Marcus Wallenberg

Fresident and CEQ. Ake Svensson

www.saab.se
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Husgvarna is one of the world's oldest industrial manufacturers and a
world leader in outdoor power preducts for consumers and professional
users, and cutting equipment for the construction and store industries.
The company has a global sales organization with more than 20,000
resellers. Husgvarna's most imnpertant markets are the United States and
Europe.

HHusqgvarna

Key figures 2003 2006
Net sales, SEK m. 28,768 29,402
Operating income 2,927 3121
Operating margin, % 10.2 10.6
Net income after tax 1,641 1,862
Profit per share, SEK 5.54 6,29
Dividend per share, SEK 2.25
Book equity, SEK m. 4,755 6,264
Equitylassets ratio, % 26 38
Market capitalization, SEK bn. EAR:]

11,681 11,412

1) Due to the spin-off af Husqvarna from Electrolux in 2006, financial information
for 2004 ts not comparable with 20QS and 2006. Financial information for 2005
and 2006 is based on Husqvarna‘s pro forma financial statements.

Number of employees

HUSQVARNA IN 2006: 2006 was Husgvarna’s first year as an inde-
pendent company after it was spun off from Electeolux in June. Despite
a weak trend of sales in the North American consumer market during
the fall, Husqvarna's profitability could be maintained on a high level,
due to the company’s timited sensitivity to volumes. During the year
Husgvarna continued its acquisition strategy, purchasing Gardena,
Hebei Jikai, Dixon and Komatsu Zenoah.

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF HUSQVARNA: Husgvarna has effectively
established itself as an independent company and has a strong brand
and market-leading position in many product segments. Husgvarna
has successfully grown it business for a long time by making comple-
mentary acquisitions and expanding organically. In 2007, the company
will cantinue to focus on additional expansion and the integration of
acquired operations. Cost efficiency will alsc be given priority o ensure
Husgvarna's continued competitiveness and profitability.
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Investor's holding in Husgvarna

Share capital 11.1%

Voting rights: 29.2%

Market value of holding: SEK 3,512 m.
Serving on the board are the following people
from Investor’s management or board:

Bsrje Ekholm

Chairran: Lars Westerberg

President and CEQ: Bengt Andersson

www.husqvarna.com
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OMX owns and operates the largest integrated securities marketplace
in Northern Europe and is a leading provider of technalogy solutions
and services for financial and energy markets worldwide, OMX has
three business areas: Nordic Marketplaces, comprising the stock
exchanges in Stockhoim, Helsinki and Copenhagen; Information Senvices
& New Markets, consisting of operations in the Baltic markets and
information services; angd Market Technology, providing technology
sotutions and services to stock exchanges and other marketplaces.

Key figures 2004 2005 2006
Revenues, SEK m. 3,106 3,136 3,610
Operating income 616 910 1,211
Operating margin, % 19.8 29.0 335
Net income after tax 383 543 n
Earnings per share, SEK in 4,66 7.64
Dividend per share, SEK [} 9.50 6.50
Book eguity, SEK m. 3,835 4,749 4,614
Equity/assets ratio, % 58 45 37
Market capitalization, SEK bn. 338 1313 152
Number of employees 1.300 1,288 1,402

OMX IN 2006: During the year OMX launched the Nordic Exchange,
an integrated marketplace for presenting listed companies in Sweden,
Denmark and Finland. High activity on the Nordic exchange and a large
number of initial public offerings generated favcrable growth during
the year, OMX's acquisition of the lcelandic Stock Exchange marked yet
another step towards an integrated marketplace. The order intake for
market technology was substantial and OMX is focusing on this growth
with a view to achieving higher profitability. During 2007, OMX
intends to sell the part of its technology operations targeting banks
and brokerage firms.

INVESTOR’S VIEW OF OMX: An integrated Nordic and Baltic
securities market is beneficial to OMX's customers and sharehotders

as evidenced by the integration of the Helsinki and Copenhagen stock
exchanges, the acquisition of the Icelandic Stock Exchange and the
creation of the Nordic Exchange. The comprehensive programs that
OMX has implemented to streamline, rationalize and focus its technol-
oQy operations are positive, even if additional work remains before the
company can achieve satisfactory profitability in this area.
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Investor's holding in OMX

Share capital: 10.7%

Voting rights: 10.7%

Market value of holding: SEK 1,625 m.
Serving on the board are the following people
from Investor's management or board:

Adine Grate Axén®

Chairman: Olof Stenhammar

President and CEO: Magnus Bocker

1) Member of Investor's Managemenzt Group unti} September 30, 2006,

WWW.OmXGroup.com
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Operating Investments consist of holdings in which
Investor has a controlling interest or minority posi-
tion with significant influence. During the year, the
business area was expanded with Gambro, which is
owned as of June 2006 by Investor (49 percent) and
EQT (51 percent). Scan after the buyout, Gambro's
organization was streamlined and divided into three
sepdrate companies. After the Gambro transaction,
the Operating Investments business area consists

of Gambro Renal Products, Gambro BCT, Gambro
Healthcare, 3 Scandinavia, Grand Hotel Stockholm
and Novare Human Capital.

The business area’s investment strategy is Tocused on
medium-sized companies headquartered in Northern
Europe that investor can develop and own in the medium
to long term. Companies are to benefit from Investor’s
brand, network and expertise. The expansion of the

Operating Investments business area follows the estab-
lished strategy in which we aim to grow our unlisted
investments in order to generate proprietary returns to our
shareholders. The buyout of Gambro was geared to this
strategy.

Investor's large stakes in Operating Investments, and
the fact that holdings in the business area are unlisted,
allows us to take a more active role in the development of
companies and changes can be implemented more quickly
than in listed heldings. The board and management group
can facus mare on the business and its development and
utilize fewer resources for administration and reporting to
the market. Competitive incentive programs can also be
implemented more easily in unlisted investments,

As for the Core Investments, we develop a value crea-
tion plan for each company that is the platform for manag-
ing the company’s operations. Questions concerning the
recruitment of the CEO and management group members,
the establishment and follow-up of goals, strategy and the
business model, profitability, business developrment and
capital, and organizational structure are also focused on.

Acquisition after year-end 2006

In January 2007, an agreement was signed to acquire
Mélnlycke Health Care. The acquisition is being made
together with Margan Stanley Principal Investments

and Investor's share of the equity and shareholder loans
amounts to approximately 65 percent. Moinlycke, head-
quartered in Gothenburg, Sweden, is a global manufac-
turer and supplier of single-use surgical and wound care
products, primarily for the professional healthcare sector.
In 2006, Mdlnlycke had sales of approximately SEK 6.8 bn.
and EBITDA of about SEK 2.0 bn.

Goal

The return is to exceed the risk-free interest Operating Investments,
percentage of total assets

rate plus a risk premium over a business

OPERATING INVESTMENTS

cycle. Currently, 12 to 15 percent per year.

Strategy

O Develop current holdings

0O Grow the business area's share of
total assets

Investment strategy

Maintain a flexible investment strategy focused on medium-
sized to large companies based in Northern Europe that we
can own and develop in the medium to long term.

Goal fulfillment
The business area was under development in 2006.

4%

12/31 2006 12/31 2005
Ownership  SEK/ SEK/
% share  SEK m. share  SEK m.
Indap/Gambro 49" 5 3,476% - -
The Grand Group 100 2 1.477 2 1,505
3 Scandinavia® 40 1 668 1 608
Land and real estate 100 0 302 1 310
Other" 0 58 0 98
Total 8 5,981 4 2,522

1} In addition, Investor indirectly owns about $ percent of Indap/
Gambro through its ownership in £QT IV.

2) Refers to Investor's share of Indap/Gambro's equity on Novemnber 30,
2006. The amount includes the accumulated acquisition value, as
well as income and equity items for the pericd.

3) Refers to Investor's share of 3's equity on Novemnber 30, 2006 after
adjustrrents in the Investor Group and Investar's shareholder loans
to 3 totaling SEK 437 m. (145). Due to & change in reporting period,
the net asset value for 2005 was adjusted down by SEK 235 m.

4} Refers to Novare and the advisory companies in Private Equity
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OGAMBRO.

Until June 2006, Gambro was a listed company on the Stockholm Stock
Exchange with operations in dialysis, intensive care, blood bank
technology and intensive care. In the second quarter, Investor and

EQT made a public offer for Gambro that was accepted in June, after
which Gambro was delisted. Gambro is jointly owned by Investor (4%
percent} and EQT (51 percent). Gambro is mainly debt-financed.

GAMBRO IN 2006: During the year Gambro enjoyed healthy growth.
Margins improved over last year, after taking inte account €osts related
to the acquisition and expenses for measures to resclve the import ban
situation in the United States.

As part of the efforts to improve the platform for strong
development of Gambro's business areas, three independent
companies have been formed: Gambro Renal Products, Gambre BCT
and Gambra Healthcare. By dividing up operations into three separate
entities, each unit can completely focus cn its own business, take
advantage of growth opportunities and release its inherent profit
potential. In connection with the division of the business areas into
three companies, cost-saving measures were carried out and new
rnanagement groups and business boards were appointed.

Key figures 2006
Net sales, SEK m. 15,637
EBITDA 2,549
Operating incoma 1.087
Total assets 19,207

1} All key figures refer 1o the period 12/1 2005-11/30 2006,

Value of holding: SEK 3,476 m.

"GAM BRO. Renal Products

Gambro Renal Products is a world leader in the development and
supply of products, treatments and services for in-centre care dialysis,
home dialysis, and blood purification in intensive care units.

The Renal Products business developed well during the year in
terms of sales, EBITDA and cash flow before one-off costs related to
the buyout of Gambro and before expenses 1o resalve the impert
ban in the United States. The import ban on dialysis machines and
additional restructuring costs will also have a negative impact on
operating results in 2007.

Construction of the new filter plant in the U.5., in Opelika,
Alabama, shifted into a more intense phase in the fourth quarter of
2006 and will continue during most of 2007, Operations in Europe
continued to develop favorably and increased sales volumes partially
countered the effects of the import ban in the U.S. On December 1,
2006, Thomas Glanzmann took over as CEO and several new mem-
bers were added to the management group.

Serving on the business area’s business board are the following persons
from Investor's management o board. Lennart lohansson

Chairman: Peter Sjostrand

CEG: Thomes Glanzmann

www.gambro.com

©GAMBRO.BCT,

Gambro BCT develops and sells products and services {ar bload
collection, the separation of blood components and cell therapy.

Gambro BCT continued to perform strongly in 2006, Sales of the
new Atreus whole blood processing system were launched in Europe
with promising results. Gambro BCT's pathogen reduction technol-
ogy was further developed and is following plan.

Serving on the business area’s business hoard are the following persons
from tnvestor: Johan Rohss

Chairman: Mats Fischier

CEQ: Davis Perez

www.gambrobct.com

"GAM BRO.Healthcare

Gambro Healthcare is one of the world's leading providers of dialysis
clinic services. The business area operates in 14 countries and treats
about 11,000 patients at 150 clinics.

(Gambro Healthcare's clinic husiness is developing well and the
resuit for 2006, excluding extraordinary items, followed plan. During
the year, the number of dlinics was expanded by 15.

Serving on the business area’s business board are the foliowing persons
from Investor: Johan Réhss

Chairman: Massimo Rossi

CEQ: BorInge Hansson

www.gambrohealthcare.com

QPERATING INVESTMENTS
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3 Scandinavia is a mabile operator providing mobile broadband
services in Sweden and Denmark. The company alsc has a license
far the Norwegian market. 3 Scandinavia is owned by Hutchison
Whampoa (60 percent) and Investor (40) percent. 3 Scandinavia
aims to capture at least 25 percent of the Nordic 3G market.

Key figures 2004 2005 2006
Net sales, SEK m. F4on 2,680% 3,142%
Operating income -1,027v -3,378% -2,484%
Total assets 13,610 15,275 14,1739
Number of subscribers 414,000% 461,000 671,008
ARPU, SEK 397 383 404
Non-voice ARPU, % 143 16 23
Postpaid/prepaid ratio, % 847162 78122 88712

1) Refers to the period 10/1 2003-9/30 2004.
2) On March 30, 2005.

3) Refers to the pariod 10/1 2004-8/30 2005.
4} Refers to the period 12/1 2605-11/3G 2006

3 SCANDINAVIA IN 2006: On December 31, 20086,

3 Scandinavia had 671,000 subscribers, a net increase of 210,000
during the year. Subscriber growth was 46 percent in 2006. 3

has successfully developed and improved its range of offerings,
particularly its music and messaging services. Average revenue per
user (ARPU) continued to develop positively, driven by demand for
these new services, amang other factors. ARPU totaled SEK 404

at year-end 2006, above the market average, of which 23 percent
was non-voice, which was substantially higher than 3 Scandinavia's
competitors. During the year, the company’s management group
was strengthened with the appointment of Peder Ramel as head of
operations in Sweden and Richard Woadward as new CFG.

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF 3 SCANDINAVIA; In 2006, 3 Scandinavia
developed in line with our expectations, even if the company is
lagging behind our initial investment plan. The launch of Turbo 3G
mobile broadband is enabling new services, such as television an
mebiles, and is a competitive alternative to fixed broadband
cennections. Up to now, 3 Scandinavia has focused on

censumers and less an business customers. Based on the

capacity of 3G technclogy and the demand for mabile services

in companies, we believe 3 has the potential to also capture
significant market shares in the business market. We remain
comfortable with the goal that 3 Scandinavia will reach breakeven
on a moanthly basis by 2008 at the latest.

Investor’s holding in 3 Scandinavia (Hi3G}
Share capital and voting rights: 40%

Value of holding: SEK 668 m.

Serving on the baard are the following people
from investor's management or board:

Bjorn Svedberg and

Adine Grate Axén"

Chairman: Marcus Wallenberg

President and CEQ: Shlomo Liran

As of March 2007: Peder Ramel

1) Member of Investor's Management Group until September 30, 2006.

www.tre.se

@
GRAND HOTEL

STOUKHOEM - SWEDEN

The Grand Hotel in Stockholm, the leading hotel in Scandinavia, is
situated on the water in downtown Stockhalm with a view over the
Old Town and the Royal Palace. In 2003, the hotel decided to launch
its Change Grand Program, which has involved a number of rebuild-
ing and development projects within restaurants and pubiic areas at
the Grand Hotel in Stockholm

Key figures 2004 2005 2006
Net sales, SEK m. 254 281 324
EBITDA 17 39 67
Operating income -14 -3 26
Total assets 1,332 1,182 1,529

GRAND HOTEL IN STOCKHOLM IN 2006: The project to incor-
porate Burmanska Palatset (acquired in 2004} continued during the
year and the renovaticn of the building was finished during the fall.
As part of the Change Grand Program, the remadeled Cadier Bar was
reopened,

During the year, it was announced that prize-winning Swedish chef
Mathias Dahlgren will develop and run Grand Hétel's new restaurant.
In 2008, Grand Hétel noted a rising occupancy rate and improved
average prices. Ongoing renovation work has restricted the hotel’s
operating capacity and resulted in added costs

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF GRAND HOTEL IN STOCKHOLM:

Grand Hétel, with its history and prime waterfront location in central
Stockholm, is unigque in Sweden and the world. With the hotel's
expansion and Change Grand Program, the Grand Hotel in Stockholm
will further strengthen its unigque position. With a larger number

of rooms, the renovation of the premises and a continuously rising
occupancy rate, we expect Grand Hétel to achieve additicnal growth
and improve its profitability considerably.

Investor's holding in The Grand Group
Share capital and voting rights: 100%

Value of holding: SEK 1,477 m.

Serving on the bhoard are the following people
from Investor's management or board:

Peter Wallenberg Jr and

Lars Wedenborn

Chairman: Peter Wallenberg Jr

President and CEQ: Nils Axing

www.grandhotel.se
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Novase

HUMAN CAFPITAL

Novare Human Capital's operaticns are focused on a range of
recruitment and advisory services in the human resources (HR) field.
The company assists Investor, Investor's holdings and other clients 1o
find the right people with the right competence.

Key figures 2004 2005 2006
Net sales, SEK m. 21 26 39
EBITDA 1] 1 7
Operating income ] 1 5
Total assets 18 28 44

NOVARE HUMAN CAPITAL IN 2006: Curing the year, Novare
continued to expand its business by developing activities within a
number of HR-related areas. During the year, Investor's Annual General
Meeting approved the decision that Investor sell 50 percent of Novare
Human Capital to certain senior executives in the company.

INVESTOR'S VIEW OF NOVARE HUMAN CAPITAL: Having an HR
company closely associated with an investment and/er private equity
company is common in the United States, for example, but is stll unigue
in Sweden. Novare Human Capital’s maost important function is to
structure and expand Investor’s unique international network as a
strategic recruitment resource for Investor’s heldings. Novare Human
Capital should therefore be considered a strategic operative function

in addition to its role as an investment,

investor's holding in Novare Human Capital
Share capital and voting rights: 50%

Value of holding: SEK 7 m.

Serving on the board are the following people
from investor's management or board:

Lars Wedenborn

Chairman: Lars Wedenborn

CEQ: Fredrik Hillelson

www. novare.se

QOPERATING INVESTMENTS
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Private Equity Investments

Buyout activities are defined as loan-financed investments
in more developed or mature companies that are often
made for the purpose of implementing major restructuring
or operational changes aimed at achieving greater

efficiency and growth,

Opocating j [privatelEguity) In the Private Equity Investrments business area, buyout
L] fwestments l JLesnents) activities are conducted through EQT and venture capital
T ’ investments through Investor Growth Capital. The business
area has the objective of realizing an average annualized
return (IRR} of 20 percent or more on realized investments,
over the longer term, before administrative expenses.
Investments are made in Northern Europe, the United
States and Asia.
. o . . : . Cash
Private equity is defined as investments in unlisted trow
comparties in which Investor assumes an active |
ownership role. Investor’s involvement may range VENTURE CAPITAL
from supporting holdings in the development of their
business, strategy and vision, to providing access to MERedEge
representatives in Investor's network and legal and
financial expertise. Depending on the development Expansion stage
phase of a company, Investor conducts two different ’
kinds of private equity investments: venture capital
and buyouts.  Time
. Early stage - .~ v
Venture capital activities involve investments in young i
growth-oriented companies ranging frem startups to

companies that are about to enter an expansion stage 1o

establish themselves in the market or launch new products.
mature.

Venture capital investments are primarily made in early and expansion stages,
while buyout investments are mainly made in companies that are relatively

Goal Private Equity Investments,

Development stages,
Private Equity

Average annualized return (IRR) of 20 percent or more on percentage of total assets
realized investments before administrative expenses, over the T 10%
course of a business cycle. \‘

Strategy

O Grow within the existing units Investor Growth Capital
and EQT

O Rebuild the portfolio after two years of net divestments

Investment strategy

Investor Growth Capital invests in young growth companies in the
healthcare and technology sectors in Northern Europe, the United States
and Asia. EQT invests in medium-sized, established companies in
Northern Europe and Asia.

Goal fulfillment

Private Equity Investments has met the targeted return requirement of
20 percent on realized investments (IRR) since 1998, when the business
area was given its current shape and structure.

Funds 7%

Early 8%<§'—_

Expansion
20%

Mature \ Mature
(excl. EQT) 7% EQT 58%

A company's development stage
is usually linked to its financial
development. A mature company
normally generates a pesitive cash
flow.
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Investor Growth Capital
investor Growth Capital, wholly owned by Invesior, is
focused on venture capital investments in the {7/
technology and healthcare sectors in Northern Europe,
the United States and Asia. The investment cycle is nor-
mally three to seven years and the investment commitment
ranges from SEK 20 m. to SEK 200 m. The Investor Growth
Capital investment units acquire a minority stake with
significant influence and usually take a board seat. At year-
end 2006, Investor Growth Capital had approximately 40
investments in IT/technology and about 30 in healthcare.
Investor Growth Capital has a total staff of 39 at offices
in Stockholm, Amsterdam, Beijing, Hong Kong, Menlo
Park, New York and Tokyo. Each office is specialized in its
respective sectors and markets by having employees with
substantial knowledge of local markets and companies.
Each unit also has a compensation system adapted to the
local market and linked to the fulfillment of established
return cbjectives and realized results. Since holdings are
normally small in size, Investor Growth Capital’s board
work is often focused on strategic and operational issues,
such as product development, business models and the
establishment of business activities in markets. To intensify
its expansion in China, Investor Growth Capital opened a
representative office in Beijing in 2006.

For more information visit www.investorgrowthcapital.com

Investments in EQT's funds

EQT operates as an independent organization from
Investor and makes buyout investments in medium-sized
companies in Northern Europe and Greater China, The
investment cycle is normally three to seven years for the
companies EQT invests in. Investments are made in funds,
with each fund having a specific focus and a number of
external fund investors, who are limited partners in each
fund. Investor was one of the founders of EQT and is a
sponsor and investor in all 11 funds. Investor's ownership
in each fund varies but averages about 20 percent in the
larger, more recent funds. EQT is the largest investment
unit in the Private Equity Investments business area.

The advisory company Investor Capitat Partners w/as
sold to EQT in the first quarter of 2006. investor Capital
Partners was based in Hong Keng and focused on buyout
investments in Greater China. Since both EQT and Investor
Capital Partners are focused on buyout investments, the
combination offers business and administrative advantages
and efficiencies.

For more information visit www.eqgt.se

By unit,
Private Equity

Investments are made by

the units:

o investor Growth Capital -
direct investments

o EQT - tund investments

EQT 5B%

Investor
Growth
Capilal 42%

Geographic distribution,
Private Equity

Asia 9% .
Investments are made in:
United a Northern Europe
States

o United States
O Asia

24%

HNorthern
Eurppe 67%

Investor Growth Capital

Sector distribution,
Investor Growth Capital

Development stages,
Investor Growth Capital

Funds IE%/-E Mature 23%
Earty C ' . AN ‘sujli Intermet Services $%
\\ Other IT 8%
Pharmaceuticals/ ™.___

15%

Software 12%

. ,%Semlmndunom 8%
’ /"ﬂﬂ Communications 5%

£

Funds and
Other 25%

Expansion g'f;ﬁ“hm'ogy Medical
A4% Dewices 16%

Investor Growth Capital's portfelio is in the rebuilding phase after a large number
of divestments that were made during 2004 and 2005, This is why the distribution
between differant development stages has changed only shghtly. In 2006, the per-
centage of early and mature holdings increased in number. Investments by sector
are I7 38 percent [Communications, Semiconduciors, Internet Services, Software
and Other), Healthcare 37 percent (Pharmaceuticalsiotechnology 2nd Medical
Devices), and Funds and Cther 25 percent.

PRIVATE EQUITY INVESTMENTS
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Private Equity in practice

Investor Growth Capital’s investment portfolio contains approximately 70 holdings, of which
four are described below. Read more about other investments on Investor's website.

D

OIGITAL CHECK

Tokyo-based Digital Check is one of the largest providers
of e-commerce settlement services in Japan. The company
serves a growing number of convenience stores and retail
businesses requiring online payment settlement functions
for e-commerce transactions.

Digital Check provides the required IT infrastructure,
allowing customers to focus on their core business and
avoid costly investments in complex systems. Key products
include C-Check, an online prepaid card for gaming and
music downloads, online payment processing solutions for
credit cards, electronic money and postal services, and IT
system service for Internet-based shapping malls.

"Digital Check is strongly positioned in a market that
is showing the highest growth among e-commerce settle-
ment services,” says Investor Growth Capital's Shinji Yasui.
"There is significant upside opportunity in face-to-face
credit card settlement services and a huge potential market
for Digital Check in the emerging front-end settlement
industry.”

“We chose IGC Asia as our core shareholder because
of their long-term commitment and global network. We
also value their guidance and support as a hoard mem-
ber,” says Takayuki Doki, CEQ of Digital Check.

For more information visit www.digitalcheck.co.jp

Aerocrine

Aerocrine is a Swedish medical device company that devei-
ops, markets and commercializes leading, innovative prod-
ucts for monitoring airway inflammation, the main cause
of asthma. The company has two main products, NIOX®
and NIOX MINO®, which help doctors better diagnose,
treat and monitor patients with asthma to improve the
patient care process.

“With its unique and protected technology, Aeracrine
has introduced a paradigm shift in asthma treatment that
provides major clinical benefits for the diagnosis of one
of the most serious chronic diseases of our time,” says
Karl Swartiing, representing Investor Growth Capital on
Aerocrine’s board.

"With its long-term investment approach, industry
expertise and global network of contacts, Investor Growth
Capttal has made significant contributions to our company
as Aerocrine developed from a start-up into a company
with leading products and rapidly increasing sales,” com-
ments Paul de Potocki, CEQ of Aerocrine.

For more information visit www.aerocrine.com

There’s value in good ideas.

And the right people bring
them to life.
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Kyphon, based in California, develops and sells medical
devices used in the balloon kyphoplasty procedure to treat
vertebral compression fractures caused by osteoporosis of
cancer, and for the diagnosis and treatment of other pain-
ful spinal disorders such as stenosis and degenerative disc
disease.

Investor Growth Capital first invested in Kyphen in
1999, “One of aur most important initiatives was building
a feading sales force and marketing capability for Kyphon
to create a new, direct channel to our customers, which
we knew would be pivotal to the company’s long-term
success,” says Stephen Campe, Investor Growth Capital’s
representative on Kyphon's board. " Although this required
substantial resources that iemporarily affected profitability,
the investrnent was justified in view of the strong market
demand for Kyphon's novel, protected products and the
high gross profit margin generated by incremental
revenue.”

In 1999, Kyphon had 20 employees. Today, the company
is a global business with over 1,000 employees worldwide
generating over USD 400 miltion in sales. In 2002, Kyphon
completed one of the most successful medical device IPOs
in recent years and has a market capitalization of nearly
USD 2 billion today.

For more information visit www.kyphon.com

SWEDISH ORPHAN
INTERNATIONAL

Swedish Qrphan International is a Swedish growth
company specializing in the development, registraticn,
marketing and distribution of orphan drugs {pharma-
ceuticals for the treatment of rare and life-threatening
diseases). The company’s products satisfy a medical need
where current treatment is either unavailable or unsatis-
factory. In 2006, Swedish Orphan supplied more than 40
arphan drugs.

“Since Investor Growth Capital became one of
Swedish Crphan’s owners in 2004, the company has
developed its business model from being a Nordic
distributor to a pan-European in-licensing partner with
high growth, profitability and strong cash flow,” says
Thomas Eklund, who represents tnvestor Growth Capital
on Swedish Orphan’s board.

Bo Jesper Hansen, CEQ of Swedish Orphan International,
notes that the company’s business has grown by
43 percent during the past six months:

"Qur positive growth is mainly due our successful
launch of new orphan drugs during the past fiscal year
combined with successful initiatives in new markets in
Central Europe. We are convinced that the future will offer
business opportunities with new partners and products
offering substantial benefits for patients suffering from
rare diseases.”

For more information visit www.swedishorphan.com

Seme Wwals will never
@o eutt &f feiiem.

ke aurtoshiy.
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Organization, network and brand

Investments

In addition to our business areas, our organization,
global network and brand are strategicaily vita
assets. The organization provides a structure in which
the business areas can operate and the network
pravides access 1o expertise and investment and
divestment opportunities. Investor’s brand — what
we stand for and what we are - is affected by every-
thing we do and is one of our most important assets.
Investing in these assets is therefore necessary to
reach our goals in the short and long term.

Organization

Investor's employees in Stockholm, Amsterdam, Beijing,
Hong Kong, Menlo Park, New York and Tokyo are of
crucial importance for our ability to reach our goals. We
therefore put heavy demands on our personnel with
regard to competence, ambition and innovative thinking.
To recruit and retain the right employees, we place major

emphasis on creating an attractive workplace where peo-
ple enjoy working and grow professianally. Respect for the
individual is a fundamental value at Investor. Regardless
of race, color, gender, ethnic and religious background,
sexual preference, marital status, national origin, age and
disability or, with respect to any specific Investor location
and other protected status under the laws or regulations
of such country of locality, everyone is to be given equal
opportunities for development in a workplace free of
discrimination and harassment. Investor's wholly owned
investment operations (excluding EQT, Grand Hotel
Stackholm and Novare Human Capital) employed 147
people at year-end 2006. in addition to the Core
Investments, Operating Investments, Private Equity
Investments and Financial Investments business areas, the
Operations unit is an essential part of Investor's organiza-
tion. Operations includes a number of functions, such as
Finance, Human Resources, Corporate Communications
and Research, IT, Risk Management and Treasury.

CORPORATE CULTURE
Establishing a strong and united corporate culture is an
important part of the organization. During the year, we
worked on developing core values for Investor. The objec-
tive has been to further strengihen our corporate culture
and link it to our vision, goals and strategy. Our work with
our corporate culture is long-term and will continue during
2007. See page 5 for a presentation of our core values.

DIVERSITY

A diversity of people with different backgrounds, experi-
ence and knowledge is necessary for an international com-
pany like Investor to succeed. A balanced mix of people

INVESTOR'S WHOLLY OWNED INVESTMENT ACTIVITIES ON DECEMBER 31, 2006

Facts & figures on employees

Age distribution Years of employment

Employees by education
® Number of employees on

12/31 2006: 147. (\,—

W Average number of employees %

e

in 2006: 140. e
W Average age: 40.9 years.

B [nvestments in education per
employee were about SEK 30,000. !
B High school and other
education programs: 27%

m The percen femnale
perce tage Of 0 University degree: 53%

employees was 48 percent.

O MBA.12%

B The percentage of women in
1 PhD.: 4%

senior management positions
was 16 percent.

@ Personnel turnover was
2.0 percent.

Double university degree: 4%

Number of employees Number of employees

&0 B0
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60 60
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™
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contributes to the company’s development, creativity and
performance, and expands opportunities to attract essen-
tial competence and improve our contacts with stakehold-
ers. This diversity in Investor is exemplified by the large
number of different nationalities working at our offices
around the world.

Investor’s efforts to promote diversity in the workplace
also aim to increase the percentage of women in senior
management positions within Investor and our holdings.
To develop this work to increase the number of women
senior managers in Investor, a project was conducted to
map the conditions for women to make a career and reach
management positions in the company. The project has
resulted in an action program that will be implemented in
2007. A survey of women in management positions within
Investor’s network will be carried out in the first quarter
of 2007 to chart measures that would make it easier for
women to reach higher business-related positions.

PERSONNEL DEVELOPMENT

Since the competence of employees is of central impo-
tance for Investor's ability to develop as a company,

we place major emphasis on giving each employee the
opportunity to advance their education and enhance their
professional knowledge. All employees are therefore rec-
ommended to take at least five days of courses per year
as part of their continuing education. All employees have
performance and compensation reviews with their closest
supervisor twice a year. During the annual performance
review, the form of competence development is discussed.

REMUNERATION

Investor strives to offer competitive remuneration ensuring
that competent employees can be recruited and retained in
the company. The basis for remuneration in the company is
that it should be in line with the market. Read more about
our remuneration policy on page 68.

Network

Investor's network is a strategic asset for Investor and pro-
vides a comparative advantage over similar types of invest-
ment companies. The network is global and comprises all
people in our organization, their professional and personal
contact networks, as well as the people working in our
holdings. The network also includes former senior execu-
tives from Investor and our haldings.

The network also includes many other professionals
that Investor has established relations with, such as the
academic and research communities, and the people in
our holdings. We have also had business relations with the
capital markets for many years and with legal and taxation
specialists. We work continuously on creating new contacts

and maintaining present relations in our network, as well
as linking people, companies and organizations together to
create new and innovative projects.

Recruitment is another important aspect of the
network's function to find the appropriate people for
Investor and our holdings. Having the right board and
management is crucial for all companies and the network
is used to facilitate this recruitment process.

The network provides both breadth and depth in terms
of expertise and experience. The network contains knowl-
edge about leadership and entrepreneurship, international
development, trends and technology shifts. Through con-
tacts with specialists in the network, another dimension is
added to Investor's analytic and due diligence work. We
believe it is important to share our collective competence
and experience in the network and give the people in our
investments access to it. Examples are our network meet-
ings for exchanging experience and knowledge on current
issues, or informal contacts when needed.

We actively use the network to help our investments
expand their business into new geographic areas, develop
customer or partner relations and find important advisers,
managers and employees. In growth countries, such as
China, it is much more difficult to do business successfuily if
you do not have a well functioning netwaork in the country.

The network is also significant from an investment per-
spective since it provides access to investments in varying
fields, growth stages and sectors. It also provides access to
a contact network of potential buyers if we are going 10
sell one of our holdings.

We also wark actively with structuring and expanding
our network. Novare Human Capitat {read more on page
23) is working with the mapping of potential board mem-
bers and women who may be potential candidates for CEQ
or for other business-related positions in our holdings.

The international operations within Private Equity
Investments, conducted in the U.S., Northern Europe and
Asia, have also contributed to developing and broadening
the network.

Brand

In addition to our arganization and network, Investor's
brand is a vital asset in several ways. Our brand says who
we are as an investor, owner, employer and responsible
company in society. Like our network, our brand helps
us gain access to new invesiment opportunities. 1tis also
important for recruiting people to Investor and for our
work with building our global network, since a strong
name facilitates the recruitment of skilled people for
Investor and our holdings.
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Letter from the Chairman

Dear Shareholder, 2006 was a year in which we
managed important developments in cur portfolio
and recorded a gratifying 21 percent increase
(including reinvested dividends) in our net asset
value. investor's 90th year of aperation was also
an eventful one. With our buyout of Gambro, we
strengthened our position in unlisted holdings, a
market that is becoming increasingly liquid, and
consequently more attractive, as an alternative to
investing in public enterprises.

Developing our strategy further

For 80 years, Investor’s business model has been to create
value for the company's shareholders by focusing on long-
term, engaged ownership. This model has worked well and
delivered good results.

Qur objective has always been to provide the most
sustainable and supportive platform possible for the
development of each holding in our pertflio. This is why
we change our ownership stake in companies from time to
time when we believe it is appropriate for the company in
questian. This is done on our initiative as a principal owner,
on an industrially sound basis.

The board's primary task is to constantly review and
further develop Investor's strategy in order to achieve the
company’s goals in varying market conditions.

In the mid-1990s, before private equity became as
popular as it is today, Investor formed EQT and Investor
Growth Capital to engage itself in this emerging invest-
ment market. The objective was to create more attractive,
innovative and value-creating ventures, such as OM and
Arbitech in the 1980s, Saab-Scania in the early 1990s and
3 in the 2000s.

This trend has continued in recent years. (n 2006, the
board clarified Investor’s long-term engagement in private
eguity by stating that Investor intends to grow its unlisted
assets to correspond 10 one fourth of total assets within
five years.

Striking the balance between public

and private assets

The more successful the unlisted market has become, the
maore scrutiny it attracts, It is clear that the most successful
private equity companies are those with owners and
managernent who implement incustrially sound measures
based on their commitment and expertise.

In recent years, private companies have proven them-
selves to be very competitive when recruiting competent
people to their management teams and boards. This has
become a challenge for public companies.

Whether a company is public or privately owned, our
business mode! remains the same - to be an engaged,

long-term owner. However, this role is determined by indi-
vidual circumstances. We understand that an international
enterprise operating in mature markets requires a different
level of support compared with a newly acquired growth
company. Qur ability to tailor our strategic approach for
each investment is decisive for our success and can be
clearly seen in the different needs of our holdings, from
SEB and its 150-year banking tradition to the young
growth company Aerocrine.

Responsible ownership

Throughout the past year Investor participated in a number
of structural transactions in which we created value for
shareholders through active and engaged ownership.

Early in 2006, in partnership with EQT, investor
acquired Gambro in a public to private transaction over the
Stockholm Stock Exchange. Now Gambro has the strategic
focus and financial resources to better target exciting areas
of growth and prefitability.

During the year we also sold our interest in WM-data.
Through our board work, we had worked for a number of
years on increasing WM-data’s cost efficiency, changing its
capital structure and targeting strategic acquisitions and
divestments. With its new owner, LogicaCMG, WM-data
has the geographical reach and experience to grow more
rapidly in the international market.

Perhaps the most visible expression during 2006 of our
accountahility as owners has been our determination to
ensure that any bid for Scania reflects the best interests for
our shareholders and the company’s future position. This
was our basis for rejecting the bid for Scania,

Creating value from our partfolic in 2006 was not
only limited to acquisitions and divestitures. Several of
our investments, such as Electrolux, SEB and Atlas Copco,
moved to overhaul their capital and cost structures in order
to take better advantage of market opportunities they had
identified in the value-creating agendas developed by their
boards with Investor’s participation.

Tectonic shift for Sweden

In 2006, Sweden elected a new government. As a result,
we anticipate some important changes in economic and
fiscal policies. The new government has already identified
the privatization of some state-owned enterprises as a key
priority. Policies to foster competition and economic reform
are also under consideration. We slso strongly welcome
efforts and incentives to spur entrepreneurship. It is also
gratifying to see that the government has now set the goal
to allocate 1 percent of GDP for basic research. Without

a solid basic research in Sweden, companies such as Saab
and Ericsson would not venture to invest as much money
in their own R&D, a fundamental requirement for their
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commergial success. This is not only important for us as an
investor and owner of campanies, but also for Sweden’s
future source of growth. Investor supports Sweden in its
pursuit of economic growth and international
competitiveness.

Despite its relatively small size, Sweden is a world-
class economy. According to the Global Competitiveness
Report 2006-2007, released by the World Economic Forum
in September 2006, Sweden is ranked number three in
the world, We are eager to see how the country can take
advantage of the favorable conditions that we envision
for the global economy in the year ahead. Perhaps, more
importantly, we look forward to seeing how well Sweden
faces the risks that will inevitably arise from some of the
economic imbalances that exist.

90 years of success
In the course of Investor's 90 year history, our Group has
found strength in four key principles.

First, Investor's success is a direct consequence of our
focus on building best-in-class companies. Secand, Investor
has always recognized the value of developing companies
with a long-term horizon, and today, many of those early
investments are the jewels in the Investor crown. Third, we
work closely with the companies we own to ensure heaithy
industrial development. Fourth, Investor is dedicated to
creating shareholder value,

As an owner of companies, Investor has a social responsi-
bility to monitor the maost important issues of the future,
such as corporate social responsibility, the environment
and climate change, which we have been following for &
number of years. We are noticing how our holdings are
giving more and more priority to these issues.

On behalf of the Board of Directors, | would like to
thank Bérje Ekholm, who has now completed his first full
financial year as CEO. As witnessed by the unrelenting
pace of change in our operating environment in 2006, as
well as the breadth of oppartunities and challenges that
Investor confronts on a daily basis, Borje has demonstrated
both vision and leadership in directing Investor throughout
the year.

| also want to thank Investor’s strong management
team and all our colleagues throughout the Investor
network for making 2006 such a good year and giving us
strong grounds for optimism about the future.

Finally, I would like to thank you, our shareholders, for
entrusting your capital 1o us. As a shareholder, | hope you
are encouraged by the evident dedication and commitment
to excellence from everyore in the Investor family.

yroe wa.‘.@?

lacob Wallenberg
Chairman of the Board
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Corporate Governance Report

Investor applies the Swedish Code of Corporate
Governance which was used to prepare this
corporate governance report. The Swedish Code
of Corporate Governance is based on the “comply
or explain” principle. According to the principle, a
company that applies the code may deviate from
individual rules but is required to explain why. The
Code states, among other things, that a company
shall issue, in connection with the annual report,
a special report an carporate governance in which
the company describes how the Code has been
applied within the most recent fiscal year.

This Corporate Governance Report is for fiscal year 2006
and also describes the work of the Nomination Committee
prior to the 2007 Annual General Meeting. The report has
nat been reviewed by Investor's auditors. Deviations from
the Code are regorted in each section of the report. In
accordance with the application instructions of the
Swedish Corporate Governance Board, the board of
director's report on internal control is to constitute a
special section in the corporate governance report.

e e e e wmwmen L
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Deviations from the Code

i - Investor does not comply with all of the Code’s |
criteria for independence of the board. .

" Deviations from the Code are reported and explained [
in greater detail in each section of the repori, !

e

Corporate governance within Investor
Corporate governance practices define the decision-
making systems and structure through which owners
directly or indirectly control a company. In a stock corpora-
tiont like Investor, authority, management and control are
distributed between the shareholders, the board of direc-
tors and the CEO and management group. Corporate
governance practices in Sweden are regulated by

Swedish law, primarily the Swedish Companies Act, the
Listing Agreement of the Stockhelm Stock Exchange and
other rules and recommendations, such as the Swedish
Code of Corporate Governance. For more information
about laws and corporate governance practices in Sweden,
see the document “Special features of Swedish Corporate
Gavernance” on the website of the Swedish Corporate
Governance Board, www.bolagsstyrning.se.

In addition to tegislation, regulations, recommenda-
tions and the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance,
[nvestor's Articles of Association constitute a central docu-
ment that establishes the company’s name and purpose,
where the board is registered, the focus of Investor's
business activities and information concerning the share
capital. Investor's Articles of Association are available on
Investor's corporate website, www.investorab.com, in the
section on Corperate Governance.

The Annual General Meeting (AGM) is Investar's high-
est decision-making body. The AGM decides how the
Nomination Cammittee is to be appointed. The Nomina-
tion Committee proposes the compasition of the board for
resolution by the AGM. As part of the company's efforts
to increase the efficiency and depth of the board's work

Corporate governance within Investor

Primary external regulations
affecting Investor’s
governance:

] +{ internal Controf | - Swedish Companies Act

- Listing Agreement of the

Stockholm Stack Exchange

Nomination {—.
Committee  |* Shareholders
— LihioughlannuallGeneralveeting]
= ——
v gAuditlcommittee]
=] ”
-4 gl IE o2 clofiDirectors] [REmunerstonicommitiec |
=1 =
< i [Einancelena[RizkCommittee |
_'*—0
Presidentfand[GEQ]
}

- Swedish Code of Corporate
Governance

Examples of Investor's internal

[—_I arcozvericrore il
1 |

——

control documents:

- Instructions, formal work plans
- Policies, such as for risk

Core Business Investor Active
Investments Development Growth Portfolio Operations management and compliance
Capital Management - Pracess descriptions for each

business area
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on certain issues, the board has established three commit-
tees: the Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee and
Finance and Risk Committee. Each committee’s work and
areas of responsibility are described in further detail under
the respective heading in this repart.

As control documents, investor has instructions, formal
work plans and policies for the board and CEQ which clari-
fy the distribution of responsikilities and control procedures
in the Group. External auditors, appeinted by the AGM,
audit the company’s financial reports and the administra-
tion of the board and the president. The internal control
process is an objective support function for the board for
the internal control structure.

fnvestor’s wholly owned investment operations are
organized in five departments: Core Investments,

Business Development, Investor Growth Capital, Active
Portfolio Management and Operations. Operations
includes functions such as Finance, Human Resources,
Corparate Communications and Research, IT, Risk
Management and Treasury. In addition to the President
and CEQ, Investor’'s Management Group includes the
heads of Core Investments, Business Development, Investor
Growth Capital and Operations. The illustration on the pre-
ceding page shows Investor’s basic governance structure,

Shares and ownership in Investor

At year-end 2006, Investor had 134,230 shareholders
according to the register of shareholders maintained by
VPC AB. In terms of ownership share, institutional owners
dorninate with 87 percent of the shares being owned by
13,417 institutional owners. Foundations constitute the
largest single shareholder category in terms of ownership
stake. Al year-end, Investor’s share capital totaled SEK
4,795 m., represented by 767 million shares, of which
312 million are class A-shares and 455 million are class
B-shares. A-shares carry one vote while B-shares carry
1/10th vote, aithough both types of shares are entitied
1o dividends. See page 6 for information about Investor's
dividend policy.

Investor’s 10 largest shareholders
listed by voting rights, on December 31, 2006"

12/31 2006

% of % of

votes capital
Knut and Alice Wallenberg Foundaticn 40.0 18.6
SE8 Foundation 4.9 23
Marianne and Marcus Wallenberg Foundation 4.1 1.9
Skandia Liv 39 2.5
Swedbank Robur's mutual funds 3.6 3.7
MNordea's mutual funds 2.7 1.5
Marcus and Amalia Wallenbarg Memorial Fund 2.6 1.2
Custodial Trust Company 1.9 0.9
Alecta 1.5 2.8
JP Morgan Chase Bank 1.4 2.6

1) Directly registered, or registered in the name of nominees, with YPC,

Annual General Meeting

Shareholders can exercise their right to decide on the
company’s business at the AGM, which is Investor's high-
est decision-making body. Investor's AGM is held in the
Stockhalm area during the first half of the year. The date
and location of the AGM is announced publicly, not later
than in connection with the release of the company’s third-
quarter report. Shareholders are also informed, not {ater
than the third quarter report, about their right to partici-
pate in the business of the AGM and the deadline for sub-
mitting preposals to the company for business to be taken
up at the AGM so that such business can be included in
the notice of the AGM. The notice of the AGM is pub-
lished not earlier than six weeks, but not later than four
weeks, before the date of the AGM. The business of the
AGM is to report on the company’s financial performance
during the past fiscal year and to make decisions on a
number of central issues, such as the dividend, changes to
the company’s Articles of Association, the appeintment of
auditers, discharging the board from liability for the fiscal
year, remuneration for the board and auditors and approv-
ing the number of board members and the new board for
the pericd up 10 the next AGM. Investor always strives 1o
have the board, the Management Group and at least one
auditor present at the AGM.

To be entitled to participate in the AGM, shareholders
must be recorded in the register of sharehalders and repaort
their intention to attend the AGM by a certain date. Share-
helders who cannot attend the AGM in person, such as
foreign shareholders, may appoint a proxy. Shareholders
whose shares are registered in the narme of a nominee
through the trust department of a bank or similar institu-
tion must request that their shares be temporarily re-reg-
istered in their cwn names in the register of shareholders
by a certain date before the AGM in order to be entitled
to participate in the AGM. Shareholders are requested to
inform their bank or nominee in goed time prior to this
date. Shareholders can give notice of their participation on
Investor's website, by phone or by completing and mailing
the invitation to the AGM.

To allow non-Swedish-speaking shareholders to
paticipate, the AGM's proceedings are simultanecusly
interpreted into English. All information material is also
available in Swedish and English.

Decisions at the AGM usually require a simple major-
ity vote. However, for certain items of business taken up
at the AGM, the Swedish Companies Act requires that a
proposal be approved by a higher percentage of the shares
and votes represented at the AGM.

>>
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INVESTOR'S 2006 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Investor's 2006 AGM was held at Cirkus in Stockholm on
March 21. The AGM was attended by 921 shareholders,
including proxies, representing 72.7 percent of the votes
and 52 .8 percent of the capital. Investor's board and
management, as well as the company’s two auditars,
were present at the meeting.

The following important decisions were made at the 2006 AGM:
B election of Jacob Wallenberg as chairman of the AGM,

B confirmation that the annual report was presented in
the prescribed manner,

B approval of the dividend to shareholders, SEK 3.50
per share,

B hoard members and the president were discharged
from liability for fiscal 2005,

B board members Sune Carlsson, Sirkka Hamaldinen,
Hakan Mogren, Anders Scharp, Q. Griffith Sexton,

Bjorn Svedberg and Jacob Wallenberg were re-elected.

Grace Reksten Skaugen, Peter Wallenberg Jr and
Borje Ekholm were elected new members,

B reelection of Jacob Wallenberg as chairman of the
board,

W approval of total remuneration to the board of SEK
6,937,500, of which SEK 1,875,000 to the chairman,
SEK 500,000 to each board member not employed in

the company, and a total of SEK 1,062,500 for work in

the committees of the board,

B approval of proposed changes to the company’s
Articles of Association,

B approval of the decision by the board regarding the

principles for remuneration and other terms of employ-

ment for management for 2006 and the long-term

variable remuneration (LTVR) program for management

and other employees,

B authorization of the board to decide on the purchase
and transfer of the company’s own shares to give the
board wider freedom of action in the work with the
company’s capital structure and to secure costs
associated with the LTVR program,

B approval of the transfer of shares in Novare Human
Capital to certain senior executives employed in the
company,

B approval of the proposal for a Nomination Committee.

In connection with the 2002 AGM, all sharehalders were
given the opportunity to foliow the meeting by viewing
a live wehcast on Investor's website. Demand for this
service was very limited in relation to the production and
administration costs. Investor has therefore decided not

ta webcast the proceedings of meetings far sharehalders,

on Investor's website, until further notice. Instead, the

President’s address has been published on Investar's website
the day after the AGM.,

The minutes from the meeting have been made available
on Investor's website in both Swedish and English language
versions. All requisite documents prior to the AGM, such as
the report on the work of the Nomination Committee and
all proposals in their full versions, are published on Investor’s
website in advance of the AGM.

INVESTOR'S 2007 ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING

Investor’s 2007 AGM will take place on March 27 at Cirkus
at the City Conference Centre in Stockholm. The location
and date were published in conjunction with the release of
the third quarter report in 2006. Informaticn about the right
of shareholders to have business taken up at the meeting
and the deadline for submitting proposals, to ensure that
they can be included in the notice of the AGM, was also
announced at the time of the third quarter report. Informa-
tion about the AGM is available on [nvestor's website.

Nomination process for electing
the board and auditors
The AGM decides how Investor's nomination process will
be carried out. At the 2006 AGM, it was decided that the
company shall have a Nomination Committee consisting of
one representative each for the four shareholders controlling
the largest number of votes, plus the chairman of the board.
The composition of the Nomination Committee was based
on the register of recorded shareholders supplied by VPC
as of August 31, 2006. The names of the four shareholder
representatives, and the names of the shareholders they
represent, are announced not later than six months hefore
the upcoming AGM. Unless decided otherwise, the person
representing the owner with the largest number of votes is
appointed chairman of the committee.
The Nomination Committee remains in office until a
new Nomination Committee has been appointed. If there
is @ major change among the shareholders controlling the
largest number of votes, the compasition of the Nomination
Committee may be changed to reflect this. Changes to the
composition of the Nomination Committee are announced
publicly as soon as changes are made. If only marginal
changes in the number of votes have taken place, or if the
changes occur later than two months prior to the AGM, and
in the absence of imperative reasons, no changes will be
made to the composition of the Nomination Committee.
The Nomination Cemmittee is responsible for preparing
and presenting proposals for the chairman, the members
of the board, board remuneration (divided between the
chairman, board members and for committee work), the
chairman of the AGM, audit fees and, when applicable, the
election of auditors. Shareholders have the opportunity to
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submit nomination proposals to the committee, The
Nomination Committee's proposals are published in
conjunction with the notice of the upcoming AGM.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE FOR THE 2007 AGM

The composition of the Nomination Committee was
announced in advance of the 2007 AGM on September
27, 2006. In accordance with the decision of the 2006
AGM, the Nomination Committee for the 2007 AGM
includes, in addition to the chairman of the board, the
four shareholders controlling the largest number of votes
in Investor. On August 31, 2006, the four largest share-
holders were the Wallenberg foundations, SEB Foundation,
the Skandia Liv insurance company and Swedbank Robur's
mutual funds. The following representatives were elected
along with the chairman of the board to Investar's
Nomination Committee: Johan Stalhand for the Knut and
Alice Wallenberg Foundation; Lars Isacsson for SEB
Foundation; Caraline af Ugglas for Skandia Liv; Mats
Lagergvist for Swedbank Rebur's mutual funds; and Jacob
Wallenoerg, chairman of Investor. At the first meeting of
the Nomination Committee, Johan Stalhand, represent-
ing the Knut and Alice Wallenberg Foundaticn, the share-
holder controfling the largest number of votes in Investor,
was elected chairman of the committee. The Nomination
Committee represents approximately 50 percent of the
votes in Investor {on December 31, 2006).

In accordance with a decision made by Investor’s 2006
AGM, the Nomination Committee has had the task to
prepare proposals for presenting to the 2007 AGM concern-
ing the chairman of the AGM, the board of directors, the
chairman of the board, board fees, auditors and audit fees.
All shareholders have the opportunity to submit nomination
proposals to the committee.

The proposals of the Nomination Committee and the
report on the committee’s work for the 2007 AGM, as well
as supplementary information about the proposed board
members and auditors, are published in conjunction with
the notice of the AGM and are presented to the 2007 AGM
for appraval.

The Nomination Cammittee held six meetings dur-
ing which minutes were taken and had informal contacts
between meetings. As a basis for its work, the Nomination
Committee performed an evaluation of the board and its
work. In order to assess the extent to which the current
board meets the demands that will be put to the beard as a
consequence of the company’s current position and future
direction, the Nomination Committee discussed the size and
composition of the board in terms of industry experience
and expertise, for example. The Nomination Committee was
also informed about an evaluation of auditing work for the
year and the proposal prepared by the Audit Committee for
the election of auditars and auditing fees.

Reprasentatives

for the Nomination Percentage of Percentage of

Committee for votes votes
the 2007 AGM Represents on B/31/06 on 12/31/06
Johan Stalhand Knut and Alice
Wallenberg Foundation 40.0 % 40.0 %
Lars Isacsson SEB Foundation 4.9 % 4.9 %
Caroline af Ugglas Skandia Liv 39 % 39%
Mats Lagergwist Swedbank Robur's
mutual funds 36% 36%
. Jacob Wallenberg Chairman of
Investor AB

Board of Directors

The AGM elects the board of directors. The board, on
behalf of the company’s owners, Is responsible for the
administration of Investor by establishing goals and strat-
egy, evaluating the operative management, and ensuring
that systems are in place for following up and controlling
established goals. The board is also responsible for ensur-
ing the release of cerrect information to the company’s
stakeholders, that laws and regulations are complied with,
and that ethical guidelines are in place. The board's work
to secure the quality of investor’s financial reporting is
described in the section “Board of Directors’ report on
internal controt”.

The Articles of Assaciation state that Investor's board
shall consist of no less than three and no more than 11
directors. The AGM decides the exact number of mem-
bers that the board will have until the next AGM. The
board is assisted by a secretary who is nat a member of
the board. Board members are to devote the time and
attention to Investor that their assignment demands. Each
board member is responsible for requesting supplemen-
tary information that he/she might feel is necessary for
making well-based decisions, New board members learn
about Investor’s business operations by attending a com-
prehensive, internal orientation course involving meetings
with all of Investor's departmental managers, among other
activities.

The AGM appoints the chairman of the board. The
chairman is to organize and lead the board's work, ensure
that the board regularly updates and improves its knowl-
edge of the company and its operations, communicate the
owners’ views to board members, and function as support
for the president, The chairman and the president develop
proposals for the agenda of board meetings. The chairman
verifies that the board's decisions are implemented effi-
ciently and is also responsible for ensuring that the work of
the board is evaluated annually and that the Nomination
Committee is informed of the result of the evaluation.

FORMAL WORK PLAN FOR THE BOARD

In addition to laws and recommendations, the work of the
board is governed by a formal work plan that is established
each year. The work plan covers the board's work and also

>>
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gives instructions for the president, reporting and the com-

pany’s Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee, and

Finance and Risk Committee. The work plan states, among

other things, that;

W the board shall meet at least five times per year, and in
the event of urgent matters, a board meeting may take
the form of a telephone or video conference,

& the president is empowered to sign the company's
interim reports and year-end report,

B certain items of business are to be taken up at each
meeting and that special decisions are to be made at
the statutory board meeting following the election of
members,

B specific items of business always require a decision by
the board,

B board members shall receive documentation regarding
matters to be dealt with at boarc meetings in good time
prior 1o the meeting, and be provided with a monthly
report on the company’s operations and development, and

W auditors shall be invited to report on their auditing wark
during at least one board meeting that is not attended
by representatives for the company’s management.

The formal work plan also describes how minutes of beard
meetings are to be prepared and distributed to members,
and how the board is to be informed in connection with
the issue of press releases, for example. The work plan also
contains guidelines for decisions that can be delegated to
the president.

Investor’s board continuously evaluates the president’s
work by monitoring the development of the business in
relation to established goals. A formal performance review
is made once a year and discussed with the president. The
board's work is evaluated once a year by requesting board
members to answer a questionnaire anonymously which is
summarized by the secretary of the board. The results of
the evaluation are discussed with the board. The ¢hairman
also has individual discussions with each board member

about the board work for the year. The Nomination
Committee is informed of the results of the evaluation.

INVESTOR'S BOARD IN 2006

The board had ten members during the year and no depu-
ty members. At the 2006 AGM, Jacob Wallenberg, Anders
Scharp, Sune Carlsson, Sirkka Hamdlainen, Hakan Mogren,
O. Griffith Sexton and Bjorn Svedberg were re-elected.
Ulla Litzén declined reelection. Peter Wallenberg Jr, Grace
Reksten Skaugen and Bérje Ekholm were elected new
members. Bérje Ekholm is the only board member who

is a member of the company’s management. The AGM
elected Jacob Wallenberg as chairman for the period up to
the next AGM. The board appointed Anders Scharp vice
chairman at the statutory meeting following the board's
election. See Investor's 2006 Annual Report and Investar’s
website for a more detailed presentation of the board.

INDEPENDENCE OF THE BOARD IN 2006

In its work for the 2006 AGM, the Nomination Committee
discussed the independence of proposed board members.
Before the 2006 AGM, the Nomination Committee’s
members were Jacob Wallenberg (chairman), Marcus
Wallenberg (Knut and Alice Wallenberg Foundation),

Lars Isacsson (SEB Foundation), Caroline af Lgglas
(Skandia Liv) and Peter Rudman (Nordea).

The composition of Investor's hoard meets the inde-
pendence criteria of the Stockholm Stock Exchange.
However, the composition of the board deviates from the
rule in the Swedish Corporate Code of Governance which
states that a majority of the directors elected by the AGM
are to be independent of the company and its manage-
ment. In the view of the Nomination Committee, half of
the proposed board members are independent of the com-
pany and its management. Two of the ten board members
have served on the board more than 12 years, namely
Anders Scharp and Hakan Mogren, and are therefore not
considered to be independent in accordance with the

Independent
of the company’s

Independent
of the company

Board member Elected Pasition Born Nationality and its management major owners
Jaceb Wallenberg 1598 Chairman 1956 Swedish Yes No® |
Anders Scharp 1988 Vice Chairman 1534 Swedish No" Yes
Sune Carlsson 2002 Member 1941 Swedish Yes Yes
Barje Ekholm 2006 Member 1963 Swedish No? Yes
Sirkka Hamadldinen 2004 Member 1939 Finnish Yes Yes
Hakan Mogren 1950 Member 1944 Swedish No" Yes
0. Griffith Sexton 2003 Member 1944 Amenican Yes Yes
Grace Reksten Skaugen 2006 Member 1953 Narwegian Yes Yes
Bjorn Svedberg 1998 Member 1937 Swedish No* No?
Peter Wallenberg Jr 2006 Member 1959 Swedish No? No®

1) Has been a member of the company’s board fer more than 12 years,

2) President and Chief Executive Officer

3) Receives remuneration from Investor in addition to board fees.

4) Has been employed in an associated company over the past three years.
5) Member of the Knut and Alice Wallenberg Foundation.
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Code. In addition, Bjérn Svedberg, who receives remunera-
tion from Investor in addition to board fees; Peter
Wallenberg Jr, who has been employed in the subsidiary
Grand Hétel Holdings over the pasi three years; and CEQ
Bérje Ekholm are not either considered independent in
accordance with the Code. A few board members are
directors of companies that are included in Investor's Core
Investrments and receive board fees from these companies.
In the view of the Nomination Committee, these board
fees do not mean that these persons are to be considered
dependent on Investor or its management. In the opinion
of the Nomination Commitiee before the 2006 AGM, the
ten members of the board were judged 1o be very well
suited for carrying out Investor's board work over their
coming term of office. It has been judged important that
Investor, with its active cwnership philesophy and long-
term ownership involverment in companies, has board
members who have extensive experience and whe are
closely associated with Investor AB and its business model.

The board’s composition complies with the rules of
the Code that at least two of the board directors who are
independent of the company and its management are also
to be independent of the company’s major shareholders.
The independence of each board member is presented in
the table on the preceding page.

BOARD WORK IN 2006
2006 was an intense year for Investor and the high ievel of
business activity also affected the board's work to a great
extent. During the year, the board had 19 meetings, of
which seven regular meetings, one statutory meeting and
11 extraordinary board meetings. The attendance record of
each board member is shown in the table below. The
secretary at the board meetings was attorney Hans Wibom.
Before meetings, board members were provided with
comprehensive written information on the issues that
would be discussed.

During the year, the board’s work was concentrated
mainly on two strategically important items of business, as
well as a number of complex business matters. One was

Investor's and EQT’s joint public offer to acquire the total
shares outstanding in Gambro AB. The offer, the largest
cash bid made by a Swedish company to date, was pre-
ceded by comprehensive work and the preparations and
implementation of the offer were discussed by the board.

The second item of business that the board had reason
to carefully analyze and discuss was MAN's unsolicited bid
for Scania. Based on informaticn from Investor's manage-
ment, the board discussed a number of financial and stra-
tegic issues related to the hid.

The sale of Investor Asia Limited to EQT Partners, as well
as Investor’s capital commitments in EQT's new funds - EQT
Greater China Il and EQT V — were other issues that the
board decided on. The board also discussed LogicaCMG's
offer for WM-data and questions concerning the spin-out
of Husgvarna from Electrolux. In addition, a number of
value creation plans were discussed for Core Investments,

The heard and the Remuneration Committee in par-
ticular were involved in the development of the new long-
term remuneration program consisting of variable and
share-based payment for management and other employ-
ees. The program, which was also discussed with a number
of major shareholders, requires persenal investments on
the part of employees and requires the fulfillment of cer-
tain goals. The board also decided that the exposure that
might arise in connection with an increase in the value
of the Investor shares in the program shall be eliminated
through repurchases of the company’s shares, which was
also decided and approved by the 2006 AGM.

As proposed by the company’s management, and after
in-depth discussions about Investor's long-term strategy
and ability to adapt to the new conditiens in the acquisi-
tions market, the board decided that Investor’s operations
are to be divided into four business areas: Core
Investments, Qperating Investments, Private Equity
Investments and Financial Investments. As a result of
changes in the market, there is also an increased require-
ment to discuss corporate governance issues related to
companies in the different business areas.

In the Operating Investments business area, the board

Attendance Audit  Remuneration Finance & Risk
finance Attendance  record at Committee Committee Committee Total
Audit Remuneration and Risk record at committee  Board fee fee fee fee fee
Narme Committee Committee Committee  bhoard meetings meetings  SEK D00s SEK 000s SEK 0005 SEK 000s  5EK D0Os
Jacob Wallenberg [ | 100% 100% 1,875 125,0 125,0 21250
Anders Scharp [ | 100% 100% 500 62,5 562,%
Sune Carlsson 100% 100% 500 1875 6875
Bérje Ekhotm | 100% 75% - - -
Sirkka Hamalainen B 95%  100% 500 62,5 62,5
Hakan Mogren [ | 87%" 100% 500 125,0 625,0
Q. Griffith Sexton . | 89% 57% 500 62,5 562,5
Grace Reksten Skaugen [ | 100% 75% 500 62,5 562,5
Bitirn Svedberg 100% 80% 500 125,0 6525,0
Peter Wallenberg Jr [ | 100% 75% 500 125,0 625,0
5,875 562,5 250,0 2500 6,937,5

Chairman B Member 1) With the exception of the mestings concerning the bid for Gambro which Hakan Mogren could not attend becausse of possible partiality.
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was also given a number of detailed presentations and
discussed a number of potential acquisitions in addition to
the implemented Gambro buyout.

The financial reports presented at each regular board
meeting are an important part of the board’s work, such as
those before the year-end report and the company's quar-
terly reports. The board also receives manthly reports on
the company’s financial position. At regular board maet-
ings, the ongoing cperations of the four business areas are
reported on. In-depth analyses and proposed action plans
are also presented for ene or mare associated companies
at each board meeting.

Committee work is an impartant part of beard work
and at each meeting the board receives reports from the
Remuneration Committee, Audit Committee and Finance
and Risk Committee concerning decisions and recommen-
dations that the committees have made about remunera-
tion, tax and accounting questions, and risk policies.

During the year, one of the company’s auditors par-
ticipated in a board meeting during which board members
had the opportunity to pose questions to the auditor with-
out representatives for the company’s management being
present. In 2006, the board’s work was evaluated to pro-
vide information as a basis for the wark of the Nomination
Committee and the board’s continuing its work.

BOARD COMMITTEES AND COMMITTEE WORK IN 2006
As part of the company’s efforts to increase the efficiency
and depth of the board’s work on certain issues, the board
has established three committees: the Audit Committee,
Remuneration Committee and Finance and Risk
Committee. The committees are empowered to make
decisions about business that the board has delegated to
them and other issues concerning their respective areas of
respansibility which are not matters of principle.
Guestions discussed by the committees, as well as the
decisions at their meetings, are recorded in minutes and
reports are given at the next hoard meeting.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee is the primary communication chan-
nel between the board and the company’s auditors and is
responsible for the board’s work to assure the quality of
the company’s financial reporting.

Investor’s Audit Committee is appointed annually by
the board and shall censist of at least three board mem-
bers. In accordance with the Swedish Code of Corporate
Governanice, the majority of the committee’s members are
to be independent of the company and its management.
At feast one member of the committee is also to be inde-
pendent of the company’s major sharehalders. Investor's
board instructions specify that a board member who is

a member of the company’s management may not be a
merrber of the Audit Committee. The Audit Committee is
empowered to make decisions within its area of responsi-
bility and shall inform the board afterwards.

WORK OF THE AUDIT COMMITTEE iN 2006

As of the 2006 AGM, the Audit Committee has consisted
of the following four beard members: Sune

Carlsson {chairman), Jacob Wallenberg, Peter

Wallenberg Ir and Hakar Mogren. In the opinion of the
board, which appoints the members of the committee,
these persons were considered to be the most suited to
serve as Investor's Audit Committee for 2006 in terms of
the continuity of the committee’s work, experience, inte-
rests and available time. In accordance with the Swedish
Code of Corporate Governance, two of the committee’s
are not considered to be independent of the company and
its management, namely Hakan Mogren and Peter
Wallenberg Jr. Investor therefore deviates from the Code's
rule that the majority of its members should be indepen-
dent of the company and its management. The compo-
sition of the committee complies with all other rules of
the Code which state that it shall consist of four board
members, of whom two are to be independent of the
company’s major shareholders, and that the president shall
not be a member. The meeting attendance record and
independence of each committee member are shown in
the tables on the preceding pages.

During the year, the committee had six meetings
during which minutes were taken. The members also
continuously discussed issues as needed. One of the
company’s auditors, the CFO or the head of finance
participated in ail meetings during the year. Among other
business in 2006, the committee focused on the acqui-
sition of Gambro and the accounting procedure for this
holding. The Audit Committee works continuously with
the quality assurance of the financial reporting system by
conducting in-depth reviews of the auditors’ reports on the
year-end financial statements and regular audit work. At
all meetings of the committee in 2006, the internal control
function reported on ongoing process evaluations and
specific auditing measures that were implemented.

Before the publication of all of investor's financial
reports in 2006, the committee has analyzed and discussed
them with one of the company’s auditors and the CFO.
The committee also approved the audit plan for the year
and established which services that can be purchased
fram the auditors in addition to audit work. The auditors
performed a so-called hard close audit of the company’s
nine-month interim report. The results of this audit were
presented to the Audit Committee.

Each year the Audit Committee evaluates the auditing
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work and informs the Nomination Committee about results
of the evaluation. During the fall, the Audit Committee
assisted the Nomination Committee with the development
of its propesal for the election of auditors for the peried up
to the end of the 2011 AGM.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The main task of the committee is to prepare issues concern-
ing remuneration and other employee terms and conditions
for management and other employees. The purpase is to
enable independent and thorough transparency regarding
all aspects of Investor’s overall remuneration program. Ques-
tions regarding the president’s remuneration are presented
to the board for decision. Issues concerning remuneration
for the other members of management are decided by the
committee and the board is informed afterwards.

Investor's Remuneration Committee is appointed each
year by the board. The Swedish Code of Cerporate
Governance states that the chairman of the board may
be chairman of the Remuneration Committee. The
committee’s other members, according to the Code, shall
be independent of the company and its management. In
accordance with the instructions to Investor’s board for
the Remuneration Committee, the committee shall consist
of the chairman of the board, who shal! alsc be chairman
of the Remuneration Committee, and two other members
whao are not employed by the company.

WORK OF THE REMUNERATION COMMITTEE {N 2006
Al the statutory meeting of the board in 2006, the board
appointed the following persons as members of the Remu-
neration Committee: Jacob Wallenberg (chairman), Anders
Scharp and Q. Griffith Sexton. Anders Scharp has been a
director on the company’s board for more than 12 years
and is considered, in accordance with the Code, not to be
independent of the company and its management, Investor
therefore deviates from the Code’s rule that the majority of
its members shall be independent of the company and its
management. However, in the opinion of the board, it is
important for the Remuneration Committee to have a mem-
ber who has extra long experience in remuneration issues.
The meeting attendance record and independence of each
member are shown in the tables on the preceding pages.
In 2006, the committee had seven meetings during
which minutes were taken, and when needed, informal
contacts between these meetings. During the year, the
committee worked on developing the guidelines for the
new share program for management and employees that
was presented at the 2006 AGM. During the latter part
of 2006, the Remuneration Committee also followed up
the 2006 program and praposed mineor adjustments to
the 2007 share program. The committee also reviewed

and approved the remuneration structure for the busi-

ness areas, as well as remuneration for management and
other personnel for 2006. Salaries for 2007 were also
evaluated. Personnel-related issues, such as a general
review of employee benefits and the attendance keeping
system, were discussed and implemented during the year.
The Remuneration Committee also discusses strategically
important personnel guestions, such as leadership develop-
ment and succession issues.

FINANCE AND RISK COMMITTEE

Investor's Finance and Risk Committee is appointed each
year by the board. The committee identifies financial risks
and proposes measures to either limit the risks or expose
the company to them. The committee also works with
operational risks, compliance and security issues, ensur-
ing that risks are managed and monitored securely. The
Finance and Risk Committee has the right te decide on
matters in its areas of responsibility and is required to
inform the board afterwards,

WORK OF THE FINANCE AND RISK COMMITTEE IN 2006
Until the 2006 AGM, the committee's members consis-
ted of board members Bjorn Svedberg (chairman), Borje
Ekholm, Sirkka Hamaldinen and Grace Reksten Skaugen.
Ulla Litzén left the committee after she resigned from
the board in cannection with the AGM in March 2006.
In 2006, the committee had five meetings during which
minutes were taken, and when needed, informal contacts
between these meetings. The meeting attendance recoro
and independence of each member are shown in the
tables on the preceding pages. Representatives from
management and risk management and specialist
functions, participated in meetings.

The current risk situation for each area of aperation
is reported on and discussed at each meeting. in connec-
tion with the restructuring of the debt portfelio in the
beginning of 2006, the committee’s work was particularly
focused on the company's financing strategy. In addi-
tion, the committee reviewed current insurance policies,
launched a project for internal and external information
security and updated Investor's compliance policy.

BOARD REMUNERATION

Remuneration for the board for the coming fiscal year is
decided each year by the AGM and is paid to board mem-
bers not employed by the company. For 2006, the AGM
approved remuneration totaling SEK 6,937,500. The distri-
bution of board fees is shown in the table on page 37 and
in Note 5 of this annual report. The chairman receives hig-
her remuneration than the other board members, which
retlects the extra work duties that this position involves.
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Part of the total remuneration is used to pay the fees of
board members who are members of the board's com-
mittees. Members of the board who are not employed by
the company do not participate in Investor’s share-based
remuneraticn programs.

At its statutory meeting, the board approved a policy
for share ownership for the board’s members in which
board members each year use 25 percent of their board
fee, net after tax, to purchase shares in Investor. Purchased
shares are to be retained as long as a member remains on
the board.

Auditing works and auditors

The company’s auditors are appointed by the AGM and
their term of office is normally four years. The task of the
auditors is to audit the company's annual accounts and
accounting recerds on behalf of shareholders, as well as
the administration of the board and the president. Investor
engages the services of two auditing firms: KPMG Bohlins
AB, with Carl Lindgren as auditor in charge, and Ernst &
Young AB, with Jan Birgerson as auditor in charge. The
next election of auditing firms will take place at the 2007
AGM. The Nomination Commiittee’s proposal for auditors
can be found on Investor's wehsite.

Buring the past three years, the auditing firms have
had a iimited number of other assignments from Inves-
tor in addition to their auditing work. These assignments
have mainly involved in-depth reviews in connection with
audits. To ensure the independence of the auditors from
the company, elected auditors are only allowed to perform
a limited number of other services than auditing. All rernu-
neration paid to the auditors during the past two years is
shown in Note 6 of this annual report. Information about
the company’s auditers can be found on investor’s website.

Management

The president Borje Ekholm, also Chief Executive Officer
(CEQ). is responsible for Investor's day-to-day operations.
Written instructions establish how responsibilities are divid-
ed between the board and the president. The president's
responsibilities cover ongoing investments and divest-
ments, personnel, finance and accounting issues, regular
contacts with the campany's stakeholders (such as authori-
ties and the financial markets) and ensuring that the board
receives the information it needs to make well-founded
decisions. The president attends all board meetings, with
the exception of the meeting when the board evaluates his
perforrmance, or when the board meets the auditors with-
out the presence of the president or other persons from
the company’s management. The president of

Investor has appointed a management group that has day-
to-day responsibility for different parts of Investor's busi-

ness activities. The management group has a scheduled
meeting once a week to conduct and follow up current
projects and issues within the organization. In addition to
the weekly meetings, the management group has regular
meetings four to five times a year to discuss basic strategy,
as well as daily interaction between members, See page
43 in this report and Investor's website for a more detailed
presentation of the president and the management group.

MANAGEMENT REMUNERATION

Investor's remuneration policy aims to offer remuneration
ensuring that senior executives, as well as other employees,
can be recruited and retained in the company. The total
remuneration for Investor's management consists of the
following components: basic saiary, variable salary, long-
term share-hased salary, pension and other remuneration
and benefits. The basis for Investar’s total remuneration is
that it is to reflect the employee’s performance as a whole
and be in line with the market, The 2006 AGM decided
on the principles fer remuneration and other employment
terms for the company’s management in 20086, as wel) as
on programs for long-term share-based remuneration for
2006 for company management and other employees. At
the AGM, the Remuneration Committee also reparted on
the principles for remuneration paid to Investor's
management and the programs for long-term share-based
remuneration. For more information see Note 5 in this
annual report and Investor's website.

Policy for Corporate Social Responsibility
Corporate Social Responsibility (CSR) is the active com-
mitment and responsibility of companies for developing
society at large. Investor has a long tradition of acting as

a respansible company and owner. Investor continuously
develops its CSR activities. Investor's basic principle is that
the healthy long-term profitability of a company is ensured
by taking into account the needs of stakeholdars and
society at large.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AS AN OWNER

As an owner, Investor strives to ensure that the companies
it invests in, and has influence in, conduct their operations
in a responsible and ethical manner. Since CSR risks and
challenges will differ between companies, industries and
countries, each company must identify and address the rel-
evant CSR-related issues for its particular operations, Com-
plying with local and national legislation and regulations in
each country of operation is a basic requirement. Several
of Investor’s holdings work actively with C5R issues and
have come far in their CSR work. As part of its CSR activi-
ties, Investor has started to map how its investments work
with carbon dioxide emissions. (nvestor's basic position is
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that the companies shall work actively with ernission issues
in their production and transportation operations, not least
from & competitive standpoint.

CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY AS A COMPANY
AND EMPLOYER

Within Investor's own operations, the primary CSR focus is
to give staff a competitive and inspiring work environment.
Investor supports the OECD Guidelines for Multinational
Enterprises, which contain recommendations on employ-
ment, human rights, the environment, the disclosure of
information and other areas of responsible business con-
duct. Investor has an environmental policy that strives to
minimize its environmental impact through recycling and
other measures. Work is being conducted to analyze how
Investor can act as a company to reduce carbon dioxide
emissions. However, Investor's direct environment impact
is considered to be minor since the company conducts
relatively limited operations from offices.

Investor’s various sponsoring activities normally include
some form of social engagement. Youth, education and
entrepreneurship are prioritized areas. lnvestor sponsors
Students for Free Enterprise (SIFE}, a non-profit organiza-
tion giving university students the opportunity to develop
community outreach projects in an internaticnal project
competition. Investor also sponsors Project Zon Moderna,
an educational art outreach project for youth at Moderna
Museet in Stockholm. Zon Moederna aims to develop the
creative, innovative and entrepreneurial skills of students
through encounters with art, artists and young people
from different backgrounds.

Board of Directors’ Report on
Internal Control
This report on internal cantrol has been submitted by
Investor’s board of directors and is prepared in accordance
with the Swedish Code of Corporate Governance and
the guidance provided by FAR SRS, the institute for the
accounting profession in Sweden, and the Confederation
of Swedish Enterprise. The report is therefore limited to
internal control over financial reporting®. In accordance
with the application instructions of the Swedish
Corporate Governance Board, this report describes how
internal control is organized without making any statement
on how well it has functioned. The report constitutes a
special section of the Corporate Governance Report. The
board's report on internal control has not been reviewed
by the company’s auditors.

Internal control over financial reperting is a process

1} "Financial reporting” refers to quarterly repcrs, the year-end finandia! report and
the annual report.

involving the entire organization, from the board and
management to personnel. nvestor’s internal control is
designed to manage risks in processes related to financial
reporting in order to achieve external reporting of high
reliability. Investor’s main business is the management of
financial transactions and the company's internal control
over financial reporting is focused primarily on ensuring an
efficient and reliable process for managing and reporting on
purchases and sales of securities and holdings of securities.

The systern of internal control is normally described on
the basis of the framework for internal control issued by
the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of the
Treadway Commission (COSQ). The areas forming the
basis for internal control are the control environment, risk
assessment, contral activities, information and communica-
tion and monitoring.

CONTROL ENVIRONMENT
The control environment, forming the basis of internal
control over financial reporting, is made up of various parts
that together shape the culiure and values that guide how
Investor operates. The organizational structure ensured
by the board and management, with clearly defined
roles and responsibilities in each process, is part of this.
Investor's ambitian is that values such as professionalism
integrity should permeate the organization. This puts great
demands on the competence and moral sense of investor's
employees and their awareness of their role in maintaining
good internal control process over financial reporting.
Each business area has policies and detail process
descriptions for the various phases of transaction man-
agement and bookkeeping in the business flow, as well
as other governing documents which lay down rufes as
to who shall bear responsibility for a specific task, which
mandate and powers are to be included and how this is
followed up. The Operating Investments business area is
currently preparing policies and process descriptions for
the Business Development unit.

RISK ASSESSMENT

At board level, the Finance and Risk Committee and the
Audit Committee are respectively responsible for identify-
ing and managing significant financizal risks and any risks of
material weaknesses in financial reporting. In the wake of
this assessment, measures are taken and routines updated
to ensure accurate financial reporting. One very important
routine for Investor is to closely monitor current rules and
laws concerning insider trading and the disclosure of infor-
mation on transactions invelving Investor's listed holdings.
Investor has angoing procedures for assessing and evalua-
ting risks in the process, such as requirements for new
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procedures emerging as a result of changes to laws and
other external regulations,

The annual recurrent risk analysis identifies processes
in which risks for material weakness in financial reporting
for significant income statement and balance sheet items
are relatively higher because of the complexity of the pro-
cess, or where there is a risk that the effects of potential
weaknesses may become significant because of the high
transaction values involved. The Audit Committee decides
on the identified risks that the internal control function will
focus on,

CONTROL ACTIVITIES
The risk assessment leads to a number of control activities.
The purpose of the control activities is to prevent, detect
and rectify weaknesses and deviations. Control activities
include bank and custody recanciliations, analytical follow-
up of decisions, comparisons between income statement
items and automatic checking using IT-based systemns. The
fitness-for-purpose of IT-based checks is revised continu-
ously on the basis of information received frorm system
administrators in the business process and evaluated by an
external partner once a year, The organization strives to
separate duties in such a way that different individuals per-
form different aspects of control. The essential control activ-
ities are documented and improved on an ongoing basis.
During the year, a special audit was conducted of one
of Investor's foreign offices. This audit was focused on
the evaluation of control activities in processes related to
monthly financial reporting. In late autumn, Investor
started to implement a new consolidation system. The
internal control function participated actively in this
project to establish new processes and control activities.
As in 2005, particular emphasis was placed on devising
and following up checks on the effects of new accounting
policies under IFRS.

o
Financial information is regularly released via:

- Press releases about events that may have a

t
- Investor's annual report |
\
significant impact on the company’s share prices ||

¥

| - Interim reports and the year-end report
|
i

INFORMATION AND COMMUNICATION

To ensure the provision of efficient and accurate informa-
tion internally and externally, every aspect of operations
must communicate and share relevant and important
information within the units, upward to management
and the board and downward from the board and man-

agement. Policies and guidelines for the financial process
are communicated between management and personnel
through regular meetings, the intranet and e-mail. The aim
is to identify, account for and fallow up how the financial
process is operating and to rectify any shortcomings. Via
the Audit Committee, the board receives regular feedback
frem operations on aspects of internal contral over
financial repaorting.

To ensure that information given externally is accurate
and comprehensive, the board has approved a communi-
cations policy defining the way in which (by whom, what
and how) this information must be issued.

Investor regularly publishes news and information on
its website so shareholders and stakeholders can follow
Investor's operations and performance. Interim and annual
reports are released in Swedish and English. News and
events that are considered to have an impact on Investor’s
share prices are also announced in press releases.

FOLLOW-UP

The board receives detailed monthly reports on Investor's
financial position and the developmeant of Investor's busi-
ness activities. The company’s financial situation and stra-
tegy are discussed at every hoard meeting. Each quarterly
report is examined by the Audit Committee for accuracy
of the financial information. The Audit Committee also
exercises an important role in ensuring that the required
control activities are in place concerning important areas of
risk related to the company’s financial reporting. Reported
shortcomings are fellowed up regularly via management
and the Audit Committee.

The internal control function serves as an objective
support resource to the beard with regard to the internal
control structure, partly by investigating major areas of risk
and partly by performing follow-ups and specific investiga-
tive auditing assignments in selected areas. The function
warks proactively by proposing improvements to control
systems. The internal contral unit plans its work in consul-
tation with the Audit Committee, management and
external auditors and regularly reports on its work to the
Audit Committee.

In 2006, the internal control function focused on
reducing risks identified in the risk analysis performed in
2005 regarding the risk of material weaknesses in the
financial reporting system. Specific control initiatives were
focused on the business processes of the Private Equity
cperations and evaluations of the loan portfolio and
related hedge accounting. Observations from earlier
auditing initiatives are continuously followed up.
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Management Group

Henry E. Gooss

Bérje Ekholm

born 1963

Director since 2006
President and

Chief Executive Officer
since 2005

Member of the
Management Group since
1997, employed in 1992
Other board
assignmernts

Director:

Chalmersinvest AB,
Greenway Medical
Technologies Inc.,
Husgvarna AB and
Telefonaktiebclaget

LM Ericsson

Work experience

Head of New Investments,
Investor AB

CEO: Novare Kapital,
Investor AB

Analyst: Core Holdings,
Investor AB

Associate: McKinsey

& Co. Inc,

Education

M.B.A., INSEAD, Fontaine-
bleau and M.Sc. in Engi-
neering, Royal Institute of
Technology, Stockholm
Committee

Member: Finance and Risk
Committee

Shares in Investor
239,352

Lars Wedenborn
born 1658

Chief financial Officer
Executive Vice President
and member of the
Management Group since
2000, employed in 2000
fnvestor-related
assignments
Chairman: Novare
Human Capital

Director: The Grand
Hatel Holdings
Education

M.5c. In Economuics,
Uppsala University
Shares in Investor
53,962

Johan Forssell

born 1971

Core Investments
Maraging Director and
member of the
Management Group since
2006, employed in 1995
Investor-related
assignments

None

Education

M.5¢. in Finance,
Stockholm School of
Economics

Shares in Investor
19,171

See Note 5 for holding of employee stock options.
Adine Grate Axén was a member of the Management Group until September 30, 2006,

Borje Ekholm

Henry E. Gooss

born 1941

Investor Growth Capital
Managing Director and
member of the
Management Group since
1998, employed in 1998
Investor-related
assignments

Director: Mainstream
Data Inc,

Education

M.B.A. in Investments,
New Yark University and
B.A. in Economics,
Rutgers University
Shares in Investor
12,289

Lennart Johansson
born 1955

Business Development
Managing Director and
member of the
Management Group since
2006, employed in 2003
Investor-related
assignments

Director: Gambro AB and
Saab AB

Education

M.5¢. in Finance,
Stockholm School of
Economics

Shares in Investor
4,802

Petra Hedengran {as of March 2007}

Petra Hedengran

barn 1964

Corporate Governance and
Compliance

Managing Director and
member of the
Management Group as of
March 2007, employed in
2007

investor-related
assignments

None

Education

Bachelor of Laws,
University of Stockholm
Shares in Investor

¢
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Content of Financials

W ADMINISTRATION REPORT

B PROPOSED DISPOSITION OF EARNINGS

W CONSOLIDATED INCOME STATEMENT

W CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET

B CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT QF CHANGES IN EQUITY
B CONSOULIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B PARENT COMPANY INCOME STATEMENT

B PARENT COMPANY BALANCE SHEET

B PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF
CHANGES IN EQUITY

B PARENT COMPANY STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

B NOTES TC THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Note 1 Accounting policies
Note 2 Segment reporting
Note 3 Changes in value within investing activities
Note 4 Operating costs
Note 5 Employees and payroll costs
Note 6 Fees and expenses for auditors
Note 7 Operating leases
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Administration Report

The Board of Directors and the President of Investor AB (publ.),
556013-8298, hereby present their annual report on the opera-
tions of the Parent Company and Group for fiscal year 2006, the
company's ninatieth year of business. The following income
statements, balance sheets, specifications of changes in equity,
statements of cash flow, accounting principles and notes to the
financial staterments constitute an integral part of the annual report.

Fiscal Year 2006

OPERATIONS
Investor is the largest industrial holding company in the Nordic
region. Investor’s business concept is to generate attractive long-
term returns by investing in companies with solid potential for
value creation and by leveraging Investor's knowledge, experience
and globat network toc make them best-in-class. Cperations are
cenducted in the business areas Core Investments (including a
number of multinational corporations, such as AstraZeneca, Atlas
Cepeo and Ericsson), Operating Investments (including cempanies
such as Gambro and 3 Scandinavia), Private Equity Investments
{with operations in the United States, Nerthern Europe and Asia}
and Financial investments. Core Investments, Private Equity
investments and Financial Investments are all reported under the
heading "Investing activities” in the income statement.

Investor is listed on the Stockholm Stock Exchange, where the
company’s class A and class B shares are traded.

GROUP

Investor's net asset value (market value of total assets less net
debt) — corresponding to shareheclders’ equity — and its change
best reflect the Group’s performance. On December 31, 2006,
investor's net asset value amounted to SEK 159,320 m. (133,945).
During 2006, the net asset value increased by SEK 25,375 m.
{42,094) and consisted primarily of net income of the year totaling
SEK 28,486 m. {43,858} less the dividend to shareholders amount-
ing to SEK 2,685 m_(1,726).

Consolidated operating income was SEK 28,835 m. (43,967).
Income after financial items totaled SEK 28,815 m. (43,968). Net
income for the year was SEK 28,486 m. (43,858). The decrease
from last year was attributable mainly to lower value gains in
Core Investments and Private Equity Investments, SEK 27,260 m.
{37,424) and SEK 583 m. (6,053), respectively. The difference
between net income for the year, SEK 28,486 m. (43,858) and the
change in net asset value, SEK 25,375 m. (42,094) consisted of
dividends paid, SEK -2,685 m. (-1,726) and other changes in the
Group's shareholders’ equity totaling SEK —42& m, (-38).

Investments in shares and participations, and receivables in invest-
ing activities, totaled SEK 13,684 m. during the year {7,253). Sales of
shares and participations, and receivables in investment operations,
amounted to SEK 15,361 m. {24,271). On December 31, 2006, total
assets of the Investor Group amounted to SEK 180,940 m. (162,133),
of which sharehaolders’ equity represented SEK 159,320 m. (133,945).
The equityfassets ratio was 88 percent (83).

At the close of the fiscal year, the Group's short-term invest-
ments and cash and cash equivalents amounted to SEK 18,653 m.

(23,111). Interest-bearing liabilities, including related derivatives
with positive values, totaled SEK 18,038 m. (23,113). The change
was basically attributable to a decrease in short-term investments
used to amoriize interest-bearing liabilities. During 2007-2009,
outstanding leans in the nominal amount of SEK 1,997 m. are due.

At year-end, the Group had a net cash position of SEK 416 m.,
compared with consofidated net debt of SEK 223 m. at year-end
2005, of which pension provisions and similar commitments
accounted for SEK 199 m. (221). The amount also included
derivative items. On December 31, 2005, net debt in relation to
iotal assets was 0.

PARENT COMPANY

Financial reporting in the Parent Company differs from consolidat-
ed reporting with regard to the valuation of associated companies,
which are reported in the Parent Company at cost but at fair value
in the Group.

Operating income of the Parent Company amounted to
SEK 15,848 m. {15,136). Net income for the year totaled SEK
17,147 m. {16,170).

During the year, investments in financial assets totaleg SEK
5,723 m. (2,407). Sales of financial assets amounted to SEK
12,726 m. {12,079}, Capital contributions to Group companies
totaled SEK 6,246 m. (2,189). Capital contributions repaid by
Group companies amounted o SEK 0 m. (400},

On December 31, 2006, total assets of the Parent
Company amounted to SEK 120,466 m. {111,047}, of which
shareholders’ equity was SEK 93,174 m. (78,901). The increase
n equity was attributable mainly to net income for the year,
SEK 17,147 m. (16,170} less the dividend payrment of SEK
2,685 m. to shareholders (1,726).

INVESTING ACTIVITIES

Core Investments

Investor's Core Investments include major listed companies with a
long investment horizon. On Becember 31, 2006, Investor's Core
Investments comprised ABB, AstraZeneca, Atlas Copco, Hectrolux,
Ericsson, Husgvarna, OMX, Saab AB, Scania and SEB.

The value of Core Investments totaled SEK 135,274 m. at year-
end 2006 (115,419). All Core Investments, except AstraZeneca, had
a positive impact on income during 2006. ABB and SEB had the
biggest impact with SEK 7,730 m. and SEK 7,272 m., resgectively.
AstraZeneca affected income negatively with SEK =510 m.

In 2006, a total of SEK 3,125 m. {1,157} was invested in
shares. Shares were sold for SEK 10,530 m. (10,570). SEK 1,911
m. was invested in shares in Electroiux, SEK 515 m. in SEB, SEK
492 m. in Scania and SEK 207 m. in Husqvarna. Sales during the
year consisted of shares in Gambro for SEK 7,779 m, in WiM-data
for SEK 1,936 m., in SEB for SEK 521 m., in Scania for SEK 241
m., in Electrolux for SEK 51 m. and in Husgvarna for SEK 2 m.

During the year, Investor received dividends from the Core
Investments amaounting to SEK 2,852 m. (2,163). The increase was
mainfy attributable to higher dividends from Ericsson, OMX, ABB,
Atlas Copco and AstraZeneca which each totaled in excess of
SEK 100 m.
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Proposed Disposition of Earnings

The Board of Directors and the President propose that the unapgropriated earnings in Investor A8 at the disposal of the Annual

General Meeting:
Retained earnings 57,296,996,143

Net profit for the year 17.147,331,187

be allocated as follows:
Dividend to shareholders, SEK 4.50 per share
Funds to be carried forward

3,452,287,635
70,992,039,695

Total SEK 74,444,327,330

Total SEK 74,444,327,330

The Board of Directors and President declare that, o the best of
our knowledge, the annual report has been prepared in accerd-
ance with generally accepted accounting principles for stock
market companies. The information presented is cansistent with
factual circunstances and nothing of material value has been
omitted that would affect the representation of the Group and
Parertt Company in this annual report.V

The annual accounts and the consolidated financial statements
were approved for the review and approval of the Board of
Directors on February 23, 2007. The consolidated income state-
ment and balance sheet, and the income statement and balance
sheet of the Parent Company, will be presented for adoption by
the Annual General Meeting on March 27, 2007.

Stockholm, February 23, 2007

Jacob Wallenberg
Chairman

-

Anders Scharp
Vice Chairman

Bjérn Svedberg

Sirkka Hamalainan

Peter Wallenberg Ir

-
\ Sure Carlsson

O. Griffith Sexton Hakan Mogre?dﬂ/

[l R S

Grace Reksten Skaugen

Bdrje Ekholm
President and Chief Executive Officer

Our Audit Repert was submitted on February 26, 2007,

KPMG Bohlins AB

= e

Carl Lindgren
Authorized Public Accountant

Ernst & Young AB
l7
—_—
Jan Birgerson
Authorized Public Accountant

1} This assurance, which has been given in accordance with the Swedish Code of Corporate Gavernance, does not mean that the board, the mernbers of the board
and the President assume any greater responsibility other than that stated in the Swedish Companies Act
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Consolidated Income Statement

Amounts in SEK m. Note 2 2006 2005
Investing activities

Dividends 3,171 2,415
Changes in value 3 28,106 43,663
Operating costs 4,5.6,7 -413 ~414
Net profit/loss — Investing activities 30,864 45,664

Operating investments

Net sales 699 659
Cost of services sold -693 =714
Operating costs 4,5 6,7 =51 -8
Share of results of associates 8 -1,872 -1,508
Net profit/loss - Operating investments -1,917 -1,571
Groupwigde operating costs 4,5,6,7 =57 -53
Costs of tang-term incentive programs 5 -55 -73
Operating profit/loss 28,835 43,967

Profit/loss from financial items

Financial income 2] 1,738 1,522
Financial expenses 9 1,758 -1,521
Net financial items -20 1
Profit/loss before tax 28,815 43,968
Taxes 10 -329 -110
Profitdloss for the year 28,486 43,858
Attributable to:

Shareholders of the Parent 28,468 43,842
Minority interest 18 16
Profit/loss for the year 28,486 43,858
Basic earnings per share, SEK 1% 37.13 57.15

Dituted earnings per share, SEK 1 37.03 57.02
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Consolidated Balance Sheet

Armounts in SEK m, Nate 12/31 2006 12/31 2005
ASSETS

Property, plant and equipment and intangible assets 12,13, 14 2,489 2,422
Shares and participations in investing activities 15 152,219 131,648
Investments in associates 8 3,713 463
Long-term receivables 16 966 1,509
Deferred tax assets 10 14 40
Total non-current assets 159,401 136,082
Tax assets 78 102
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 17 712 975
Other receivables 16 547 453
Shares and participations in active portfolio management 18 1,549 1,410
Short-tarm investments 19 13,045 18,891
Cash and cash equivalents 20 5,608 4,220
Total current assets 21,539 26,051
TOTAL ASSETS 180,940 162,133
Amounts in SEK m. Note 12/31 2006 12/31 2005
EQUITY 21

Share capital 4,795 4,795
Other contributed equity 13,533 13,533
Reserves 108 160
Retained earnings, including profitloss for the year 140,731 115,337
Equity attributable to the Parent Company shareholders 159,167 133,825
Minority interest 153 120
Total equity 159,320 133,945
LIABILITIES

Long-term interest-bearing liabilities 22 17,633 20,555
Pensions and similar obligations 23 199 221
Pravisions 24 129 147
Deferred tax liabilities 10 619 553
Total non-current liabilities 18,580 21,476
Current interest-bearing liabilities 22 666 3,998
Trade payables 224 62
Tax liabilities 222 92
Accrued expenses and deferred income 25 1,265 1,317
Other liabilities 26 G630 1,205
Pravisions 24 33 38
Total current liabilities 3,040 6,712
Consolidated total liabilities 21,620 28,188
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 180,940 162,133

See Note 27 for the Group’s contingent liabilities and assets pledged as securities.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity

Minority Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company interest equity
Retained
Other earnings, incl.
Share contributed profitloss
Amounts in SEK m. Note 21 capital equity  Reserves for the year Totat
Opening balance 1/1 2006 4,795 13,533 200 115,297 133,825 120 133,945
Translation reserve, change for the year -2 -2 1 -1
Revaluation reserve, change for the year -40 40
Hedging reserve, change for the year 6 6 6
Changes in equity of associates -233 -233 -233
Other changes in net assets recognized directly in equity -23 -23 23
Total change in net assets recognized directly
in equity, excluding transactions with shareholders -26%9 17 -252 24 -228
Profitloss for the year 28,468 28,468 18 28,486
Total change in net assets, excluding transactions
with shareholders ~-269 28,485 28,216 42 28,258
Dividends -2,685 -2,685 -9 2,694
Stock options exercised by employees -113 ~113 -113
Equity-settled share-based payment transacticns™ 13 13 13
Repurchases of own shares -89 -89 -89
Balance at year-end 2006 4,795 13,533 -69 140,908 159,167 153 159,320
Minority Total
Equity attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company interest equity
Retained
Cther earnings, incl.
Share contributed profit/toss
Amounts in SEK m. Note 21 capital equity Reserves for the year Total
Opening balance 1/1 2005 4,795 13,533 229 73,419 91,976 110 92,086
Adjustment for change in reporting period? -235 -235 -235
Adjusted equity 4,795 13,533 229 73.184 91,741 110 91,851
Translation reserve, change for the year 33 33 3 36
Revaluation reserve, change for the year -29 2%
Hedging reserve, change for the year -73 -73 =73
Changes in equity of associates 40 40 40
Total change in net assets recognized directly
in equity, excluding transactions with shareholders -29 29 0 3 3
Profitfloss for the year 43,842 43,842 6 43,858
Total change in net assets, excluding transactions
with shareholders -29 43,871 43,842 19 43,861
Dividends -1,726 -1,726 -9 1,735
Stock options exercised by employees 52 -52 -52
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions? 20 20 20
Balance at year-end 2005 4,795 13,533 200 115,297 133,825 120 133,945

1) Refers to IFRS 2.
2) Refers to the effect of changing the accounting of an associate from three months’ to one month's delay.
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows

Amounts in SEK m. Note 20 2006 2005
Operating activities
Core Investments

Dividends received 2,852 2,163
Operating tnvestments

Cash receipts 349 785

Cash payments -868 -1,097
Private Equity Investments

Dividends received 280 225
Financial Investments and operating costs

Dividends received 39 40

Cash receipts 27,731 22,458

Cash payments -28,892 -23,052
Cash flow from operating activities before net interest and income taxes 1,491 1,522
Interest received/paid -554 -858
Income taxes paid -84 =21
Cash flow from operating activities 853 643
Investing activities
Core Investments

Acquisitions -3,12% -1,708

Divestments 8,980 11,121
Operating Investments

Acquisitions, etc. -4,246 -

Increase in long-term receivables -1,340 -1,660

Decrease in long-term receivables - 4,200
Private Equity Investments

Acqguisitions, etc. -4,490 —4,905

Divestments 5,630 9,353
Financial Investmants

Acquisitions, etc. -1 -18

Divestments 627 315
Net changes, short-term investments 5,952 -11,198
Acquisitions of property, plant and equipment -184 -272
Disposals of property, plant and equipment - 403
Cash flows from investing activities 7,803 5.631
Financing activities
Loans raised 4,673 -
Payment of loans -9.154 ~4,766
Repurchases of own shares -89 -
Dividends paid -2,685 -1,726
Cash flow from financing activities -7.,255 —6,492
Cash flow for the year 1,401 -218
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 4,220 4,414
Exchange difference in cash -13 24
Cash and cash equivalents at year-end 5,608 4,220
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Parent Company Income Statement

Amounts in SEK m. Note 2006 2005
Investing activities

Dividends 2,852 2,230
Changes in value 3 14,994 15,464
Impairment |osses 38 -1,531 -2,096
Operating costs -263 -248
Net profit/loss - Investing activities 16,052 15,350
Net sales 3 4
Operating €osts -207 -218
Operating profit/oss 15,848 15,136
Profit/lass from financial items

Results from participations in Group companies 33 1,783 1,827
Results from other receivables that are non-current assets 34 925 1,015
Interest income ard similar items 35 237 265
Interest expense and similar items 36 —-1,646 -2,073
Profit/loss after financial items 17,147 16,170
Taxes 10 - -

Profit/ioss for the year 17,147 " 16,170

Wl
Ut




56

Parent Company Balance Sheet — Investor 2006

Parent Company Balance Sheet

Amounts in SEK m. Note 12/31 2006 12131 2005
ASSETS
Nen-current assets
intangible assets
Capitalized expenditure for software 12 9 4
Property, plant and equipment
Equipment 13 22 24
Financial investments
Participations in Group companies 37 26,183 18,354
Participations in associates 38 37,666 38,469
Other Jong-term holdings of securities 39 41,955 34,357
Receivables from Greup companies 40 13,254 15,108
Total non-current assets 119,089 106,316
Current assets
Current receivables
Accounts receivable 1 4
Receivables from Group companies 1,132 4,677
Receivables from associates 1 -
Tax assets 10 11
Other receivables 2Mm 1
Prepaid expenses and accrued income 17 32 38
1,377 4,731
Cash and cash equivalents 20 0 0
Total current assets 1,377 4,731
TOTAL ASSETS 120,466 111,047
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Parent Company Balance Sheet

Amounts in SEK m. Note 12/31 2006 12/31 2005
EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity 21
Restricted equity
Share capital 4,795 4,795
Statutory reserve 13,935 13,935
18,730 18,730
Unrestricted equity
Accumulated profitloss 57,297 44,001
Profitfloss for the year 17,147 16,170
74,444 60,171
Total equity 93,174 78,901
Provisions
Provisions for pensions and similar obligations 23 168 190
Other provisions 24 161 177
Total provisions 329 367
Non-current liabilities
Loans 16,641 18,688
Liabilities to Group companies 0 538
Total non-current liabilities 22 16,641 19,226
Current liabilities
Leans 645 3,773
Trade payables 20 15
Liabifities to Group companies 8,927 7,018
Tax liabilities 8 -
Other liabilities 35 59
Accrued expenses and deferred income 25 687 1,688
Total current liabilities 10,322 12,553
TOTAL EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 120,466 111,047
ASSETS PLEDGED AND CONTINGENT LIABILITIES
Assets pledged as securities 27 504 348
Contingent liabilities 27 4,324 4,327
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Parent Company Statement

of Changes in Equity

Restricted equity

Unrestricted equity

Share Statutory Accumolated Profit/loss Total
Amounts in SEK m., Note 21 capital reserve profit/loss for the year equity
Opening balance 1/1 2006 4,795 13,935 60,171 78,901
Profitfloss for the year 17,147 17.147
Total change in net assets,
excluding transactions with shareholders 17,147 17,147
Dividends -2,685 -2,685
Stock options exercised by employees -~113 =113
Equity-settied share-based payment transactions" 13 13
Repurchases of own shares -89 -89
Balance at year-end 2006 4,795 13,935 57,297 17,147 93,174

Restricted equity Unrestricted equity

Share Statutory Accumulated ProfitNoss Total
Amounts in SEK m. Note 21 capital reserve profitloss for the year equity
Opening balance 1/1 2005 4,795 13,935 37,522 56,252
Adjustment for changes in accounting principles 8,237 8,237
Adjusted equity 1/1 2005 4,795 13,935 45,759 64,489
Profit/loss for the year 16,170 16,170
Total change in net assets,
excluding transactions with shareholders 16,170 16,170
Dividends -1,726 -1.726
Stock options exercised by employees -52 =52
Equity-setiled share-based payment transactions®! 20 20
Balance at year-end 2005 4,795 13,935 44,001 16,170 78,901

1) Refers to IFRS 2.
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Parent Company Statement of Cash Flows

Amounts in SEK m. Note 20 2006 2005
Operating activities

Dividends received 2,852 2,230
Administrative costs -587 ~332
Cash flow from operating activities hefore

net interest and income taxes 2,265 1,898
Interest received/paid -53 -824
Income taxes paid -7 . 4
Cash flow from operating activities 1,727 1,078

Investing activities
Share portfolic

Acquisitions -5,723 ~2,407

Divestments 12,726 12,079
Other items

Capital contributions to subsidiaries -6,246 -2,189

Repaid capital contributions from subsidiaries - 400

Acquisitions of items of property, plant and equipment -3 -15
Cash flows from investing activities 754 7,868

Financing activities

Loans raised 4,673 -
Payment of loans -9,154 ~-4,778
Change, inter-company balances 4,774 -2,442
Repurchases of own shares -89 -
Dividends paid -2,685 -1,726
Cash flow from financing activities -2,481 -8,946
Cash flow for the year 0 0
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of the year 0 0

Cash and cash equivalents at year-end 0 0




GO

Notes to the Financial Statements - Investor 2006

Notes to the Financial Statements

NOTE 1 Accounting policies I:I

ACCOUNTING AND MEASUREMENT PRINCIPLES

The consolidated financial statements bave been prepared in accordance
with the International Financial Reparting Standards (IFRS) published by the
International Accounting Standards Board (IASB} and interpretations from
the Internatianal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC),

as adopted by the European Union. In acddition, the Swedish Financial
Accounting Standards Counail's recommendation concerning supplemen-
tary accounting principles for groups, RR 30 “Supplementary Accounting
Regulations for Groups”, has been applied.

The Parent Company applies the same accounting principles as ihe
group, except where noted below in the section *Accounting Principles of
the Parent Company.” Any differences between the accounting principles
of the Parent Company and those of the Group are caused by fimitations
to the application of IFRS in the Parent Company because of the Swedish
Annual Accounts Act and the Swedish law on safeguarding pension com-
mitments (" Tryggandelagen™), and 10 some extent for tax reasons.

Basis of preparation of the financial statements

for the Parent Company and the Group

The Parent Company's functional currency is the Swedish krona, which
also is the reporting currency for the Parent Company and for the Group.
The financial statements are therefore prepared in Swedish kronor. All
amounts, unless otherwise stated, are rounded to the nearest million.

Non-current assets and liabilities consist basically of amounts that are
expected 10 be recovered or settled after more than 12 months from the
batance sheet date. Current assets and current liabilities consisi mainly of
amounts that are expected to be recovered or settled within 12 months
from the balance sheet date.

In order to prepare the financial reports in accordance with IFRS, man-
agement must make estimates and assumptions that affect the accounting
principles and the amounts recognized for assets, fiabilities, revenues and
expenses. The estimates and assumptions are based on past experience and
a number of factors that seem reasonable under the current conditions.
The result of these estimates is then used to assess the carrying amaunts of
asset and liabilities whose source is otherwise not clear. The actual
cutcome may differ from these estimates and assessments.

The estimates and assumptions are reviewed regularly. Changes in
estimates are reported in the period the change is made, if the change
has only affected this period, or in the perod the change is made and in
future periods if the change affects both the current period and future
periods. Estimates made by management when applying IFRS which have a
significant effect on the financia! statements, and estimates that can result
in sigrificant adjustments of the financial statements in the following year,
are disclosed in “Note 31 Key estimates and assumptions”.

The accounting policies for the Group, specified below, have been
consistensly applied o all periods presented in the consolidated financial
statements, unless otherwise noted below. The accounting principles of
the Group have bean consistently applied to reporting and consolidation of
subsidiaries and associates.

The accounting principles of the Parent Company, specified below,
have been consistently applied to all periods presented in the financial
statements of the Parent Company.

Changes in accounting policies

New accounting principles in 2006

As of 2006, the amendment to 145 39 “The fair value option” may be

applied. Due to the possibility of earlier adoption, the valuation of certain

financial assets and liabilities at fair value through profit or loss was

intreduced in 2005,

The following new accounting regulations have been introduced in

2006:

= Amendment to 1AS 39 concerning financial guarantees.

*+ Amendment to 1AS 19 concerning the accounting of actuarial gains and
actuarial losses and centain disctosures. The new rules allow the company
to recognize actuarial gains and actuarial losses directly in equity. Investor
has chosen not to use this possibility. Currently, Investor holds the view
that &l actuarial gains and actuarial losses will continue to be recognized
directly in the income statement.

The application of these new accounting principles has not had any effect

on Investor’s reported figures.

All amounts in SEK millions
unless specified otherwise

New accounting principles in 2007

When reporting in 2007, tnvestor will apply “IFRS 7 Financial Instruments;
Disclosures” and the related changes in “IAS 1 Presentation of Financial
Statements”. The new regulations require additional disctosures about
capital, financial instruments and financial risks, but have no effect on
Investor’'s income and financial position.

SEGMENT REPORTING

A segment is & distinguishable component of the group that s either
engaged in providing certain products or services (business segment) or
that is engaged in providing products or services within a particular eco-
nomic environment (geographical segment}, and that is subject to risks and
returns that are different from those of other segments.

Segment information is reported in accordance with 145 14 for the
Group only. The business areas Core Investments, Operating Investments,
Private Equity Investments and Financial Investments constitute the primary
format for reporting the Group’s operations by segment. The internal
reporting structure is based on a corresponding format, which is why the
business areas are the most appropriate primary reporting format to use.

No segment reporting based on geographic areas is presented because
no geographic areas could be identified that correspond 1o the definition
“a distinguishable component of an entity that is engaged in providing
products or services within a particular economic enviranment and that is
subject to risks and returns that are different from those of components
operating in other economic environments.” Since the geographic risks for
holdings depend on the markets in which they operate, the geographic
operating areas of each holding could constitute a meaningful format
for segment reporting based on geographic areas if it had been passible
to obtain this information. The information is difficult to obtain because
Investor has a large number of hoidings and is usually a minority owner.

Other possible formats for segment reporting based on geographic
areas, such as the regisiered headquarters of the holdings, ar alternatively,
the Investor office fram which the holdings are administered, are judged to
be of very limited value, since the operations of these units are dependent
on developments in other geographic areas.

Geographic areas are not used for internal reporting purposes either.

CONSOLIDATION PRINCIPLES
Subsidiaries
Subsidiaries are entities that are controlfed by Investor AB. Control is the
power to, directly or indirectly, govern the financial and cperating policies
of an entity so as to obtain benefits from its activities. When assessing
whether an enterprise controls another enterprise, the existence and effect
of potential voting rights currently exercisable or convertible is considered.

Subsidiaries are reported in accordance with the purchase method.
Under the method an acquisition is treated as a transaction in which the
Group indirectly acquires the subsidiazy's assets and assumes s liabilities
and contingent Jiabilities. The consolidated cost is determined by an analy-
sis at the time of the business combinaticn. tn the analysis, the cost of
the participations or operations is determined, as well as the fair value of
the identifiable assets and the assumed lizbilities and contingent liabilities
on the transaction daie. The cost of the shares in the subsidiary and the
aperations, respectively, consists of the fair values on the transfer date for
assets, liabtlities incurred or assumed, and equity instruments issued and
used as consideration for the net assets acquired and the transaction cost
directly attributable to the acquisition. In a business combination where
cost exceeds the net carrying amount of acquired assets and assumed
liabilities and contingent liabilities, the difference is recognized as goodwill.
When the difference is negative, it is recognized directly in the income
statement.

The financial statements ot subsidiaries are consolidated from the date
of the acquisition untii the date when control ceases.

Associates

Associates are companies in which Investor has significant influence.
Investor's main rule is that investments in associates are recognized as
financial instruments at fair value in accordance with 1AS 3% and 1AS 28.1.
Investments in associates within Operating Investments are reported using
the equity method because Investor is involved in the business operations
of these holdings to a greater extent than in other business areas.
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Cperaling investments
Associates in which Investor has a controlling interest or a large ownership
stake in the underlying investment, and is involved in operaticns more than
in other business areas, are reported as Operating Investments. From the
date significant influence is gained, interests in associates are recognized
using the equity method in the consolidated financial statements. When
applying the equity method, the carrying amount of shares in associates in
the consolidated financial statements corresponds to the Group's share of
equity in the associates, consalidated goodwill, and any residual vatue of
consclidated surplus values and values less than the carrying amount. In the
consclidated income statement, the Group's share of associates’ net resuits
after tax and minority adjusted for any depreciation, impairment losses or
resolved acquired surplus values and values less than carrying amount is
recognized as "Share of results of associates.” Dividends received from an
associate reduce the carrying amouni of the investment. On acguisition
of the investment any difference between the cost of the holding and the
investor's share of the net fair value of the associate’s identifiable assets,
liabilities and contingent liabilities is accounted for in accordance with
“IFRS 3 Business Combinations”.

When the Group's share of reported losses in the associate exceeds
the carrying amount of the participations in the Group, the value of the
participations is reduced 1o zero. Losses are also settled against long-term
financial dealings with no security whose substance is part of the investor’s
net investment in the associate, Continuing losses are not recognized,
unless the Group has guaranteed 1o cover losses incurred in the associate.
The equity method is applied until the date when the Group's significant
influence ceases.

Shares and participations in investing activities

The Investor Group is mainly involved in venture capital operations.
According 10 1AS 28.1, share-based investments, including those where
Investor has significant influence, are recognized at fair value through profit
or loss, according to IAS 39,

Transactions that are eliminated in consolidation
Intra-group receivables and payables, revenue and expenses, and unrealized
gains or unrealized losses arising in intra-group transactions, are fully
eliminated in the preparation of the consolidated financial statements.
Unrealized gains arising from transactions with associates that are
consolidated using the equity methed are eliminated to the extent that
corresponds to the Group’s interest in the company.
Unrealized |osses are efiminated in the same way as unrealized gains,
but only tc the extent that there is ne indication of impairment loss.

FUNCTIONAL CURRENCY

Functional currency is the currency of the primary economic environments
in which Group companies operate. Group companies consist of the Parent
Company, subsidiaries and associates. The functional currency and
reporting currency of the Parent Company is Swedish kronor. The reporting
currancy for the Group is Swedish kronor.

FOREIGN CURRENCY

Foreign currency transactions

Foreign currency transactions are transiated into the functional currency at
the exchange rate on the date of the exchange transaction. Foreign currens
¢y monetary assets and liabilities are translated into the functional currency
at the exchange rate on the balance sheet date. Non-monetary assets and
non-monetary liabilities recognized at historical cost are translated using
the exchange rate on the date of the transaction. Non-monetary assets
and non-monetary liabilities recognized at fair value are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rate on the date of measurement
at fair value. Exchange differences arising on translations are recognized in
the income statement with the exception of certain financial instruments.
See the section “Financial Instruments” below.

Financial statements of foreign aperations

Assats and liabilities in foreign operations, including goodwill and other
consolidated surplus values and values less than the carrying amount, are
translated into Swedish kronor using the exchange rate on the balance

sheet date. Revenues and expenses for a foreign operation are translated
into Swedish kronor using an average exchange rate that approximates the
exchange rates on the dates of the transactions.

Foreign currency translation differences when translating foreign opera-
tions are recognized directly in equity as a translation reserve.

Net investment in a foreign operation

Translation differences arising when translating a net investment in a
foreign operation and related effects of hedges of the net investments are
recognized directly in the translation reserve under equity. When a foreign
operation is divested, cumulative translation differences attributable to the
company are realized in the consolidated income statement tess any
currency hedges.

Cumulative translation dif{erences are reported as a separate category
under equity, the translation reserve, and consist of translation differences
accumulated since January 1, 2004. Cumulative translation differences prior
to January 1, 2004 are allocated to other categories under equity and are
not separately disclosed.

REVENUE

Revenues consist mainly of changes in the value of securities and dividends.
Revenues are reporied in the income statement when it is probable that
economic benefits associated with the transaction will flow to the company
and the amecunt of benefits can be measured reliably. Revenues are
measured at the fair value of the consideration received or recevable.

For items that were held in the balance sheet at the beginming and at
the close of the period, the change in value consists of the difference in
value between these two dates. For items in the balance sheet that were
realized during the period, the change in value consists of the difference
hetween the proceeds received and the value at the beginning of the
period. For items in the balance sheet that were acquired during the
period, the change in value consists of the difference between the value at
the close of the period and the acquisition cost.

Dividends are recognized when the right to receive payment is
established.

EXPENSES

Operating costs

Operating costs refer mainly 1o costs of administrative nature, such as
payroll costs, rental charges, travel expenses, consultant costs, etc.

Payments for operating leases

Payments for operating leases are recognized on & straight-line basis over
the lease term. Incentives received when entering an agreement are
included in the total recognized cost of leasing in the income statement.

FINANCIAL INCOME AND EXPENSES
Financial income and financial expenses consist of interest income from
bank depaosits, receivables and interest-bearing securities, interest
expenses on loans, exchange rate differences, changes in the value of
financial investments and liabilities and derivatives used to finance opera-
tions. Interest income includes the net of interest on derivatives attnbutable
1o the company’s loans.

Interest income on receivables and interest axpenses on liabifitics are
estimated using the effective interest method. The effective interest rate
is the rate that discounts the expected stream of future cash payments
through maturity to the carrying amount of the receivable or payable at

initial recognition. Transaction costs, including issuing costs, are
expensed immediately as receivables or payables are measured at fair value
through profit or loss and are amortized over the term when measured
at amortized cost. Costs relating to credit facilities are recognized on a
straight-line basis over the term of the facilities.

The Group and the Parent Company do not capitalize interest in the cost
of property, plant and equipment.

INTANGIBLE ASSETS

Capitalized expenditure for software

Direct costs of software intended for own administrative use are recog-
nized as an asset in the balance sheet when costs are expected 10 generate
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future economic benefits in the form of more efficient processes, Other
development costs are recognized as incurred, Capitalized costs for soft-
ware are depreciated with the straight line method over an estimated
usetul life of five years from the date they become available for use.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Owner-occupied property

Owner-occupied property is recognized at fair value less accumulated
depreciation and revaluation adjustments made since the last revaluation.
Revaluation is made with sufficient regularity to ensure that the carrying
amount does not differ materially from that which is determined using

fair value on the balance sheet date. When an asset's carrying amount is
increased as a result of a revaluation, the increase is credited directly to
equity under the heading "Revaluation reserve.” If the increase consists of
a reversal of a previously recognized impairment loss an the same asset,
the increase is recognized as a reduced cost in the incame statemnent.
When an asset's carrying amount is decreased as a result of a revaluation,
the decrease is recognized as an expense. If there is a balance in the revaly-
ation reserve attributable to the asset, the decrease is recognized directly to
the revaluation reserve. The difference between the depreciation based on
the revalued amount, and the depreciation according to the ariginal cost, is
transferred from the revaluation reserve 1o retained earnings.

Accumulated depreciation on the date of revatuation is eliminated
against the cost of the asset (or revalued cost, if applicable), and the
remaining net amount is adjusted to be consistent with the revalued
amount (the fair value of the asset).

When an asset is divested, the revaluation reserve is transferred 10
retained earnings, without affecting profit or loss.

Owmner-vccupied property for which the components have different
useful lives, are treated as separate compaonents (such as the framework,
roof and basic installations) of owner-occupied property.

The carrying amount for an owner-occupied property is derecognized on
disposal or when no future economic berefits are expected from the use or
disposal of owner-occupied praperty. Gains or losses on the sale or disposal
of an owner-occupied property is determined as the difference between
the selling price and the carrying amount of the asset less direct costs 1o
dispose of the asset. Gains or losses are recognized in operating income.

Subsequent expenditure relating to owner-occupied property
Subsequent expenditure is included in the cost only if it is probable that the
future economic benefits associated with the asset will flow to the compa-
ny and that the cost can be measured reliably. All other subsequent expend-
itures are recognized as an expense in the period in which it is incurred.
The assessment of whether a subsequent expenditure is included in
the cost depends on whether the expenditure relates to replacements of
identified components, or parts thereof, in which case the expenditure is
capitalized. Even in cases where a new component has been created, the
expenditure is added to the cost. Any undepreciated carrying amounts of
replaced components, or paris of components, are disposed and expensed
in connection with the replacement. Repairs are recognized as incurred.

Leased assets

In the conselidated financial staternents, leases are classified as either finan-
cial or operating leases. The Jease is a financial lease when the economic risks
and rewards incident to ownership of a leased asset are essentially trans-
ferred to the lessee, otherwise the lease is classified as an operating lease.
Invester's ieases are exclusively operating leases, and refer mainly 1o office
rents and office machines.

Depreciation principles

Depreciation is calculated with the straight-line method over the estimated
useful lite of the asset. Land is not depreciated. The Group applies depre-
ciation based on components, in which depreciation is based on the useful
life of each component.

Useful lives:

Buildings
Framework 50 -100 years
Large components 5- 25 years

Equipment and computers 3 — 10 years
The residual value and the useful life of an asset are reviewed each year.

All amounts in SEK miffions
unless specified otherwise

IMPAIRMENT

The carrying amounts of the Group's property plant and equipment and
intangible assets are reviewed each balance sheet date for an indication of
impairment. if any such indication exists, the recoverable amount of that
asset is estimated.

An impairment loss is recognized if the carrying amaunt of an asset
exceeds the recovarable amount. An impairment loss is recognized in the
income statement.

Financial 2ssets that are not recognized at fair value through profit or
loss, such as toans and trade account receivables, are tested for impairment
tf there is evidence of impairment. If there is such indication, the recov-
erable amount is estimated. An impairment loss is recognized when the
carrying amount of an asset exceeds the recoverable amount. An
impairment loss is recognized in the income statement.

Measurement of the recoverable amount

The recoverable amount of assets in the categories loans and receivables,
which are recognized at amortized cost, is determined as the present value
of future cash flows discounted at the effective rate at inftial recognition of
the asset. Assets with short maturities are not discounted.

The recoverable amount of other assets is the highest of fair value less
costs to sell and value in use. When determining the value in use, future
cash flows are discounted using a discount rate that takes into account
the risk-free interest rate and risk associated with the specific asset. for an
asset that does not generate cash flow, which is largely independent of
other assets, a common recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit that the asset belongs to.

Reversal of impairment losses

An impairment loss is reversed if a later increase in the recoverable amount
can be objectivety related to an event occurring after the impairment loss
was recognized and there has been a change in the estimates used to
determine the asset’s recoverable amount.

An impairment loss is reversed only to the extent that it does not
increase the carrying amount of an asset above the carrying amount that
would have been determined for the asset had no impairment loss been
recognized, 1aking inte account the depreciations of the asset.

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS

For the Group, financial instruments are measured and recognized in
accordance with the requirements in *IAS 39 Financial Instruments:
Recognition and Measurement”. Finandial instruments are initially recog-
nized at cost, corresponding to the fair value of the instrument plus trans-
action costs of receivables and payables measured at amortized cost. Gther
financial assets and firancial #iabilities are measured less transaction cost

at initial recognition. A financial asset or financia! liability is recognized in
the balance sheet when the company becomes party to the instrument’s
contractual terms, Trade account receivables are recognized in the halance
sheet when an invoice is sent. A liability is recognized when the counter-
party has performed and there is a contractual obligation to pay, even if an
invaice has not been received yet. Trade account payables are recognized
when an invoice is received.

A financial asset is derecognized in the batance sheet when the rights
in the agreement have been realized, become due or when the compary
Ioses control over them. This 2pplies also for a part of a financial asset. A
financial liability is derecognized in the balance sheet when the abligations
in the contract are fulfilled or extinguished in some other way. This applies
also for part of a financil liability.

Acquisitions and divestmenis of financial assets are recognized on the
transaction date, which is the date when the company commits to acquire
or divest the asset.

Shares and participations in investing activities

Shares and participations in investing activities are reported in accardance
with IAS 39 and the *fair value opuon” at fair value through profit or loss.
The *fair value option™ is used when Investor hases the follow-up of the
holdings at fair value, According to IAS 28.1, share-based investments, over
which Investor has significant influence, according to IAS 39, are also
recognized at fair value through profit or loss (“fair value option”), Fair
value is determined as follows:
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Listed holdings
Listed holdings are measured on the basis of their share price (purchase
price, if there is one guoted) on the closing date.

Unlisted holdings and fund holdings

Unlisted holdings are measured on the basis of the "International Private
Equity and Venture Capital Valuation Guidelines” prepared and published
jointly by the venture capital organizations EVCA, BVCA and AFIC.

For directly owned holdings {i.e. those owned directly by a company
in the investor Group), an overall evaluation is made to determine the
measurement method that is appropriate for each specific helding. 1t is
first taken into account whether a recent financing round or “arms length
transaction” has been made, after which a valuation is made by applying
refevant multiples to the halding's key ratics (for example, EBITDA), derived
from a relevant sample of comparable companies, with deduction for
individually determined adjustments as a consequence of, for example, the
size difference hetween the company being valued and the sample of com-
parable companies. An assessment is then made of the above-mentioned
methods to determine the cne that best reflects the market value of the
holding, and the holding is then valued according to that methed. In those
cases when other measurement methods better reflect the fair value of a
holding, this value is used, which means that certain holdings are measyred
with methods other than the ones described above.

Unlisted holdings in funds are measured at Investor’s share of the value
that the fund manager reports for al! unlisted haldings in the fund and is
normally updated when a new valuation is received. If Investor’s assess-
ment is that the fund manager's valuation does not sufficiently take into
account factors that affect the value of the underlying holdings, or if the
vaiuation is considered 10 deviate considerably from {FRS principles, the
value is adjusted. Listed holdings in funds are measured in the same way as
listed holdings, as described above.

Shares and participations in active portfolio management

Shares and participaticns in active portfolio management activities are
reported in accordance with IAS 39 as financial instruments held for trad-
ing, measured at fair value through profit or loss. All holdings and liabilities
are noted and are valued on the basis of their share price (purchase price, if
there is one quoted} on the closing date.

Short-term investments
Al short-term investments, regardless whether they are interest-bearing secu-
rities or equity instruments, are measured at fair value through profit or loss.

Trade account receivables

Trade account receivables are recegnized at the expected received amount
less bad debts, which have been separately reviewed. Trade account receiv-
ables have a shon expected term and are measured at the nominal amount
on an undiscounted basis. Impairment losses for trade account receivables
are recognized in operating ¢asts.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and demand depaosits in banks and
similar institutions, and short-term, highly liquid investments with a maturity
of three months or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes
in value.

Trade account payables

Trade account payables are measured at cost. Trade account payables have a
short expected term and are valued at the nominal amount on an
undiscounted basis.

Financial liabilities

Financial liabilities are classified as financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss or as other financial liabilities. When financial liabifities are
hedged, the hedged portion is measured at fair valie. The fair value is
based on market prices and generally accepted methods, in which future
cash flows have been discounted at market interest rates, including
Investor's current credit rating, corresponding lo the remaining life.

Other financial liabilities are initially recognized at the received amount
less any transactions cost. After initial recognition, loans are measured at
amortized cost, according to the effective interest method. Amortized cost
is calculated based on the effective interest determined when the loan was
raised. This means that surptus values and values less than the carrying
amount, as well as direct issuing costs, are amortized over the life of the
liability.

Loans in fareign currencies are translated at the rate on the balance sheet
date.

Derivatives and hedge accounting
Derivatives, such as forwards, options and swaps, are used to offset
risks for exchange rate changes and for exposure to interest rate ris<s.
Derivatives are measured at fair value through profit or loss, with the
exception of derivative instruments used to hedge cash flows. Changes in
the value of derivatives are recognized in the income statement as income
or expense in operating prefit or net financial items based on the purpose
of the derivatives and whether the use is related to an operating item or a
financial item.

When interest rate swaps are used, paid and accrued interest is recog-
nized as interest and other changes in value for the interest rate swap are
recognized as a revaluation of derivatives under net financial items.

Hedge accounting
In hedge accounting, changes in the value of hedging instruments are recog-
nized in the income statement at the same time as changes in the value of
the hedged items. To qualify for hedge accounting under 1AS 39, a derivative
must be dearly correlated 1o the hedged item. Further, the hedge must be
effective, formal documentation must be prepared and it must be possible 1o
measure the effectiveness. Hedging results are reported in the income state-
ment on the same date as gains cor losses on the hedged items.

If the ariteria for hedge accounting are no longer met, the derivatives
are recoghized at fair value through profit or loss according to the principle
above.

Hedging the Group's interest rate exposure — cash flow hedges
Investor uses interest rate swaps to control exposure of the debt portfolic
to changes in future cash flows caused by fluctuations in interest rates. In
the income staternent, the coupen is recognized on an angoing basis as
interest income or income expense and other changes in the value of the
interest rate swap are recognized directly to the hedging reserve under
equity as long as the criteria for hedge accounting and effectiveness are
met. The ineffective companent of the hedge is reported in the same way
as changes in the value of derivatives not used for hedge accounting. The
hedging reserve is dissclved through the result when the hedged item
affects the result.

Hedging the Group's interest rate exposure — fair value hedges
Investor uses interest rate swaps to hedge the fair value of, for example,
liabilities with fixed interest rates. Changes in the fair value of interast
rate swaps used to hedge the fair value are recognized in the income
statement. The coupon component is recognized on a continueus basis
as interest income or interest expense and other changes in the value of
the interest rate swap are recognized as revaluation of derivatives in net
financial itemns.

Financial guarantee contracis

The Group has financal guarantee contracts in which the Group has a
commitment to reimburse the holder of a debt instrument for loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the original or medified contract terms.

Financial guarantee contracts are initially recognized at fair value less
the fair value of contracted guarantee fees. However, if the difference is
positive, an asset is not taken up in the balance sheet. financial guarantee
contracts are then recognized continuously at the higher amount of the
best estimate of the present value of anticipated net fees to settie the
guarantee commitment, after deduction for the present value of future
guarantee fees, and the original amount booked as a liability after deduc-
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tion for cumulative amontization appying the straight-line method over the
contracled guaranteed period. In cases when payment on market terms is
contracied for the guarantee commitment, it is initially recognized neither
as an asset or ltability and revenue from the the guarantee contracts is
recognized on a straight-line basis over the guarantee period.

Other

Adinancial asset and a financial liability are offset and recognized as a

net amount in the balance sheet only if there is a legal right to offset the
amount and there is an intention 1o settle the items in a net amount or to
realize the assel and settle the liability at the same time.

Earnings per share

The calculation of basic earnings per share is based on the profit/loss for
the year attributable to shareholders of the Parent Company and on the
weighted average number of shares outstanding during the year. When
calculating diluted earnings per share, the average number of shares is
adjusted to take into account the effects of dilutive potential ordinary
shares originating during the reporting period from stock option and share
programs issued to employees,

EMPLOYEE BENEFITS

Post-employment benefits

The Group has both defined benefit pension plans and defined contribution
pension plans.

Defined contribution plans

In defined contribution pension plans, the company makes fixed contnbu-
tions and has thereby fulfilled its obligations. Group income is charged with
costs as the pensions are earned.

Defined benefit plans

In defined benefit pension plans, payments are made to employees and
former employees based on their salary at the time of retirement and the
number of years of service. The Group carries the risk for making the pay-
ments. The Group's net abligation under defined benefit plans is measured
separately for each plan by an estimation of future benefits earned by the
employees both in current and prior periods; this benefit is discounted to

a present value and reduced by the fair value of any pian assets. The dis-
count rate is the rate at the balance sheet date on government bonds with
a Ide corresponding to the pension obligations of the Group. The measure-
ment is made by a qualified actuary using the projected unit credit method.
Actuarial gains and actuarial losses are recognized in the income statement
as incurred.

When the benefits of a plan increase, the porticn of the increased
benefits relating to past service is recognized as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the average period until the benefits become vested. f the
benefits are fully vested. they are recognized as an expense directly in the
income statement.

When the measurerent results in the recognition of an asset for the
Group, the carrying amount of the asset is limited to the net of unrecog-
nized expenses for past service and the present value of future refunds
from the plan or reductions in future contributions to the plan,

When there is a difference between how the pension costs are deter-
mined for a legal entity and a group, a provision or receivable for a special
employer’s contribution is recognized, based on this difference. The present
value of the provision or recevable is not determined.

Plans comprising several emplovers

In cases when there is a defined benefit plan comprising several employers,
such as SPP Liviorsakring AB, and there is not sufficient information avail-
able to enable the reporting of the plan as a defined benefit plan, the plan
is recognized as a defined contribution plan.

Foreign subsidiaries
All pension plans in foreign subsidiaries are defined contribution plans.

All amounts in SEK millions
unless specified otherwise

Termination benefits

A cost for termination benefits is recognized only if the company is
demonstrably committed, without realistic possibility of withdrawal, by a
formal plan to terminate an employee’s employment before the normal
date. When benefits are offered to encourage voluntary departure fram
the company, a cost is recognized if it is probable that the offer will be
accepted and the number of employees accepting the offer can be reliably
estimated.

Share-based payment transactions

During the past few years Investor AB has granted stock options to the
Group's employees, including a combined stack option and share program
for senior executives as of 2004. See also "Note 5 Employees and payroll
costs.” These programs enable employeas 1o acquire or receive shares in
the company. The fair value of the granted options and shares is recog-
nized as a personnel cost with a corresponding increase in equity, The fair
value is determined on the grant date and is allocated over the vesting
period. The fair value of the granted options is determined in accordance
with the Black & Scholes valuation model, taking into consideration the
terms and conditions on the grant date. The recognized cost corresponds
to the fair value of the estimated number of options and shares that are
expected 10 vest. This cost is adjusted in subsequent periods to reflect the
actual number of vested options and shares. However, no adjustment is
made when options expire because the share price does not reach the level
needed for the options to vest.

Social security contributions related to share-based payments to employ-
ees for services rendered are recognized as expenses allocated 1o the
periods in which the employees render the services. The provision for sacial
security contributions is based on the fair value of the options and shares
at the reporting date. The fair value is determined according te the same
measurement model that was used on the grant date.

PROVISIONS

A provision is reported in the balance sheet when there is a legal or cons-
tructive abligation as a result of a past event for which it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be needed to setile the abligation and when a
reliable estimate of the amount can be made.

A restructuring prowvision is recognized when the group has a detailed,
formal plan for the restructuring, and the restructuring plan has com-
menced or has been publicly announced. No provision is made for future
operating losses.

TAXES

The Group’s total tax charge consists of current tax and deferred tax. Current
tax is tax that must be paid or received and refers 1o the current year,
Current tax also inciudes adjustments of current tax attributable to earlier
periods. Deferred tax is based on the difference between the 1ax base of an
asset or fiability and its carrying amount. If the calculations yield a deferred
tax asset, this tax asset is recognized as an asset only to the extent to which
it is expected to be realized. Deferred tax is estimated in accordance with
current tax rates. The taxes are reported in the income statement, except
when the underlying transaction is charged directly 1o equity, whereby the
associated tax effect is reported as equity.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

A contingent liahility is recognized when there is a possible obigation relat-
ing to past events and whose existence is confirmed only by the occurrence
or non-oceurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly with-
in the control of the enterprise; or when there is an obligation which is not
recognized as a liability or a provision as it s not probabie that an outfiow
of resources will be required to settle the obligation.

FEES AND REIMBURSEMENTS OF COSTS FOR AUDITORS
When evaluating if an assignment carried out by the company's auditors is
10 be considered as an auditing assignment or other type of assignment,
the company applies the definition used in the guidance of the Swedish
Institute of Authorized Public Accounts {FAR) for annual reports of stock
corporations (RedR1),




Investor 2006 — Notes 1o the Financial Statements B85

NOTE 1 cont’d H Accounting policies

ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES OF THE PARENT COMPANY
Unless otherwise noted, the Parent Company applies the same accounting
principles as the Group.

Compliance with issued standards and laws

The Parent Company has prepared its annual financial statements in
accordance with the Swedish Annual Accounts Act (16995:1554}) and
Swaedish Financial Accounting Standards Councit, recommendation RR 32
Accounting for Legal Entities. RR 32 states that the parent company, in the
annual financial statements of the legal entity, shall apply all IFRS
standards and statements adopted by the European Union, te the extent
this is practicable within the framework of the Swedish Annual Accounts
Act and taking into account the relation between accounting and taxation.
The recommendation specifies the exceptions from IFRS.

Changes in accounting policies

As of 2006, the Parent Company is reporting financial assets and liabilities
at fair value, with the exception of instruments which may not be recog-
nized at {fair value according to paragraph 14b of the Swedish Annual
Accounts Act, and the transitional effect is recognized as an adjustment to
the opening balance of retained earnings in 2005. These items were previ-
ously measured in accordance with the lowest value principle or at cost. As
a result of the change, other long-term holdings of securities are measured
al fair value through profit or loss and the hedged portion of hedged Joans
is measured at fair value at the same time as the hedging instruments are
also measured at fair value.

The accounting principles of the Parent Company have been changed
according 10 the requirements in 3AS 8, although the specific transitional
provisions in RR 32 have been taken into account and the transitional
effect is recognized as a change in retained earnings at the beginning of
the year. Comparative figures have been adjusted according to the above.

In 2005, the accounting principles of the Parent Company were
changed for the reporting of employee stock option programs and share
programs with related sodial secunity contributions according to IFRS 2 and
URA 46

Associates and subsidiaries

Investments in associates and subsidiaries are recegnized in the Parent
Company under the cost model. On each balance sheet date, the carrying
amounts are reviewead for objective proof of impairment. Only distributions
received are recognized, provided these relate to profits arising alter the
date of acquisition. Distributions in excess of such profits are considered a
recovery of investment and reduce the cost of the investment.

Group contributions and shareholders’ contributions

In accordance with a statement from the Swedish Financial Accounting
Standards Coundil, shareholders’ contributions are recognized directly in
equity by the receiver and are capitalized in shares and participations by the
giver, to the extent that no impairment loss is required. Group contribu-
tions o minimize the Group's total tax are charged directly against retained
earnings less their current tax effect.

Financial income and expenses

Net financial items consist of interest on liabilities, including pension
provisions, interest income from receivables, and exchange gains/iosses on
tinancial receivables and financial liabilities. In the Parent Company, net
financial items also inctude dividends from subsidiaries. Interest income on
receivables and interest expense on liabilities include discounts, premiums
and transaction costs that are amortized over the life of the underlying
instrument. Interest payments on interest rate swaps are reported on a net
basis with no adjustment for any transaction costs.

Shares and participations, non-current assets
See text under *Assoriates and subsidiaries” above for the measurement
principles for participations in associates and subsidiaries.

Other long-term holdings of securities are measured at far value
through profit or loss.

Financial liabiiities

Loans which are not included as part of a trading portfolio, and are not
derivative instruments, are initially recognized at the received amount. After
initial recognition, loans are measured at amortized cost. Loans or portions
of toans that are hedged against a financial instrument measured ai fair
value are also measured at fair value.

Derivatives and hedge accounting
Derivatives are measured in the Parent Company at fair vaiue through
profit or ioss.

Hedge accounting is applied for items in which the derivative has a clear
correlation to the hedged item and has financial effects that counteract
those that arise through the hedged position. Hedging results are reported
on the same date as the hedged items. In cases when derivative instru-
ments have been used to control expesure against fluctuations in exchange
rates for an underlying liability, the liability is measured at the exchange
rate accerding to the derivative.

Financial guarantee contracts

The Parent Company’s financial guarantee contracts consist primarity

of guarantees on behalf of subsidiaries, joint ventures or associates. A
financial guarantee contract is a contract in which the company has a
commitment to reimburse the holder of a debt instrument for loss it incurs
because a specified debtor fails to make payment when due in accordance
with the contract terms. The Parent Company applies RR 32.06, page 72,
to account for finandal guarantee contacts, which involves a relief, com-
pared with the rules in 1AS 39 for financial guarantee contracts issued on
behalf of subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures, The Parent Company
recogrizes financial guarantee contracts 2s a provision in the balance sheet
when the company has a commitment for which payment is most likely
required to settle the commitment,

Employee benefits

Defined contribution pension plans

Obligations for contributions to defined contribution plans are recognized
85 a cost in the income statement when they arise.

Defined benefit pension plans

In addition to the defined benefit pension plans with SPP Livforsakring
AB, which are recognized as defined contribution plans, the company
has established defined benefit pension plans for which the company has
na right to make deductions for taxes. For these pension obligatiors, the
Parent Company has chosen to apply the Group’s accounting principles
and consequently recognize the plans as defined contribution plans in
accordance with 1A5 19,
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NOTE 2 Segment reporting

All amounts in SEK millions
unless specified otherwise

Group
Performance by business area 2006
Core Operating Private Equity Financial Investor
Investments Investments Investments Investments groupwide Totat

Net sales 699 699
Dividends 2,852 285 34 317
Changes in value 27,260 583 263" 28,106
Cost of services sold -693 -693
Operating costs -170 -5t -204 -39 =57 =521
Cost of long-term incentive programs ~55 -55
Share of results of associated companies -1,872 -1,872
Operating profit/loss 29,942 -1.,917 664 258 -112 28,835
Net financial items -20 -20
Tax -329 -329
Profit/loss for the year 29,942 -1.917 664 258 -461 28,486
Qther (currency, etc.) ~2330 -193» -426
Dividends paid -2,685 -2,685
Effect on net asset value 29,942 ~2,150 664 258 -3,339 25,375
Net asset value by business area 12/31 2006
Carrying amount 135,274 5,981 15,181 3,008 159,444
Other assets® 1,370 1,370
Other liabilities® -1,910 -1,910
Net cash® 416 416
Tota! net asset value 135,274 5,981 15,181 3,008 -124 159,320
Investments in property,

plant and equipment 9 171 4 184
Depreciation -5 -105 -7 -118
Cash fiow for the year 8,707 -6,105 1,420 —496 -2,125 1,401
Group
Performance by business area 2005

Core Operating Private Equity Financial Investor
Investments Investments Investments Investments groupwide Total

Nei sa'es 659 659
Dividends 2,163 188 64 2,415
Changes in value 37,424 6,053 186 " 43,663
Cost of services sold ~714 -714
Operating costs -160 -8 -219 -35 -53 -475
Cost of long-term incentive programs -73 -73
Share of results of associated companies -1,508 -1.508
Operating profitioss 39,427 -1,571 6,022 215 -126 43,967
Net financial items 1 1
Tax _ _ o -110 -110
Profit/loss for the year 39,427 -1,5711 6,022 215 ~235 43 858
Other (currency, etc.) ~38» -38
Dividends paid -1,726 -1,726
Effect on net asset value 39,427 -1,571 6,022 215 -1359 42,094
Net asset value by business area 12731 2005
Carrying amount 115,419 2,522 15,478 1,380 134,799
Other assets® 1,294 1,294
Other liabilities® -1,925 -1,925
Net debt® =223 =223
Total net asset value 115,419 2,522 15,478 1,380 ~854 133,945
Investments in property,

plant and equipment 16 242 14 272
Depreciation -6 -88 -3 -97
Cash flow for the year 11,576 2,228 4,673 «257 -1B.,438 -218

1} The change in value include sales proceeds from active portfolio management amounting 1o SEK 28,158 m. (22,674,

2) Refers 10 the translztion reserve and hedging reserve atiributable to associated companies.

3) The amount includes employee steck aptions, repurchases of own shares and translation ditferences.

4) Other assets and fizbilities refer to current assetsfiabilies, deferred taxes and prowisions.

5) Net cash/debt refers 10 short-term investments, cash and cash equrvalents, and interest-bearing habilities with related derivatives.
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NOTE 3 Changes in value within investing activities

Private Equity Financial
2606 Core Investments Investments Investments' Total
Group
Changes in value of holdings in the closing balance 25,100 962 122 26,184
Changes in value of assets divested during the year 2,160 -379 1 1,922
Total 27,260 583 263 28,106
Of which change in value determined with valuation technigues - —428 108 -320
2005
Group
Changes in value of holdings in the closing balance 34,175 154 147 34,476
Changes in value of assets divested during the year 3,249 5,899 39 9,187
Total 37,424 6,053 186 43,663
Of which change in value determined with valuation technigues - 5,586 52 5,638
Private Equity Financial
2006 Cote investments Investments Investments Total
Parent Company
Changes in value of holdings in the dlosing balance 6,753 1 -28 6,726
Changes in valug of assets divested during the year 7,070 1,191 7 8,268
Totat 13,823 1,192 -21 14,994
Of which change in value determined with valuation technigues - 1,192 - 1,192
2005
Parent Company
Changes in value of holdings in the dosing balance 14,454 11 - 14,465
Changes in value of assets divested during the year 933 37 29 999
Total 15,387 48 29 15,464
Of which change in value determined with valuation technigues - 12 - 12

1} including active pertfolio management.

Changes in value of holdings remaining in the balarce at the end of the year SEX 40 m. (81).

Changes in value of assets divested during the year SEK 131 m. (13},

NOTE4 Operating costs

NOTE S Employees and payroll costs

2006 2005
Group
Investing activitios
Payroll costs 260 251
Depreciation 10 g
Other operating expenses 143 154
413 q14
Qperating investments
Payroll costs 16 -
Depreciation Q -
Other operating expenses a5 8
51 8
Groupwide
Payroll costs 30 29
Depreciation 4 2
Other operating expenses 23 22
57 53
Total 521 475

WHOLLY OWNED INVESTING ACTIVITIES
Investar's wholly owned investing activities comprise the activities of the
Parent Company, the Active Portfolic Management unit and Investor
Growth Capital.

The payroll costs shown below for these units are included in
"Qperating costs” in the incame statement.

Average number of employees

2006 2005
of whom of whorm
Total Women Total women
Parent Company, Sweden 91 50 839 a8
Wholly owned subsidiaries
Sweden 16 3 16 3
United States 18 3] 20 8
United Kingdom 2 1 2 1
Hong Kong 7 1 7 1
Nethertands 6 3 5 2
Total, wholly owned
investment operations 140 64 139 63

Gender distribution in boards and senior management

At year-end 2006, the board of the Parent Company consisted of 20 per-
cent women {25) and 80 percent men (75). The Management Group of the
Parent Company (excluding the President} consisted of G percent women
(20) and 100 percent men {80). The gender distrioution in the boards

of Invester's wholly owned investment activities consisted of 15 percent
women and 85 percent men.




68

Notes to the Financial Statements - Investor 2006

NOTE 5 cont’d Employees and payroll costs

Expensed wages, salaries, board of director fees and other remuneration, as well as social security contributions

2006 2005
Long-term Costs Long-term Costs
share- for Social share- for Social
Variable based  Pension employee security Variable based Pension employee security
Basic salary  salary remuneration costs  benefits contributions™ Tatal  Basic salary  salary remuneration costs  benefits contributions™ Total
Parent Company B4 21 18 33 1 73 240 72 19 20 42 10 82 245
Wholly owned
subsidiaries in
investment
operations 66 28 - 8 0 11 13 73 32 - 9 0 13 127
Total, wholly
owned investment
operations 150 49 18 41 n B4 353 145 51 20 51 10 95 372

13 Of which SEK 37 m. (53) refers 1o social secunty contributions for long-term share-based remuneration. The cost of long-term share-based remuneration, including social security
coninbutions, amounts 1¢ SEK 55 m. (73), as reported in the consalidated income statement,

Expensed wages and salaries distributed by country and between board members and the President and cther employees

2006 2003

Board and Of which, Other Board and Of which, QOther

President varable salary employess Total President  variable salfary employees Total
Parent Company, Sweden 16 2 89 105 16 32 75 91
Whaoily owned subsidiarias
Sweden 7 3 17 24 7 ! 25 32
United States 7 3 3% 46 15 5 36 51
United Kingdom 1 4] 3 4 1 0 2 3
Hong Kong 5 2 12 17 5 2 12 17
Netherlands 2 0 1 3 1 o 1 2
Total, wholly owned investment operations 38 10 161 199 45 11 151 196

Absenteeism due to iliness

Absenteeism due to illness in the Parent Company (as a percentage of
wark time) was 4.65 percent in 2006 (women: 4.84 percent and men: 4.40
percent); 60.99 percent of absenteeism due to illness refers to a continuous
period of 60 days or more. Absenteeism due 10 illness for employees under
the age of 29 was 0.82 percent, 5.40 percent for age 30—49 and 4.38
percent for employees over 50 years of age,

Salary and other remuneration

The follawing text and tables describe Investor's remuneration policy and
remuneration for senior executives in the company. Senior executives are
defined as "top management” and “other senior executives”.

"Top management” is defined as:

» the Chairman of the Board,

* board members not employed by the company whao receive special
remuneration in additicn to the fee received for board duties, and

« the Chiet Executive Officer and President.

"Other senior executives” refers to:

* Adine Grate Axén uniil Septernber 30, 2006, Johan Forssell, Henry £.
Gooss, Lennart lohanssan and Lars Wedenborn,

These persons, together with the President, comprise Investor's

Management Group.

investor's Remuneration Committee is appointed each year by the board
whose main purpose is “to enable an independent and thorough review of
all aspects of Investor's total remuneration program and to make decisions
about executive remuneration in the company.”

For decision-making, the Remuneration Committee continuously receives
information and views from the President, the CFO and head of Human
Resources, among others, The committee also obtains views, reports
and information {or decision-making from external advisers. Internal and
external information used for decision-making purposes helps ensure that
Investor's remuneration program is in line with the market and competitive.
During the year, the Remuneration Committee made editorial updates o
the Remuneration Policy.

Read more about the work of the Remuneration Committee in Investor's
Corporate Governance report.

Rernuneration policy

Investor strives to offer remuneration in ine with the market that makes it
possible to attract senior executives and other employees and retain them
in the company. Benchmarking studies of relevant industries and markets

are continuously carried out in order to determine what
constiutes remuneration in line with the market and to evaluate current
remuneration levels.

The principles for remuneration for Investor's employees are:

* 10 ensure that employees in Investor’s different operations receive total
remuneration that is competitive and in line with the market;

+ 10 3lign the interests of shareholders and employees by establishing a
clear connection between remuneration and Investor’s long-term
performance, such as the development of the company’s net asset value
and share price performance;

* that remuneration functions as a means to steer employees toward
objectives and to create commitment by linking it to the fulfillment of
personal goals;

+ that remuneration is based on such factors as work responsibiiities,
competence, experience, position and performance. Investor AB is an
egual opportunity employer and does not unlawfully discriminate on the
basis of gender, ethnic background, national origin, age, disability, or
any other protected status; and

» that the proportion between basic salary and variable remuneration is to
be based on the employee’s position and tasks.

For the entire organization Investor appfies the principle that every

manager's superior is always to be informed about the recruitment of an

employee and to approve it and the employee’s remuneration.

Remuneration program

Investor conducts different types of investment activities in markets in Asia,
Northern Eurcpe and the United States. Investor therefore competes for
personnel against companies that offer different types of remuneration
programs and remuneration levels. Investor's remuneration policy takes this
into consideration.

An employee’s total remuneration consists of the following components:
* basic salary,

+ variable salary;

* long-term share-based remuneration;

* pension; and

= ather benefits,

Basic salary, variable salary and long-term share-based remuneration
together comprise the employee’s total remuneration. The outcome of
variable salary and long-term share-based remuneration is dependent of
the employee’s fulfillment of personal goals and the company’s long-term
performance.
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A teeis paid to Investor’s board members in accerdance with a decision
made by the Annual General Meeting.

in additicn to remuneration from Investor, the President and members
of the Managemeant Group receive board fees from core investments in
which they are board members.

Basic salary

Basic salary is reviewed annually for all Investor employees, with the excep-
tion of Management Group members, whose basic salary is reviewed every
other year. Any adjustment to an employee’s basic salary is usuzlly effective
from January 1. The annual review of basic salary takes into account the
employee’s performance, any changes to his or her areas of responsibility,
the company’s development and salary trends in the market, In cases when
the person’s areas of responsibilities change considerably during the year,
basic salary can be reviewed an those occasions. Basic salary constitutes the
basis for calculating variable salary.

Variable safary

The majority of Investor's employees have variable salary. The variable
portion of salary for 2006 differs between business areas and amounts
te a maximum of 45 percent of basic salary for the President. For other
employees variable salary ranges between 0 and B0 perceni of their basic
salary, although for 2 very limited number of key personnel, the variable
portion of salary can be 100 percent of their basic salary. In cases when the
President decides that a person in the company has made an exceptional
contribution during the year, he can award an additional variable salary.
However, this additional variable salary has to be specifically approved by
Investor's Remuneration Committee, When an additicnal variable salary is
awarded, the varighle portion of salary can, in individual cases, exceed
100 percent of the employee's basic salary.

Established goals must be reached in order to receive variable salary,
which clearly links remuneration to an individual's wark efforts and perform-
ance. The employee’s performance is reviewed at year-end. The focus of the
goals for the President each year is set in a dialog between the President
and the Chairman. The specific goals for the Presiden are proposed by the
Remuneration Committee and are later approved by the hoard. Goals for
other employees are established by each employee’s manager.

Long-term share-based remurneration

In 1899, Investor intreduced the principle that part of an employee’s
remuneration is to be connected to the company’s long-term share price
development. The principle has encompassed all employees since 2000.
From 1999 to 2005, this has been carried out mainly in the form of
employee stack option programs.»

A combined employee stock opticn and restricted stock program was
approved for senior executives for 2004 and 2005.

In 2006, a Stock Matching Plan was introduced for all Investor employ-
ees, as well as a performance-based share program for top management.
“Top management” is defined as the President, other senior executives and
about 15 ather executives in the company.

For all programs, the board’s decision has been conditionat on the
Annual General Meeting approving the scope and basic principles for each
program. The pregrams are described below.

2006
The program for the year consists of two parts:

1) Stock Matching Plan, in which all employees may participate

In the Stock Matching Plan, an employee could acguire shares in Investor at
the market price during a two-week period, determined by the board, after
the release of Investor's first quarterly report in 2006. After a three-year
vesting period, two options {Matching Cptions) will be granted for each
Investor share acquired by the employee, as well as a right to acquire one

1} Employee stock options refer 10 commitments in accordance with Chapter 10,
Section 11, paragraph 2 of the Swedish Income Tax Law.

Investor share (Matching Share) for SEK 10. The Matching Share may be
acquired during a four-year period after the vesting period= Each Matching
Cption entitles the holder to purchase one tnvestor share, during the
corresponding period, at a strike price corresponding to 120 percent of the
average volume-weightad price paid for Investor shares during an estab-
lished measurement period in May 2006.

Senior Management members were cbligated to invest at least 5 per-
cent of their basic salary in Investor shares under the Stock Matching Plan.
Other employees were not abligated to invest but had a nght to invest so
much that the value of the allotted Matching Options and Matching Shares
amounts to a maximum of 15 percent of their respective basic salary.
Senior Management had the right to invest so much that the value of the
allotted Matching Cptions and Maiching Shares amounted to between 10
ard 20 percent of their respective basic salary for 2006.

2) Performance-Based Share Program, in which Senior Management
participates in addition to the Stock Matching Plan,

Under this program, Senior Management, after a three-year vesting period,
has the right during four years? 1o acquire additional Investor shares
{“Performance Shares*) for SEK 10 per share. This is conditional upon
whether certain financial goals relating to the development of Investor's
net asset value and the total return on the Investar shares are met curing
the vesting period.

Two-thirds of the turnout is dependent on the development of Investor's
net asset value. Investor's average yearly development of the net asset
value including dividends, must exceed the interest on 10-year Govern-
ment bonds by more than 8 percentage points to give Senior Management
the right to acquire the highest amount of Performance Shares, which is
dependent on the development of the net asset value. There will be no
allotment of Performance Shares related to the development of the net
asset value if the development of the net asset value does not exceed the
10-year interest an government bonds by at least 2 percentage points. If
the development is between the 10-year interest on government bonds
plus 2 percentage points and the 10-year interest on government bonds
plus 8 percentage points, a propoertional {linear) allotment will occur. The
development of the net asset value during the three-year vesting pericd
is measured as the average during three quarters in the beginning of the
period, compared with the average during three guarters at the encl of the
period.

One-third of the turnout is dependent upen the total return on the
Investor share. Investor's annual running total return, including reinvested
dividends, must exceed the development ¢f the share index called SIX RX
Total Return by more than 4 percentage points te give Senior Management
the right to acquire the highest amount of Performance Shares, wh ch are
dependent on the total return. There will be no allotment of Performance
Shares related to the total return if the total return does not develoo at
least in parity with the SIX RX Total Return index. If the total return is
between the SIX RX Total Return and SIX RX Total Return plus 4 percent-
age points, a proportional (linear) allotment will occur. The total return
will be measured quarterly on a running 12-menth basis over a three-year
period. The outcome is estimated as the average during the three years
based on the 12 measurement points.

Tc obtain a total maximum outcome for the Perfermance Shares, it s
required that Investor exceeds the upper limit for both the development of
net asset value as well as the total relative return.

The final number of Performance Shares obtained is dependent on the
outcome of the performance requirements, but may not, at allotment in
2006, exceed the preset highest number (linut).

When designing the programs with Matching Shares, Matching Options
and Performance Shares issued in 2006, it was taken into consideration
that employees are taking an investment risk through the requirement that
they must own the Investor shares during the vesting period.

2) For as long as he is employed, the President has a lenger lockup period following the
vesting period for both Matching Shares and Performance Shares. This means that he
can be prevented from utilizing the opportumity 1o acquire these shares before the
end of the four-year period. However, in such cases, the penod dunng which he can
acquire the shares is extended.
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Summary of terms for the 2006 long-term share-based remuneration program
Matching Shares 2006

All amounts in SEK miflions
unless specified otherwise

Number Matching Matching Number of Percentage Number of
Number of at the Shares Shares Matching Shares ot total vested Vesting
Matching Shares beginning exercised forfeited on December 31, outstanding Matching  Theoretical Strike Maturity period
Holder granted  of the year in 2006 in 2006 2006 shares Shares value price date (years)
MG 31,038 - - - 31,038 0.00% - 109.19  10.00 12731 2012 3
OSE 15,593 - - - 11,593 0.00% - i09.19  10.00 12/31 2012 3
OF 52,866 = - = 52,866 0.01% - 109.19  10.00 12/31 2012 3
95,497 - - - 95,457 0.01% -
1} MG = Management Group, OSE = Other senior executives, OF = Other employees.
2) The value of Matching Shares on the grant date was based on a thearetical value calculated in accordance with the Black & Scholes model
3) Of which 8,992 was granted to the President.
Matching Options 2006
Number Matching Matching Number of Percentage Nurnber of
Number of a1t the Cptions Optiens  Matching Opticns of wo1al vested Vesting
Matching Options beginning exercised farfeited on December 31, outstanding Matching  Theoretical Strike Maturity period
Holder" granted  of the year in 2006 in 2006 2006 shares Options value ? price date (years)
MG 62,076% - - - 62.076 0.01% - 1562 15590 12/31 2012 3
OSE 23,186 - - - 23,186 0.00% - 15.62 15590 12/31 2012 3
OE _ 105,732 - . - _ = 105,732 0.01% ~ __ 1562 15590 12/312012 3
190,994 - - - 190,994 0.02% -
1) MG = Management Group, OSE = Other senior execulives, GF = Other employees.
2) The value of Matching Options on the grant date was based on a theoretical value calculated in accordance with the Black & Schioles model.
3) Of which 17,984 was granted (o the President,
Performance Shares 2006
Number Performance Number of Number
Maximum number at the Shares Performance Performance Percentage of of vested Vesting
of Performance beginning exercised Shares forfeited Shares on total outstanding Performance Theoretical Strike Maturity  period
Holder™ Shares granted _ of the year in 2006 in 2006 December 31, 2006 shares Shares value & price date  (years)
MG 133,386% - - - 133,386 0.02% - 52.35 10.00 12/31 2012 3
OSE 53,812 - - - 53,812 0.01% - 52.35 10.00 12/31 2012 3
187,158 - - - 187,198 0.03% -

1) MG = Management Group, OSE = Other senior executives.
2) The value of Performance Shares on the grant date was based on a theoretical value calcu
3) Of which 41,696 was granted to the President.

The calculation of ihe theoretical value on the grant date was based on the
following conditions:

Instrument Matching Matching  Performance
share option share
Averaged volurme-weighted price
paid for Investor B-shares 129.93 129.93 129.83
Strike price 10.00 155.90 10.00
Assumed volatility® 25% 5% 25%
Assumed average term 4.6 years 4.6 years 4.6 years
Assumed percentage of dividend 0% 3% 0%
Risk-free interest 352% 3.52% 352%
Theoretical value on the grant date 109,19 15.62 52.35

1) The assumed volatiity was based on future forecasts and the histoncal volatihty of
investor B-shares. When determining the volatilty, special hrmitations to the exercise
rights for employee stock cptians were also taken into account.

The value of the total number of issued Matching shares, Matching

Options and Performance Shares distributed in 2006 amounted to about

8 percent of Investor's total payroll expense.

Employee stock option programs 1995-2005

In employee stock option programs, Investor issues call aptions giving the
option holder the right to purchase an equivalent number of shares at a
predetermined price. The term of the programs is seven years and the vest-
ing period is linked to three years of consecutive employment. The employ-
ee slock options were granted free of charge but were part of the total
remuneration package for employees. in general, the options can only vest
and be exercised dunng the time the holder is employed with the company
and a short period after employment ends, with the exception of former
employees who have a board assignment in the investor Grougp. The prin-
ciple is that the total number of options granted shait be in proportion with
the current total payroll of the company. The Management Group then
deaides how the options will be distributed between each business area,

lated in accordance with the Black & Scholes model.

after which each business area manager determines the number of options
that each department should receive. In the final stage, each depariment
manager evaluates and decides how the options will be distributed to each
employee. The number of options granted to each employee does net have
to be in proportion to the employee’s salary — they are awarded on a dis-
cretionary basis. In accordance with the above, investor's board approved
the issue of employee stock options from 1999 to 2005.

The number of outstanding employee stock options for the 19%9-2005
programs totals 4,728,479, corresponding to 0.62 percent of the number
of outstanding shares in Investor, which totaled 767,175,030 on December
31, 2006. The value of the issued employee stock options was estimated
in accordance with the Black & Scholes valuation model. The value of an
option was calculated on an assumed volatilty of 20-30 percent. The
assumed volatility was based on future forecasts and the historical volatil-
ity of Investor B-shares. When determining the volatility, special limitations
to the exercise rights for employee stock options were atso taken into
account. The options have a term of seven years that has been adjusted for
assumptions about premature exercises. tn the valuation, special limitations
to the exercise rights related to the fulfillment of goals, which have been
established for some stock option programs, have not been taken into
account.

1999

The options issued in 1999 can be divided into two different programs.
One program referred to the options that were granted to senior executives
in connection with the conversion to a defined-contribution pension plan.
This was a non-recurring allocation of options that expired an December
31, 2005, The other program pertained to options for around 15 other
senior executives. These persons were granted a number of options whose
calculated theoretical value (see table "Summary of terms for employee
stockoption programs 1999-2005") corresponded 1o 10-60 percent of
basic salary. This program expired on February 11, 2006.
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2000, 2001, 2002, 2003 and 2004

For these years, the issued options referred in their entirety 10 one pro-
gram per year which covered all personnel and replaced an earlier bonus
program that was linked to the performance of Investor shares in relation
to the OMX Index. The total number of employee stock options for alloca-
tion was determined on the basis of the current payroil of the company.
For senior executives, a number of options were granted whose calculated
thecretical value corresponds ta 10-70 percent of basic salary, The exercise
price for employee options in the 2000-2004 programs was set at 110
percent of the share price the day after Investor’s year-end report was
released.

In 2004, the beard of directors decided to launch a combined employee
stock option and restricted stock program for senior executives, starting
that year. The program consists of about 60 percent shares and about 40
percent options. The beard’s decision was based on information prepared
by the Remuneration Committee. Implementation of the program was
subject to the approval of the Annual General Meeting.

The allocation of employee stock options and shares constitutes part
of the agreed remuneration framework for senior executives, The value of
the granted options and restricted stock corresponds to 10-60 percent of a
senior executive’s basic salary. The stock option component of the program
is designed in the same way, and with the same terms, as the program for
other employees. For the shares to vest, a senior executive must be con-
tinucusly employed from three to five years after the shares are granted.

Summary of terms for long-term restricted stock programs 2004-2005

The shares become available after five years, at which point the dvidend
for the past two years is also received. The vesting period ends if a senicr
executive’s employment is terminated.

2005

The 2005 employee stock aption program is designed in the same way as
programs of the last five years with regard to the term and vesting period.
The strike price is set at 110 percent of the average volume-weighted price
paid for Investor B shares from April 12 to April 18, 2005. As opposed to
previous years, the final number of granted employee stock options was
determined after the end of 2005, and depended on each empioyee’s
fulfillment of quantitative and qualitative goals, using the same criteria as
described in *Variable salary” above.

The calculation of fair value on the grant for options allocated in 2C05 was
based on the following prerequisites:

Average volume-weighted price paid for Investor B-shares SEK 97.04
Strike price SEK 1068.70
Assumed volatility 22 percent
Assumed average term 5 years
Assumed dividend in 2005 SEX 2.32
Assumed dividend growth as of 2005 3 percent

Risk-free interest 3.07 percent

The calculation results in a fair value of SEK 15.20 per option.

Number of  Number at Number of Number of Percentage of Number of
Year granted  beginning Value on shares shares on  total outstanding vested Maturity Vesting
issued Halder" shares of year grant date  forefeited in 2006 December 31, 2006 shares shares date perind (years)
2004 SE 74,000 74,000 77.00® 6,200 57,800 0.01% - 1/20 2009 5%
2005 SE 58,3312 58,33 97.04"% 4,946 53,385 0.01% = 1/21 2010 5%
Total 132,331 132,331 11,146 121,185 0.02%

1) SE = Senior Executives.
2) Of which 7,419 were granted ta the President during the period %/1-12/31 2005

3) Closing price for the invesior share the day after Investor's year-end report was released.

4) Average volume-weighted price paid for the Investor B share on the Stockhoim Stock Exchange durng the penod April 12 to April 18, 2005

5) One-third of the number of granted shares are not considered vesied until three years after the grant date, after which one-third vests dunng each of the two subsecuent
years. Thus, of shares granted in 2004, one-third can be exercised after January 20, 2007, etc.

Summary of terms for long-term employee stock option programs 1999-2005

Number

Numberaf  Numberof  Number of Weighted of vested,

aptions cptions options Optiens average  Options  Numberof Percentage nat exercised
Number of exercised at  forfeited at at the exercised  shareprice  forfeited  optionson of total  options on Vesting
Year options  the beginning the beginning  beginning during  on exercise during December 31, outstanding December 31, Theoretical Fair Strike Maturity period
issued  Holder ? granted of the year  of theyear  of the year 2006 date 2006 2006 shares 2006 value ¥ value ¥ price date_{years)

1999 SE 651,680 141,720 54,856 455,104 455,104 133.26 - o] 0.00% - 17.50 - 93.00 2/112006 3

2000 SE 405,529 - 44,410 361,119 252,805 161.89% - 108,314 0.01% 108,114 3873 - “3640 2112007 3
2000 Ot 380,400 - 182.000 198,400 144,043 158.44 17,300 37,057 0.00% 37,057 38.73 - 13640 2/112007 3
2001 SE 609,900 - G8,300 511,600 48,700 163.08 - 462,500 0.06% 462,900 31.83 - 153.00  2/11 2008 3
2001 QF 566,200 - 241,200 325,000 22,500 159.96 24,800 277,700 0.04% 277,700 31.82 - 153.00  2/11 2008 3%
2002 SE 389,000 - - 389,000 33,200 158.00 - 355,800 0.05% 355,800 18.08 - 121.55 211 2009 3%
2002 Ot 795,750 3,333 179,384 613,033 237.400 144.88 13,133 362,500 0.05% 362,500 1808 - 12155 2/11 2009 3
2003 SE 1,081,000 270,666 - 810,334 79,334 137.45 - 731,000 0.10% 731,000 8N 7.00 52.50 2112010 3%
2003 OF 2,606,436 647,720 768,771 1,188,945 579,307 14340 35,000 575,638 0.08% 575,638 a1 7.00 5250 2112010 3%
2004 SE 221,900 11,966 - 209,834 12,400 158.00 6,200 191,334 0.02% 123,567 1580 1374 8470 120201 3
2004 GE 1,079,649 74176 38,437 967.036 223,644 1446% 79,905 663,487 0.09% 384,468 1580 1374 8470 1,20 2011 3%
2005 SE 184,565 - - 164,565 - - 9,500 155,065 0.02% 50,104 1900 1520 10670 1202012 3v
2005 _ OF 1,008,469 - ___— 1008469 98,485 _ _ 147.80 102,300 807,684 0.41% _ 220300 19.00 1520 106.70 1202012 3

Total 9,960,478 1,149,581 1,667,358 7,203,539 2,186,922 288,138 4,728,479 0.62% 3,698,348

1} SE = Senicr Executives, OF = Other Employees
2) The value of options on the grant date was based on a theoretical value calculated in accordance with the Black 8 Scholes model. The volatility parameter has been agjusted to take into account the special
limitations ta disposal rights that are valid for long-term employee stock option programs.
3) Fair value on the grant date calculated in accordance with IFRS 2, which is the basis for the recognized value. See page 70 for a specification of the basis for calculation
4) Of which 22,989 were granted to the President during the period 9/1-12/31 2005.
5) One-third of the number of issued optiens is considered 1o be vested during each of the three years immediately following the years the options were granted. Thus, of the options granted in 2005, one-third
can be exercised after january 21, 2006. If employment ends, optians that have already vested must be exercied within three menths from the date employment was terminated As of the 2002 option
program, the exercise period has been extended 12 months if a holder has been employed more thar four years.
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NOTE 5 cont'd D Employees and payroll costs

Accounting effects of lang-term share-based remuneration programs
Costs reported for the year for lang-term share-based remuneration pro-
grarms amount 10 SEK 55 m. (73). The amount includes costs estimated
according to the principles in IFRS 2 for equity-settled programs and costs
for socizl security contributions for the programs.

Costs for social security contributions are caleulated and allocated in
accordance with a statement irom the Swedish Financial Accounting
Standards Coundil (URA 46).

The value of Performance Shares on the grant date, in accordance with
the 2006 Stack Matching Plan, is based on a theoretical value calculated
with the Black & Scholes model and takes into consideration the prabability
that the goa! for developing the net asset value will be fulfilled. External
analysis have estimated this probability to be 43 percent. For Performance
Shares linked to requirements for a certain development of the et asset
value, the same theoretical value as that for Matching Shares is used for
distribution and accounting in accordance with IFRS 2.

When options are exercised, equity is negatively affected by the differ-
ence between the market value of the shares and the strike price of the
options. This is because Investar, instead of issuing new shares, has chosen
instead 10 repurchase shares that are subscribed for by the employees. The
effect on equity for the year, as a result of exercise transactions, amgounted
10 5EK -113 m. (-52). The effect is offset by the result from the hedging
contract described below, which is recognized in the income statement.

Investor reports all costs for long-term share-based remuneration pro-
grams issued 1o the Group's employees in the Parent Company. The costs
for long-term share-based remuneration programs for employees in the
Parent Company amounted to SEK 45 m. (63), including social security
contnbutions.

Hedging of long-term share-based remuneration programs

Investor's policy is to implement measures 1o minimize the effects of an
increase in Investor's share price. For programs up to and including 2005,
Investor has used share swaps and share options as hedging instruments
that are recognized at fair value according to the rules for derivatives
(IAS 39} because such swaps and share options de not qualify for hedge
accounting. With the hedging solution, long-term share-based remunera-
tion programs do not atfect the actual number of outstanding shares

in Investor; instead, there is a theoretical dilution effect because of the
programs. The number of hedged options depends on the total number
of outstanding options and the probability that these aptions will be
exercised. At year-end 2006, the weighted average price in outstanding
hedging contracts was SEK 130.72. During 2006, the hedging contracts
had a positive effect on net financial items ameunting to SEK 194 m. (458),
which consisted mostly of unrealized changes in value (see also Note 1
Accounting policies). For programs in 2006, 700,000 shares were repur-
chased to guarantee delwvery.

Pension

Pension for the President and other senior executives consists of two parts:

= A defined benefit pension plan based an premiums in accordance with
the BTP Plan {Swedish pension pfan for the banking sector) on parts of
salary up to 30 basic income amounts {SEK 1,335,000 and the option
lo choose BTP's aliernative special defined contribution pension plan for
managers with an annual salary above 10 basic amounts.

* 5A defined contribution pension plan based on special pension regula-
tions ("Sarskilt Pensionsreglemente™) on parts of salary above 20 basic
amounts. The amount of the pension provision depends on age and is
currently 25 percent until the age of 40; 30 percent between 41 and 50
years; and 35 percent over 51. Only basic satary is used to establish the
annual pension premium. Each person who will receive a pension decides
on a suitable type together with his or her emptoyer, based on current
pension practice. The retirement age is 60 years for the President and
other senior executives.

All amounts in SEK millions
unless specified otherwise

Henry E. Gooss, who is employed by Investor's subsidiary in the United
States, is covered by a pension plan that has been prepared in accordance
with a model applied in the U5, The cests for this plan do not exceed
those of an equivalent plan in Sweden.

Other employees in investor are covered by pension agreements in
accordance with the BTP Plan and have the option to choose BTP's alter-
native special defined contribution pension plan on parts of salary between
7.5 and 30 basic amounts.

Other remuneration and benefits

Profit-sharing program for active portiolio management

For Investor's active portfolio management there is a profit-sharing pro-
gram in which employees receive variable salary cotresponding to 20
percent of the unit’s profit, after deduction for financial and administrative
expenses. The program is conditional upon positive profit growth over a
two-year period, during which any losses are taken into account in the
tollowing financiat year. The calculation of the result - the platform for the
profit sharing - is based on the fair value of the security holdings.

Profits are shared in the form of salary or pension insurance. The chaice
of payment method is neutral for Investor in terms of cost. For the profit-
sharing program, SEK 57 m. (13), and SEK 19 m. (4) in social security con-
tributions were expensed during the year in addition to what is reported
in the table cn page €8. The expensed amount for the profit-sharing
programs in 2005 and 2006, a total of SEK 71 m., shall be put in relation
to the profit-sharing-based trading result totaling $EK 358 m. for these two
fiscal years. Since profit sharing is a direct function of value generation,
costs are included under the heading "Changes in value” in the incame
staternent,

Severance pay
A mutual six-month term of notice applies between the President and the
company. If the company terminates employment, the President will receive
severance pay corresponding to 12 manths of basic salary. if no new
employment has been obtained after one year, the President is entitled tc a
maximum of 12 months’ additional severance pay.

The terms and conditions for other senior executives do not exceed the
terms for the President with regard to terms of notice and severance pay.
Other employees in Investor have no contracted right to severance pay.

Fees received for board work
For many years Investor has had the practice of allowing employees to keep
the fees they receive for work done on the boards of Core Investments.
One reason that this practice is applied is that the employee assumes per-
sonal responsibility by having a board position.

Fees received for board work are taken into account by Invesior when
determining the total remuneration for the employee,

Other benefits

In operations in Sweden, Investor offers employees a number of nonmon-
etary benefits, including corporate medical service, medical insurance,
subsidized lunches, employee fitness programs and the possibility 10 rent
vacation homes. Employees with small children have the possibility to have
home hefp in the form of cleaning and babysitting services. Some senior
executives also have a company car and a free parking space in a garage.
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NOTE 5 cont'd D Employees and payrolil costs

Amounts of remuneration paid to the board and top management
“Top management” in this note is defined on page 68.

The amounts in the table are calculated according to the accruals concept, in which any changes to vacation pay provisions, etc., are included. Vanable
salary refers to the decided variable salary for the current financial year, unless specified otherwise.

Theoretical value Pension ¢osts
Variable  of granted long- excluding Other
Basic salary for  term share-based Total payroll  remuneration Board Total

Total remuneration for 2006 (SEK 000s) salary the year remuneration salary tax? and benefits fee® remuneration
Top management
lacab Wallenberg 2,425 2,125
Bjorn Svedberg” 720 625 1,345
Bérje Ekholm 6,763 2,533 3,300 12,596 2,055 438 15,089
QOther board members
Sune Carlsson 687 687
Sirkka Hamaldinen 563 563
Hakan Mogren 625 625
Grace Reksten Skaugen 563 563
Anders Scharp 0 563 563
0. Griffith Sexton 563 563
Peter Wallenberg Jr 625 625
Former baard members and presidents
Peter Wallenberg 14,820 14,820
Others 3,48% 1,241 . 471

6,763 2,533 3,300 12,596 20,360 2,399 6,939 42,294

1) “Other remuneration and benefits™ refers to remuneration paid for special assgnments for Investor concerning Hi3G.

2) Quistanding pension commitments for Peter Wallenberg decreased with pensions paid during the year and were adjusted for valuation in accordance with IFRS principles. Pension
commitments amounted 1o SEK 133,313,000 at year-end. Cutstanding pension commitments for former board members and presidents total SEK 35,009,000. There are no
cutstanding pension cammitments for tog management members.

3) in accordance wish the decision made by the Annual General Meeting, total board fees were atiocated as follows: SEK 1,875,000 1o the chazman, SEK 500,000 to each board
member not employed by the company, and a total of SEK 1,063,000 as remuneration for work on the commitiees of the board. See the Corporate Governance Report for more
information about remuneration for work on the committees of the board.

The theoretical value of granted aptions has been calculated in accordance with the Black & Scholes valuation model. For 2006, the theoretical value of
Matching Options has been calculated at SEX 15.62 per option on the grant date. The theoretical value of Matching Shares has been cakulated at SEK
109.19 per share and for Performance Shares SEK 52.35 per share. The presented total theoretical value of granted fong-term share-based
remuneration has been reduced by SEX 18.95 per Matching Share 1o take into account the investment risk taken by the employee.

Theoretical value Pension costs
Variable  of granted long- excluding Qther
Basic salary for  1erm share-based Total payrall remuneration Board Total

Total remuneration for 2005 {SEK 000s) salary the year remuneration ¥ salary 1ax ¥ and benefits feet remuneration
Top management
Jacob Wallenberg 1,700 1,700
Bjorn Svedberg 720 500 1,220
Bérie Ekholm# 2,060 983 1,069 4,112 609 7 4,728
Other board members
Sune Carlsson 550 550
Sirkka Hamalsinen 450 450
Ulla Litzén 450 450
Hakan Mogren 500 500
Anders Scharp 450 450
0. Griffith Sexton 450 450
Former board members and presidents
Claes Dahlback 30 30
Marcus Wallenberg ¥ 4 889 1,992 2,077 B,958 1,368 51 10,377
Peter Wallenberg 14,730 14,730
(Others 3,398 3,050 _ 4,448

6,949 2,975 3,146 13,070 20,105 1.858 5,050 40,083

13 "Other remuneration and benefits” refers to special assignments for Investor concerning Hi3G.

2} Assumead the position as President and CEQ on 971 2005.

3) Resigned as President and CEQ on 8/31 2005.

4) The final atiocation of the 2005 employee stock option program depends on each senior executive’s fulfillment of goals during the year

5) Qutstanding pension commutments for Peter Wallenberg decreased with pensions paid dunng the year and amounted 10 SEK 149,154,000 at year-end Quistanding pension
commitments for former board members and presidents total SEK 39,803,000, There are no outstanding pension commitments for top management members.

6} In accordance with the decision made by the Annual General Meeting, total board fees were allocated as follows: SEK 1,500,000 to the chairman, SEK 400,000 1o each board
member nat employed by the company, and a total of SEK 750,000 as remuneration for work on the committees cf the board.

The value of granted aptions has been calculated in accordance with the Black & Scholes valuation model. The value has been calculated at SEK §5.20 per
option for the 2005 Employee Stock Option Program.
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NOTE S cont’d D Employees and payroll costs

Amounts of remuneration paid to other senior executives

“Other senior executives” for Investar refers to the Management Group, excluding the President. At year-end, the Management Group consisted of five
men. The amaunts in the table are cakulated according to the accruals concept, whereby the terms basic salary and variable salary refer to expensed
amounts, including any changes to provisions for variable salary, vacation pay, etc.

Theoretical value Pension
Variable salary of granted long- costs Other
Basic for the term share-based Total excluding remuneration Total
Total remuneration far 2006 (SEK 000s) sajary year remuneration? salary payrotl tax®  and benefits remuneration
Management Group, excluding the President® 17,682 11,661 7.478 36,821 4,623 591 42,035
17.682 11,661 7,478 36,821 4,623 581 42,035

1} Adine Grate Axén until 9/30 2006, Henry E. Gooss, Johan Forssell, Lennart Johansson and Lars Wedenborn,
2} The finai allocation of the 2006 Stock Matching Plan is presented in the tables in the “Long-term share-based remuneration” section (under the heading “2006"),
3) There are no outstanding pension commitments for other senior executives.

The theoretical value of granied options has been calculated in accordance with the Black & Scholes valuation model. For 2006, the theoretical value of
Matching Options has been calculated at SEX 15.62 per option on the grant date. The theoretical value of Matching Shares has been calculated at
SEK 10%9.19 per share and for Performance Shares SEK 52.35 per share.

Theoretical value Pension
Variable salary of granted Jong- costs Qther
Basic for the term share-based Total extluding remuneration Totat
Total remuneration for 2005 (SEK 000s) salary year remuneration ® salary payrol] tax ? and benefits remuneraiion
Management Group, excluding the President™ 17,756 11,418 5,016 34,190 5,091 717 39,998
17,756 11,418 5016 34,190 5,091 717 39,998

1) Adine Grate Axén, Borge Ekbolm until 8/31 2005, Henry E Gooss, Fredrik Hillelson and Lars Wedenborn.

2) The number of emplayee stock options granted to cther senior executives total 99,639 and 1,593,997 at year-end, on an accumuiated basis. The number of shares (restricted
stock) granted 10 the Management Group total 36,073 and 81,373 at year-end, on an accumulated basis

3) There are no eutstanding pension commitments for other senior executives.

The value of granted options has been calculated in accordance with the Black & Scholes valuation model. The value has been calculated at SEK 15.20 per
option on the grant date {or the 2005 Employee Stock Qption Program.

In the financial statements for a fiscal year, a provision is made for variable salary for that year. The decision to award actual vanble satary, and its
payment, is made in the beginning of the subsequent year. The expensed amount may therefare differ from the decided amount.

As a result of realized gains in parallel investment programs {carried interest plans, see also Note 29 Related party disclosures), other seniar executives in
the Private Equity Investments business area have received SEK 13,588,000 (89,593,000).

OTHER OPERATIONS

Other cperations comprise the activities of The Grand Group and the advisory
companies to the QT funds. The payroll costs shown below for these units are
included in “Costs of goods and services sold” in the incame statement.

Average number of employees

2006 2005
of whom of whom
Taotal WOomen Total women
The Grand Group, Sweden 262 132 328 162
Other subsidiaries 98 36 102 49
Total other operations 360 168 430 211

Gender distribution in boards and senior management

The gender distribution in the boards of investor's other operations consisted
of 22 percent women and 78 percent men. The corresponding gender
distribution for senior executives was 15 percent women and 85 percent men.

Expensed wages, salaries, board of director fees and other remuneration, as well as social security contributions

2006 2005
Wages, Costs for Wages, Costs for
salaries and benefits and Social  Of which, salaries and benefits and Social Of wiich,
other share-based secunty pension cther share-based security  pension
remuneration remuneration  contributions costs Jotal remuneration _remuneration  contributions costs_ Total
The Grand Group 79 2z 28 2 109 88 2 34 5 124
Other subsidiaries 150 10 33 12 193 138 8 31 T 177
Total other operations 229 12 61 14 302 226 10 65 16 301
Expensed wages, salaries and pensions distributed by board members and the President and other employees
2006 2005
Board of which  of which Other Board of which  of which Other
and President  variable salary pension _employees Total and President vaniable salary __ pension employees Total
The Grand Group 3 2} 0 78 81 3 [ ! 90 93
QOther subsidiaries 29 [ 4 133 162 34 4 5 115 149

Total other operations 32 [ 4 21 243 37 4 6 205 242
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